


 GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Tuesday, September 19, 2017 - 7:00 p.m. 
Takiff Center - Community Hall  

Consistent with the requirements of the Illinois Compiled Statutes 5 ILCS 120/1 
through 120/6 (Open Meetings Act), notices of this meeting were posted. 

Meeting Location:  Takiff Center, 999 Green Bay Road, Glencoe, IL 60022 

A G E N D A 
I. Call to Order   

II. Roll Call 
III. Consent Agenda Items 

A. Minutes of August 17, 2017 Regular Board Meeting 
B. Minutes of September 5, 2017 Special Projects and Facilities Committee Meeting 
C. Approval of the Bills 

IV. Matters from the Public 
V. Financial Report 

VI. Presentation of the Youth Camps Report 
VII. Presentation of the Early Childhood Report 

VIII. Staff Reports 
A.  Business 
B. Recreation and Facilities 
C. Parks and Maintenance 
D. Marketing and Communications 
E. Safety Committee 

IX. Executive Director Report 
X. Appointment of members to the Beach and Lakefront Advisory Group 

XI. Action Items 
A. Approval of FY 2018/19 Master Plan Capital Projects 
B. Approval to Proceed with Glencoe Park District 3-Year Strategic Plan 
C. Approval to Change Time of October 17 Regular Board Meeting 
D. Approval of a Web Based Time Clock Management Software System 
E. Approval of the Altamanu, Inc. Contract for Three Playground Design Services for 

2018/2019 Capital Projects 
F. Approval of the Altamanu, Inc. Contract for Lincoln and Crescent Playground Design 

Services 
XII. Other Business 

XIII. Executive Session 
A. Personnel 5ILCS 120/2 (c)(1) 

XIV. Adjournment 
The Glencoe Park District is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Individuals 
with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to 
observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or 
facilities, are asked to contact the Park District at 847-835-3030. Executive Director Email: 
lsheppard@glencoeparkdistrict.com  



III. Consent Agenda Items
Section 2.06(b) of the Open Meetings Act allows a public entity to approve

minutes either within 30 days after the relevant meeting OR at the public body’s
second subsequent regular meeting, whichever is LATER. For consistency, all

minutes will be approved at the subsequent Regular Board Meeting.

Items on the Consent Agenda are representative of routine actions by the Board
of Directors or staff. Members of the Board of Park Commissioners are invited
and encouraged to call the Executive Director prior to the meeting with any

questions about consent agenda items.

The Board President asks for a motion to adopt the consent agenda items.
However, if any member of the Board wishes to discuss any item on the consent
agenda, for any reason whatsoever, he or she may ask that the item be removed

from the consent agenda and the President will change the agenda per the
request.

The Executive Director recommends approval of the consent agenda.

Glencoe Park District
September 2017 Board Meeting



DRAFT

MINUTES OF AUGUST 17, 2017 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS  60022 

The meeting was called to order at 7:02 p.m. and roll was called. 

Commissioners present:  Staff present: 
Dudley Onderdonk, President Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Lisa Brooks, Vice President Chris Leiner, Director of Parks/Maintenance 
Josh Lutton, Treasurer Erin Maassen, Manager of Marketing/Comm. 
Stefanie Boron, Commissioner Jenny Runkel, Administrative Assistant
Steve Gaines, Commissioner  
      
Members of the public in attendance who signed in or spoke:  Dan Dorfman

Consent Agenda:  A motion was made by Commissioner Gaines to approve the consent 
agenda items as presented including Minutes of the July 18, 2017 Regular Board 
Meeting, and Approval of the Bills. Commissioner Brooks seconded the motion. No 
further discussion ensued Roll call vote taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Brooks, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: None 

Matters from the Public: There was no one wishing to address the Board.

Financial Report: Executive Director Sheppard stated we are doing really well. In 
response to a commissioner question regarding the repair cost for damage at the 
beach, Sheppard clarified that we will not see the full impact until all expenses are 
accounted for. We are spending more on the Boating Beach due to sand deterioration. 
The expense is for equipment to move current sand and cover the pipes and shoreline. 
In order to bring in new sand, we have to apply for a sand permit first. The permit may 
take over a year to get. We are also working with the Sand Management group to get 
sand barged down from Waukegan Harbor; this process may take two years. It will be 
less expensive than trucking in the sand. Beach attendance has been low during the 
week, but strong on weekends. Sheppard applauded the Parks Team for doing a great 
job repairing the beach after storms. The Lakefront Report will be shared in October. 

The first day of registration revenue was up compared to last year, boding well for the 
new year. 

Executive Director Report:  Executive Director Sheppard shared that during real time 
registration on August 2, we collected $250,000 compared to last year’s $205,000 within 
the first three hours of registration. We have invested more money in our registration 
system, finding that in Glencoe people are so excited in that first 15 minutes of 
registration that they are opening every device they have which is slowing our system. 
We are going to increase as much as we can, however we are going to get the word out 



2

to only sign in under one device. Multiple devices on one household login slows down 
their registration. Recreation supervisors are onsite registration morning; moving around 
registrations and adding classes when possible.

Based upon a commissioner question, Director Mensinger will report next month the 
methods we use to store information. 

Camp ended last week. Beach services and reduced hours this coming week was 
reviewed. Monday-Thursday we have no services, Friday, Saturday, Sunday will have 
boat guards and lifeguards on the swimming beach Saturday and Sunday. During that 
time we leave Safran house bathrooms open.

Environmental safety of the Village water plant pipe cleaning process was reviewed.

Takiff maintenance begins next week. The early childhood entrance will be open for 
registration, but because of the improvements we are doing to the building will be 
closed. Next week, we will be working on the registration counter, as well as beginning 
work in the fitness area. Annual building maintenance, deep cleaning and repairs will be 
done as well. 

West Park construction is going well and will meet deadline to open on August 28, 
which is the first day of school. Sheppard thanked Director Leiner and Altamanu. The 
grand opening will be on September 5 at 6:00pm prior the Special Projects Committee 
meeting. Commissioner Brooks will be speaking as President Onderdonk is out of town. 

Some of Astor Park’s infrastructure is installed, however due to rain we have pulled off 
that site and put all the concentration of work at West. Once West is complete, the Astor 
Park project will resume. 

We have power washed Lakefront, Shelton, and West Park tennis courts and a power 
washing rotation will now be completed annually.

Mike Lushniak’s last day was August 11. We have had no shortage of qualified 
applicants with a final decision next week. 

Upcoming events were reviewed. GJHP and GYS are not holding Harvest Fest, 
however they told us too late to take over the event. 

The new extra-large marketing banner of our fall events was reviewed.

We are really proud of West Park. It is innovative, creative, and a fun park. It will be a 
destination playground and discovery area. 

Action Items: 

Approval of Takiff Center Improvement Project Bid:  A motion was made by 
Commissioner Gaines to approve the lowest responsible bidder, Clauss Brothers Inc. of 



3

Elgin, Illinois including Alternate #1 for a total of $582,801.02 as presented.
Commissioner Lutton seconded the motion. No discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
  ABSENT:  None 

Approval of Watts Basketball Court Renovation Bid:  A motion was made by 
Commissioner Gaines to approve the lowest responsible bidder, Chicagoland Paving 
Contractors of Lake Zurich, Illinois for a total of $62,900 as presented. Commissioner
Brooks seconded the motion. In response to a commissioner question, Executive 
Director Sheppard confirmed that this project was budgeted for in capital projects fund 
69. Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
  ABSENT:  None 

Approval of Bi-annual Review of Executive Session Minutes:  A motion was made by 
Commissioner Gaines approve and keep confidential executive session minutes 
including May 16, 2017, and to release from confidentiality  minutes to include 
September 20, 2011, March 20, 2012, March 18, 2014 and to authorize the destruction 
of audio recordings of its closed meetings held on the following dates as to which closed 
meeting official minutes have been approved and no litigation under the open meetings 
act is pending including October 15, 2013; January 21, 2014; February 18, 2014 #1 and 
#2; March 18, 2014; April 22, 2014; October 21, 2014; November 18, 2014; February 
17, 2015; March 17, 2015; June 16, 2015; and September 17, 2015 as mandated by 
5ILCS120/2 (c)(21). Commissioner Boron seconded the motion. No discussion ensued.
Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: None 

Other Business: There was no other business. 

Adjourn to Closed Session: There was no reason to go into Executive Session. 

Adjourn: Commissioner Gaines moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:30 p.m. 
Commissioner Brooks seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

                   
Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary 



DRAFT

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 5, 2017 SPECIAL PROJECTS AND FACILITIES 
COMMITTEE MEETING 

GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 
999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS  60022 

The meeting was called to order at 7:03 p.m. and roll was called. 

Committee Members present:  Staff present: 
Lisa Brooks, Chair/Vice President Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Stefanie Boron, Commissioner  Chris Leiner, Director of Parks/Maintenance 
Steve Gaines, Commissioner Bobby Collins, Director of Recreation/Facilities 
      Erin Maassen, Marketing/Comm. Manager 
Commissioners present:   
Josh Lutton, Treasurer   

Members of the Public in attendance who signed in or spoke:  Dan Dorfman 

Discussion on Three Year Capital Projects Plan: Executive Director Sheppard presented 
the Three Year Capital Projects Plan with the changes made at the July Committee 
meeting (attachment A) and the Three Year Capital Projects Plan with Staff 
Recommendations (attachment B) based on staff review, site inspections, and planning. 
Discussion ensued. The committee questioned whether we should do two instead of 
four playgrounds for planning purposes.  Executive Director Sheppard and Director 
Leiner indicated that based on Commissioner feedback in the past it was not the desire 
of the Board to remove playgrounds without immediately replacing them. Based on the 
condition of the current playgrounds staff could not guarantee that a playground would 
not have to be removed due to safety concerns and do not want to be in the situation of 
taking down playgrounds and not be able to immediately replace the playground. Staff 
prefers to be proactive rather than reactive. Staff also indicated that by bidding the 
playgrounds together this might lead to savings. Discussion ensued. 

Shelton Park:  The committee discussed budgeting $20,000 for a site master plan at 
Shelton Park and then budget $70,000 in 2019/20 for repairs to the pathway. The site 
plan will help us perform a detailed analysis of the entire park and future improvements 
so 2019/20 improvements will not be affected when future work is done.  The committee 
agreed with this course of action. 

Woodlawn Park:  Executive Director Sheppard and Director Leiner indicated the desire 
to raise the budget on this park. Staff felt this is a community park with a large footprint 
that could accommodate a universally accessible playground, larger tot area, and 
various other unique concepts.  For reference staff indicated that West and Friends 
Park cost approximately $500,000.  Discussion ensued.  After discussion, the 
committee felt based on usage they felt this was a neighborhood park and would 
approve to spend $300,000 for a traditional playground with one unique element. 



2

Old Green Bay Park Master Plan:  The committee discussed the recommendation that a 
site master plan for Old Green Bay Park be developed for a budgeted amount of 
$35,000 and that this plan be completed prior to the design of Lincoln and Crescent 
Playground so that it fit into that plan. The committee expressed an interest that the 
playground and master plan feature play equipment that would be appropriate to middle 
school children and include paths for bikes, skateboards, and scooters.  The discussed 
budgeted amount of the playground would be $225,000 and another $365,000 be 
budgeted for 2019/20 phase A of the Old Green Bay Linear Park Master Plan. 

Vernon and Jefferson Playground:  The committee discussed that this was the 
playground removed this spring due to structure deterioration and would be replaced 
this spring using the same footprint with a budget of $225,000. 

Takiff Early Childhood Playground:  Executive Director Sheppard and Director Leiner 
discussed the need to move Takiff playground replacement to 2019/20.  Staff is 
concerned about the condition of the playground and the importance of this playground 
in the programming of the early childhood programs at Takiff Center. The committee 
agreed with the recommendation of a $400,000 budget. 

Executive Director Sheppard and Director Leiner discussed that expenses associated 
Everly Wildflower Sanctuary maintenance and sand replenishment for the beach would 
be budgeted in the operating budget. 

The committee also asked about the status of the Boating Beach. Executive Director 
Sheppard indicated that we have experienced erosion at the Boating Beach due to the 
high water levels and wave events. In addition, the Village water pipe is exposed, which 
the Village will be addressing with Park District input. Staff will be formulating a plan on 
how to address the changing conditions and will report to the Board on the plan of 
action.

Chair Brooks, based on the discussion by the committee, directed Park District staff to 
advance the Three Year Capital Projects Plan to the Board for approval at the 
September meeting. 

Update on Current Projects: Director Leiner gave a brief update ongoing projects. 

Matters from the Public: There were no matters from the public. 

Other Business:  Executive Director Sheppard introduced the agreement with the 
consultant to complete a Strategic Plan this year. Staff is recommending Barbara Heller 
of Heller and Heller to lead the process. Ms. Heller worked with the District on their 
recent Master Plan. 18.5This plan will be presented to the Board for approval at the 
September Board meeting. 



3

Adjourn: Commissioner Boron moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:17 p.m. 
Commissioner Gaines seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

                   
Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary 







































































V. Financial Report

Glencoe Park District
September 2017 Board Meeting







Glencoe Park District
Monthly Financial Analysis
August 2017

As of As of As of
8/31/2015 8/31/2016 8/31/2017

Recreation Department - Programs
Revenues 2,559,336 2,352,382 2,426,877
Wages (347,819) (358,639) (372,949)
Contractual (1,006,760) (880,147) (870,875)
Supplies (55,367) (57,433) (55,290)
     Net Surplus 1,149,390 1,056,163 1,127,763

Day Care Department
Revenue 363,266 443,834 438,788
Expense (304,672) (341,573) (343,636)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) 58,594 102,261 95,152

Beach Department
Revenue 246,686 305,821 305,778
Expense (160,879) (174,894) (177,028)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) 85,807 130,927 128,750

Boating Department
Revenue 60,077 91,278 102,181
Expense (77,199) (70,832) (91,127)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (17,122) 20,446 11,054

Beach/Boating Dept Total: 68,685 151,373 139,804

Watts Department
Revenue 4,907 1,037 2,961
Expenses (64,741) (58,189) (70,792)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (59,834) (57,152) (67,831)

G & A (Administration)
Revenue (excl G&A Tfr) 14,600 14,515 17,240
Expense (485,712) (520,240) (564,112)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (471,112) (505,725) (546,872)

Parks Department
Revenue 8,623 4,808 755
Expense (503,408) (507,941) (533,592)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (494,785) (503,133) (532,837)

Rec-Admin/Takiff  Department
Revenues 1,010,105 1,050,738 1,088,648
Expenses (1,490,335) (1) (1,084,264) (1,973,677) (1)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (480,230) (33,526) (885,029)

(1) Includes Fund 69 transfer for future Master Plan projects



VI. Presentation of the Youth Camps Report

Glencoe Park District
September 2017 Board Meeting



220177 Summmeer Caamp Rep

Glencoe
Septem

Stepha
C

Na

port

Park District
ber 19, 2017
ani Briskman
Chris Pietrini
aomi Garvett



Cont
Conte

Introd

Camp

Marke

Staffin

Chang

2017

Plann

Custo

Appen

Appen

Appen

Appen

Appen

tents
ents ..............

duction.........

p Descriptions

eting and Pro

ng and Staff T

ges Made for

Year In Revie

ing for Summ

omer Feedbac

ndices:

ndix A – Parti

ndix B – Finan

ndix C – Cam

ndix D – Mark

.....................

.....................

s and Overvie

omotion ........

Training ........

the 2017 Cam

ew ………………

mer 2018.......

ck and Survey

icipation Data

ncial Data

p Schedules

keting Mater

.....................

.....................

ew .................

.....................

.....................

mp Season ……

……………………

.....................

y Results........

a

ials

.................. 1

.................. 2

.................. 3

.................. 5

.................. 6

………………..7

………………….8

................ 10

................ 11

20017 Summer CCamp Report

P a g e | 1

t



Intro
The G
partic
swim
theme
grow,

This s
progr
camp
appro
proce
exper
stand

The ca
week
Town
offeri
weeks
seaso
with t
offeri

The ca
goals
2017
with a
exper

P
Ex
q
P
B
o
C
ca
Se
fa
Id
d

oduction
Glencoe Park D
cipants 2 to 1
ming, crafts,
e days. Camp
, learn, discov

ummer could
am. There wa
directors. W

oach and enha
edures, to new
rience in 2017
ards of servic

amp season b
of Summer’s
camps. The f
ngs began on
s, concluding

on concluded
the Summer’s
ng of Safety T

amp staff had
that were ea
camp season
a vison of pro
rience for the

rovide a safe
xceed campe
uality progra
rovide activit
e flexible and
r planned act
ontinue to de
ancellations
eek opportun
amilies throug
dentify and ov
ecrease the le

District summ
6 years old. A
nature aware

ps are structu
ver, and, mos

d be describe
as a number o
ith staff new
ance the cam
w field trips to
7 had a new a
ce and comm

began on Jun
s Beginning an
full schedule
n June 19 and

on August 11
the week of A
s End camp a
Town.

d a number o
rmarked hea

n. The goals w
oviding an exc

residents of

and fun cam
r and parent
mming
ies that enga

d solution orie
tivities.
evelop our ma

nities to conti
gh open lines
vercome barr
evel of servic

mer camp pro
A variety of ac
eness, games,
red to provid

st importantly

d as a year of
of new part t
in their posit

mp program. F
o places like T
and innovativ
unication tha

e 12 with a
nd Safety
of camp
went eight

1. The camp
August 14 18
nd another

f overarching
ding into the

were created
ceptional
Glencoe.

p experience
expectations

ge the campe
ented when w

arketing/PR s

nue to build a
s of communi
riers and road
e provided

ograms provid
ctivities take
, sports, spec
e opportunit

y, to have fun

f successful tr
time staff incl
tions, it provid
From small de
The Chicago S

ve feel while a
at have existe

8

g

for every par
s with the hig

er and offer a
weather or ot

strategies to i

authentic rela
cation.
dblocks that m

20

de a wide sele
place in a typ

cial events, fie
ies for childre

n within their

ransition for t
uding counse
ded the oppo
etails like dro
Shakespeare
at the same ti
ed in previous

rticipant
hest levels of

a variety of ex
ther factors d

increase enro

ationships be

may hinder ca

017 Summer C

ection of expe
pical camp we
eld trips, cook
en to make n
surroundings

the summer c
elors, head co
ortunity to tak
p off and pic
Theatre, the
ime, maintain
s years.

f customer se

xperiences
dictate a chan

ollment and m

etween staff,

amp participa

Camp Report

P a g e | 2

eriences for
eek, including
kouts, and
ew friends,
s.

camp
ounselors, an
ke a fresh
k up
camp
ning the high

ervice and

nge in schedu

minimize

campers, and

ation or

t

g

d

le

d



2017 Summer Camp Report

P a g e | 3

Camp Descriptions and Overview
The Glencoe Park District puts an emphasis on providing summer camps for children of all ages.
Staff has acknowledged that parents sign their children up for camp for a variety of reasons such
as social development, exposure to new experiences, the opportunity for adventure, or simply
out of the necessity for childcare during the summer months. The variety in age offerings, time
offerings, and weeks of camp offered have taken into consideration the constantly evolving
family schedule and the need to accommodate many different situations.

In addition to these descriptions, all camps offered a number of additional services. This
summer Marla’s Brown Bag Lunch company once again provided a meal option to all the
campers. This service allowed parents to sign up online to have a lunch delivered to their child
at camp every day in lieu of sending them with a traditional sack lunch. The services of the
North Suburban Special Recreation Association were also offered for every camp. NSSRA
coordinates with the Glencoe Park District to provide inclusion companions for any camper with
a disability or special needs. Additionally, NSSRA staff led a camp training session on inclusion
services, behavior management, and disability awareness. Finally, the Glencoe Park District
Scholarship Program was available to provide an opportunity for recreation for anyone with a
financial barrier to participation.

The following is a brief description of each camp including age demographic served and a
summary of what participants can expect.

Summer’s Beginning and Summer’s End
These two camps serve as the “bookends” to the traditional summer camp program. These
camps are offered the week prior to and the week after the regular camp season to
accommodate parents that need childcare during those weeks or participants that want to start
the camp experience early or extend it later into the season. These programs serve participants
from kindergarten up through fifth grade and provide them a traditional camp experience
during a time when camp is not traditionally offered. Fieldtrips included waterparks, bowling,
and a trip to an ice rink.

Safety Town
Safety town mirrors the schedule of Summer’s Beginning and Summer’s End with offerings the
week before and the week after traditional camps. However, Safety Town serves younger camp
participants who are ages 4 5. This camp focuses on instilling confidence in the young campers
through exposure to safety related topics and places including crossing the street and sign
recognition to visits from Public Safety and Beach Lifeguards.

Teddy, Panda, and Koala Bear Camps
The “Bear Themed” preschool camps serve the following age groups

Teddy Bear Camp: Age 2 (9:15 11:15am daily)
Panda Bear Camp: Age 3 (9:00 11:30am daily)
Koala Bear Camp: Age 4 (9:00 1:00pm daily)



These
enviro
and se
expos
longe
field t
childr

Kinde
Geare
game
1:00p
Play”
day u

Camp
Sun F
progr
(Camp
then o
profe
Cente
camp
be wo
friend
overn

Actio
The A
sixth t
progr
Action
from
nume
swim
tents.

Couns
The C
to pro
activit
staff t
traini
assign

e camps utiliz
onment focus
ensitivity nee
sure to camps
r day than th
trips. The sho
ren get older

er Korner Cam
ed for kinderg
s, and crafts

pm. Staff take
option for th
ntil 3:00pm if

p Sun Fun & C
un and Camp
ams serve pa
p Adventure)
off to a field t
ssional sporti

er full of activ
staff. By the

orn out from
ds in their ass
nighters at the

n Quest
Action Quest c
through ninth
am is adverti
n Quest camp
their home b

erous water p
ming and kay
. Camp runs d

selor In Train
CIT camp com
oviding the pa
ties, this cam
team at the G
ng at the beg
ned to lead co

e a mixture o
sed on child d
eded for first t
s with more i
e other two c

ortened camp
as well as ful

mp
garteners, thi
based on a w
s campers on
is camp, as w
f needed or d

Camp Advent
p Adventure a
articipants in f
. A normal ca
trip to places
ing events, or

vities planned
end of the da
an action pac
igned groups
e Takiff Cente

camp serves t
h graders. The
sing a camp t
pers spent ev
ase at the Wa

parks, and eve
yaking and als
daily from 9:1

ning (CIT)
bines a hybri
articipants of
p also puts a

Glencoe Park
ginning of the
ounselors and

of seasonal sta
development
time campers
ndoor and ou
camps and ta

p days assist in
l day kinderga

s camp offers
weekly theme.
n field trips an
well as the Bea
desired.

ture
are the signat
first through
amp day begin
like water pa

r a day aroun
and execute

ay at 3:00pm,
cked day of a
s. The camp in
er.

the older cam
e most popul
that is always
ery day excep
atts Center b
en Great Ame
so tries to spe
15am 3:15pm

d of camper e
this camp a f
focus on pre
District once
season simila

d camp group

aff and presc
. The Teddy B
s. The Panda
utdoor activit
kes the extra
n a smooth tr
arten.

s a variety of
. The Kinder K
nd visits the b
ar Camps, giv

ture camps of
third grade (S
ns at 8:45am
arks, arcades,
d the Takiff
d by the seas
, campers sho
ctivities with
ncludes two

mp population
ar aspect of t

s “on the go”.
pt for 4 away
y going on fie

erica. This cam
end two overn

m.

experiences a
fun and enjoy
paring partic
they are sixte
ar to that of t

ps spread acro

20

hool teacher
Bear camp un
Bear Camp ta
ies. The Koala

a step of expo
ransition to th

activities incl
Korner camp
beach on a we
ves campers t

f the Glencoe
Sun Fun) and
with drop of

,

sonal
ould
their

n of
this
.
y
eld trips that
mp also visits
night outings

and camp sta
yable summe
ipants for a p
een years of a
the camp cou
oss all of the

017 Summer C

s to ensure a
nderstands th
akes the next
as Camp offe

osing campers
he camp prog

luding cookin
day runs from
eekly basis. T
the option to

e Park District
fourth and fi

ff. From there

include a Cub
the beach on

s at the beach

ff experience
er of field trip
possible job o
age. CITs now
unselors. CITs
Glencoe Park

Camp Report

P a g e | 4

safe
e attention
t step in
rs a slightly
s to off site
gram as

ng, singing,
m 9:00am
The “Stay and

extend their

t. These
ifth grade
e, campers ar

bs Game,
nce a week fo
h camping in

es. In addition
s and
n the camp

w receive
s are then
k District

t

e

or

n



camp
turn,
from
impro

Mar
A sign
wide
year,
broch
camp

Camp
was m
from
email
Glenc
media
which
includ
Summ
optio

A one
progr
well a
adver
Beach

A Cam
couns
gener

Raino
page

s based out o
camp staff pr
the camp dire

ove upon in o

keting and
nificant amou
variety of sum
a 10 page de

hures. Residen
details, inclu

p registration
mailed in late
November 30
blasts, flyers

coe Park Distr
a posts. Speci
h were also di
ded camp arti
mer Sampler,
ns sent to res

e minute YouT
am, which wa

as played on a
rtising camp a
h’s Halfway H

mp Reunion N
selors/campe
rate positive p

out Line to cre
and social me

of Takiff and c
rovides feedb
ector at the e
rder to becom

d Promotio
unt of time an
mmer camp o
etailed camp g
nts were enco
uding session

began two w
November. A

0 through Feb
s, and posters
rict website, T
ial event atte
istributed to
icles in the su
a 4 page mai
sidents.

Tube video w
as displayed o
a loop on all f
and beach fun
ouse for mos

Night complet
ers, was held d
publicity. Ema

eate an alert s
edia feeds. Pa

charged with
back and men
end of the ses
me the ideal c

on
nd energy is p
offerings offe
guide was pu
ouraged to lo
options and e

weeks after th
An early bird d
bruary 28, wh
s. Information
TV system, an
ndees were g
program part

ummer Glenco
iler with a var

was created to
on social med
facility TV’s du
n, was also on
st of the sprin

te with a deej
during winter
ail, posters, a

system to pos
arents could a

assisting the
ntorship. Coun
ssion highligh
candidate for

laced into pro
red each year
blished in bot

ook online for
early bird disc

e winter prog
discount was
hich was mark
n was also po
nd on sponsor
given flyers at
ticipants. Staf
oe Quarterly
riety of progr

o advertise th
dia and email
uring the win
n display in th
ng and summe

jay, giveaway
r break to cul
and social me

P
P
G
C
2

T
c
d

st emergency
also sign up fo

20

camp staff in
nselors in tra

hting persona
r a camp posi

operly marke
r through the
th the winter
r specific
counts.

gram guide
offered

keted using
sted on the
red social
t events,
ff also
and the

ramming

e camp
blasts, as

nter months. A
he Takiff Cent
er.

ys, and visits w
tivate excitem
dia were utili

Paid ads were
PTO fundraise
Glencoe’s fun
Chicago North
2017 Guide.

To improve pa
carlines, we w
designers Acc
y notices quic
or text alerts

017 Summer C

n daily camp o
aining receive
l strengths an
tion in the fu

eting and pro
e Glencoe Par
r and spring/s

A six foot ban
ter lobby and

with past
ment for the
ized to promo

e included in t
er book, Fami
draiser book,

h Shore & Vis

arent commu
worked with o
uraty Solutio
ckly on the Di
from Rainou

Camp Report

P a g e | 5

operations. In
e an evaluatio
nd areas to
uture.

mpting the
rk District. Th
summer

nner,
d Glencoe

program and
ote the event

the Glencoe
ly Service of
, and in the
itor’s Bureau

unication with
our website
ns and
strict’s web
t line. The

t

n
on

is

d
t.

h



new s
and T

At the
to fue

Staff
The G
memb
direct
are re
comm
leade
Direct
to hel
feedb
basis
provid

2017

A larg
staff m
Direct
Distric
prese

Camp
aid, re
provid
game
devel
famili
Powe
scena

system was ea
Twitter.

e end of the s
el future mark

fing and St
Glencoe Park D
bers. This sum
tors, camp he
esponsible for
munication wi
rship position
tors and are r
lp counselors

back. Camp Co
throughout t
de a fun summ

Camp Directo
Sun Fun: A
Camp Adv
Action Que
Counselor

ge focus of tim
members go t
tor of Recreat
ct full time te
ason training

p staff is not o
eporting, cam
de memorabl
s, keeping ca
op relationsh
ar with the si
rPoint presen

arios.

asy for staff t

summer, a su
keting pieces

taff Trainin
District prides
mmer, the cam
ead counselor
r the day to d
ith parents th
ns that are on
responsible fo
s problem sol
ounselors are
he summer. T
mer, and alw

ors
Amanda Nach
enture: Brian
est: Dave Pur
In Training (C

me and effort
through over
tion and Faci
eam. Addition
g or to addres

only trained o
mper supervis
le experience
mpers entert

hips with cam
ite they will b
ntation, group

to deploy and

rvey was sent
. Please see A

ng
s itself on hir
mp staff inclu
rs, and camp
day lesson pla
hroughout the
n site day in a
or the oversig
ve throughou

e the staff me
Their focus is
ays keep safe

and David Lo
n Ross
rcell
CITs): Jon Pra

t is spent on t
r 16 hours of t
lities, Executi
nally, staff ha
ss issues or co

on Glencoe Pa
ion, and prop

es for camper
tained during
pers. The tra

be working at
p activities, h

d automatical

t to all parent
Appendix B fo

ing hardwork
uded over 65
counselors. C
anning of the
e day. The Ca
and day out. H
ght of the Cam
ut the day, as
embers that in

to develop s
ety at the fore

ota

nian

he preseason
training that
ive Director, a
d weekly mee
oncerns that c

ark District ca
per interactio
s. For examp

g transitions, i
ining is also s
. The training
ands on prac

In addition
attends th
Executive
Lisa welco

20

ly sent alerts

ts, which will
or samples of

king, motivate
individuals w

Camp Directo
camp progra

amp Directors
Head Counse
mp Counselor
s well as provi
nteract with t
strong relatio
efront.

n training for
is presented
and other me
etings to refr
come up thro

amp procedur
on with campe
le, camp staff
interacting w
site specific, s
g consists of a
ctice, discussi

n to basic cam
he Summer E
Director Lisa

omed staff to

017 Summer C

to the websi

utilize paren
marketing m

ed, and energ
working as sea
ors, with the f
am as well as
s are the prim
lors report to
rs. Head Coun
ide mentorin
the campers
nships with c

the camp sta
by the full tim

embers of the
esh topics dis

oughout the w

res including
ers, but also w
ff our taught i

with parents, a
so that camp
a combination
on, and role

mp training, c
mployee Orie

a Sheppard. A
the Glencoe

Camp Report

P a g e | 6

ite, Facebook

nt comments
materials.

getic staff
asonal camp
full time staff

mary
o the Camp
nselors work
g and
on a constant
ampers,

aff. All camp
me managers
e Glencoe Par
scussed at the
week.

safety, first
ways to
innovative
and ways to
staff can get
n of
playing

camp staff
entation led b
At this training

Park District

t

k,

f,

t

s,
rk
e

by
g,



2017 Summer Camp Report

P a g e | 7

team, explained the SPIRIT values that embody the agency, and impressed upon the staff just
how important their roles are. The Camp Directors and Head Counselors also attended a five
hour Leadership Staff Training this season. In this training, the leadership staff was exposed to
many challenging scenarios they would face this summer including staff discipline, dealing with
upset patrons/participants, creating a culture of accountability, and success among the
counselors. New this year was an activity called “Pursuit of Park District Knowledge”. This was
an amazing race sort of activity that built teamwork, knowledge of the park district and what all
departments do. Staff were sent throughout Glencoe answering questions about the park
district. When they came back to Takiff they had a pizza party which gave them a chance to talk
and get to know each other.

Changes Made for the 2017 Camp Season
Each year, the Glencoe Park District staff examines and analyzes the successes and areas of
improvement from the most recent camp season in an effort to constantly improve the
experience for every camper and family.

Kinder Korner & Bear Camps
Under the direction of Naomi Garvett, the Early Childhood Program Manager, the Bear Camps
saw changes in a variety of areas. There were a number of new field trips that were booked for
Koala and Kinder Korner Camps. These new field trips kept the camp fresh and kids excited
about coming to camp every day.

Other changes that were implemented were based off of survey results collected in 2016. We
added a “Stay and Play” option extended to the Teddy Bear campers. This camp day ends at
12:15pm, the Teddies got to eat and play some more with their camp buddies.

Sun Fun and Camp Adventure
Under the direction of Stephani Briskman, the Arts and Youth Program Manager, Sun Fun and
Camp Adventure saw changes in a variety of areas around camp. New field trips, Camp
Adventure Clubs, and special guests were added to keep the campers excited about coming to
camp each day.

New field trips were added such as a trip to The Oasis Water Park, The Chicago Shakespeare
Theatre, and Putting Edge Glow in the Dark Mini Golf. We added two new special event days,
Hollywood Day and Animal Day, giving campers new and different opportunities to dress up and
have fun. We also had Hot Ground Gym and Mobile Room Escape visit us at camp.

New for Camp Adventure for the summer of 2017, we offered clubs. Campers chose activities
based on their interests to participate in 2 week intervals. This allowed the Camp Adventure
campers to design their own schedules while Camp Adventure was on site.

Action Quest
Chris Pietrini, Manager of Athletics, Sports and Teen Camp, oversaw Action Quest and
Counselor In Training camps. The Action Quest camp saw only minor changes from 2016



becau
Hills W
trips t
Parko
popul
to hel
hoste
atmos
childr
were
exces

For Co
camp
oppos

2017

Bear C
These
and re
chara
glowi
exper
serve
Enrich
staff w
expre
goals

One o
day o
throu
part w
highli
on thi
they h

With
camp
camp
progr

use of its pop
Water Park, w
to Barefoot B
our, Bartlett W
lar with the e
lp keep every

ed an end of y
sphere to sol
ren preferred
made by part
sive cost.

ounselor In T
training and

sed to bi wee

7 Year in R

Camps & Kin
e camps mean
eflect the com
cterizes the s
ng positive th
rienced Camp
as Glencoe P

hment teache
was able to p
ession times, a
of promoting

of the most m
f the summer
gh the reacti

ways with sta
ght of the cam
is field trip be
have never en

the experienc
program for
s. Through a
amming, thes

ularity and tr
which was our
Bay and Flick P
Water Park, Pa
exception of H
yone safe by n
year survey/ic
icit feedback
in order to im

ticipants for c

Training more
meetings wit

ekly.

Review – H

der Korner
n big fun for c
mmitment to
school year e
his year, much
p Counselors.
Park District P
ers during the
lan a mix of o
and games. S
g friendships,

memorable da
r. The impact
ons of the ca
ff and friends
mp season w
ecause, they w
ncountered b

ced staff, and
these young
loving and nu
se camps are

ack record of
r least popula
Pool. These tr
ark King and

Hot Ground G
not having a f
ce cream part
from camper

mprove the e
changes, whil

e of the camp
th our camp d

ighlights a

campers ages
quality progr
arly childhoo
h like other s
Many of thes

Preschool and
e school year.
outdoor play,
taff lesson pl
learning, and

ays for this ca
t of a great su
mpers when
s to which the
as the trip to
were able see

before.

d a full summ
participants

urturing ment
very well rec

f success. We
ar trip in 2016
rips were rep
Hot Ground G

Gym. Staff also
full day of act
ty on the last
rs to determi

experience for
le others wou

staff training
director. Part

and Popula

s two through
ramming that
d programs. A
ummers, is th
se staff mem
d Kindergarte
. This group o
creative
ans with spec
d of course fu

mp was the l
ummer or pro
they realize t
ey have beco
the Brookfie

e their favorit

er of age app
creates a gre
tality as well
ceived by the

20

e eliminated t
6. We also de
laced with a W
Gym. All of th
o moved the
tivity the next
day of camp
ne what field
r next summe
uld not be po

g was integrat
ticipant goals

ar Activitie

h five
t
A
he
bers
n

of

cific
un.

ast
ogramming an
that the seaso
me so close.

eld Zoo. Camp
te animals an

propriate outi
eat introductio
as creative an
community!

017 Summer C

two trips to t
ecreased the n
White Sox ga

hese field trip
campout nigh
t day. Finally,
. Staff created

d trips and act
er. Some goo
ssible due to

ted in to both
were also se

es

nd activities is
on is over and
Another day

pers had such
nd learn abou

ings and activ
on to Glencoe
nd learning b

Camp Report

P a g e | 8

the Vernon
number of
ame, The Zone
ps proved to b
hts to Friday
, staff also
d a festive
tivities the
d suggestions
their

h the pre
t weekly as

s recognized
d they must
y that was a
h a good time
t new animal

vities, the
e Park Distric

based

t

e
be

s

ls

ct



2017 Summer Camp Report

P a g e | 9

Sun Fun and Camp Adventure
A highlight of these two camps every year is the “camper’s choice” set of activities. These times
allow for campers to break up into groups and spend time doing activities that specific groups of
campers enjoy which might include sports, crafts, or other special interest games. Another
highlight is the Sun Fun Camp swim lessons. These swim lessons, built into the cost of the
program, utilize the Recreation Center in Highland Park for swim lessons for first, second, and
third graders.

Sun Fun’s field trips are another highlight of a busy camp schedule. Trips to Glencoe Beach,
water parks, bowling, Lincoln Park Zoo, and much more add variety and excitement to each
week of camp. Camp Adventure also goes on trips, which include Action Territory, Rainbow Falls
Waterpark, Cubs Game, and more. A camp favorite is the overnighter at the Takiff Center, which
takes place after the regular camp day and includes evening entertainment, dinner, movie, and
special activities.

Sun Fun and Camp Adventure had a large amount of returning staff, which provided an
opportunity for those staff to mentor the new staff. This summer, the camp staff was able to
build upon the bonds made from previous summers, which made a strong impact in a customer
service aspect towards the parents.

When analyzing camp enrollment numbers, grade size is positively correlated. Generally when a
grade size grows or reduces, so does camp enrollment. This summer the incoming 2nd grade
was smaller than the outgoing 3rd grade, leading to a shift in enrollment. Sun Fun’s enrollment
was down 9 campers, while Camp Adventure increased by 37, as campers aged out of Sun Fun
and moved in to Camp Adventure. The addition of Aquatics and Sailing Camps may have
impacted Sun Fun enrollment, as campers were eager to try this specialty beach camp. The new
Aquatics and Sailing Camps enrollment and financials are not reflected in the summer camp
report, as they are included in the beach report.

Sun Fun incurred some additional bus expenses in 2017. The Sun Fun summer school option
expanded in 2017, altering staff’s ability to use the Park District bus to transport these campers.
Staff hired additional buses to transport summer school campers. The growth resulted in 14
extra bus rentals. Additionally, due to changes in our swim class time by the Park District of
Highland Park, 26 additional bus rentals were required to transport campers to our popular
swim lessons. Staff is working closely with Highland Park to restore Sun Fun’s original swim
lesson time for summer 2018.

Action Quest & CITs
The Action Quest camp has the reputation of being a “traveling camp” with off site activities
planned every day but four Thursdays. The highlight is generally the overnight Beach Campouts
at Glencoe Beach that take place once every four week session. The campers go kayaking and
paddle boarding, make a fire, and spend the night sleeping in tents on the beach. Unfortunately
we had poor weather on each campout night, leading to decreased participation.



Anoth
sessio
theme
Wrigl

Action
were
strong
camp
throu

The C
being
to hav
their
Park a
one a

CIT’s a
more

Plan
After
seaso
impro
intern
as to
Wher
anoth
camp
regard

Below

Bear C

Sun F

her very popu
on. On this da
e park. Along
ey Field on Ju

n Quest had a
returning fro
g connections
ers and paren
ghout the su

Counselor In T
assigned to h

ve some fun o
hard work an
and Wheeling
nother.

are also being
interactive tr

nning for Su
a fun and suc

on, staff is abl
ove the camp
nal and proce
improve the
re possible, st
her to develop

procedures f
dless of age o

w are some of

Camps
Offer befo
plan will ca
programs w
Offer Pres
Extend Saf
but extend

un and Camp
Research o

ular trip is the
ay, the campe
g with the Ca
uly 21.

a large numbe
om camp the
s with campe
nts when out
mmer.

Training (CIT)
help at an Ear
of their own.
nd help throug
g Water Park,

g encouraged
raining will be

ummer 20
ccessful 2017
e to look for w
experience b
dural perspe
customer exp
taff will work
p more consis
from parent p
or type of cam

f the changes

re (7 9) and a
ater to paren
will mirror Ki
chool Summe
fety Town and
d the class tim

p Adventure
other swim le

e Great Ameri
ers have an ex
mp Adventur

er of returnin
previous year

ers, which wa
of their way

program is b
rly Childhood
The CIT cam

ghout the sum
, where they

d to attend m
e introduced

018
7 camp
ways to
both from an
ctive as well
perience.
with one
stency in
perspective
mp.

s that staff wi

after care (3 6
ts who are w
ds Club progr
er beginning a
d create Safe

me to a longe

essons locatio

ica trip, which
xtended day s
re Campers, t

ng staff, which
rs. For this re
s very appare
to give their

based out of t
d Camp, Camp

mpers go on tw
mmer. This ye
had the oppo

ore of the reg
for 2018.

ll be investiga

6) options for
working and m
ramming that
and Preschoo
ty Camp to c
r day.

ons and optio

20

h is also plan
so they can s
he Action Qu

h provided co
ason staff wa

ent on the las
appreciation

the Takiff Cen
p Adventure,
wo “CIT only”
ear the CIT’s
ortunity to bo

gular camp st

ating this win

r Bears and K
may need long
t is offered fo
ol summer’s e
cover all area

ns for Sun Fu

017 Summer C

ned for each
pend more ti

uest Camp he

ontinuity to th
as able to dev
st day of camp
to staff for a

nter. In additi
and Sun Fun,

” field trips as
went to Vern

ond and spend

taff meetings

nter.

Kinder Korner
ger care optio
or the older ca
end
as learned in S

un Campers

Camp Report

P a g e | 10

four week
me at the
aded to

hose who
velop some
p when

all their effort

on, CIT’s
, they also ge
s a reward for
non Hills Wate
d time with

s, and even

campers. Th
ons. These
ampers.

Safety Town

t

ts

et
r
er

is



Actio

All Ca

Cust
At the
feedb
This y
analy
the re

Score

Add at leas
Review an
half of the

n Quest & CIT
AQ – Evalu
AQ – Cont
at while at
CIT – Inves
campers a

amps
Get Glenco
make cam
Have a “Ca
as some of
Investigate
the day
Continue t
counselors

tomer Feed
e end of each
back that is us
year, 80 camp
zed using ww
egistration pr

s from this su

st two new fi
d work to im
camp season

T
uate lower rat
inue to look f
t Watts
stigate splittin
nd a more fu

oe Park Distri
pers more vis
amp Reunion
f their counse
e the use of t

to improve th
s during winte

dback and
season, a su

sed to improv
p participants
ww.surveymo
ocess, to staf

urvey were co

eld trips and
prove the tra
n.

ted field trips
for ways to ke

ng the progra
n based CIT p

ict issued bac
sible and iden
Day” in Nove

elors. Use this
echnology to

he counselor
er break to p

Survey Re
rvey is sent to
ve and make c
completed t

nkey.com. Ca
ff, facilities, a

onsistent with

eliminate the
nsition from

s and find rep
eep campers

am into a train
program for y

ckpacks for al
ntifiable.
ember where
s event as a r
send picture

in training pr
rovide input f

esults
o the families
changes to th
he survey, wh
amp participa
ctivities, field

h years past.

20

e least popula
summer scho

placements
involved thro

ning intensive
younger camp

l campers to

e campers get
registration ki
es and update

rogram. Hold
for improvem

s of all the ca
he camp prog
hich is create
ants were ask
d trips, and ov

017 Summer C

ar ones
ool to camps

oughout the d

e CIT program
pers.

carry belongi

t to see one a
ick off night.
es to parents

a focus group
ment.

mp participa
gram the follo
ed, distributed
ked questions
verall experie

Camp Report

P a g e | 11

for the first

day, especiall

m for older

ings in and

another as we

throughout

p with

nts to solicit
owing year.
d, and
ranging from

ence.

t

ly

ell

m



20017 Summer CCamp Report

P a g e | 12

t



20017 Summer CCamp Report

P a g e | 13

t



20017 Summer CCamp Report

P a g e | 14

t



2017 Summer Camp Report

P a g e | 15

Appendix A – Camp Participation Information



105

110

115

120

125

130

135
Pr

og
ra

m
Re

gi
st

ra
tio

ns

Be

0

50

100

150

200

Pr
og

ra
m

Re
gi

st
ra

tio
ns

2015

114

ar Camp

0

20

40

60

80

100

Pr
og

ra
m

Re
gi

st
ra

tio
ns

2015

43

141

Safety T
Be

201
Ye

ps (Tedd

0

0

0

0

0

0

2015

5

2016

62

194

Year

Town &
eginning

16

131

ar

y, Panda

5

52

Kinde

2017

60

185

Summe
g/End

20

2017

121

a, Koala)

2016

62

Year

er Korner

er's

Saf

Sum
Beg
End

017 Summer C

)

2017

100

r

fety Town

mmers
ginning &
d

Camp Report

P a g e | 16

t



Pr
og

ra
m

Re
gi

st
ra

tio
ns

184
186
188
190
192
194
196
198
200

Pr
og

ra
m

Re
gi

st
ra

tio
n

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80

2

3

Pr
og

ra
m

Re
gi

st
ra

tio
ns

Coun

2015

192

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Pr
og

ra
m

Re
gi

st
ra

tio
ns

015

5

78

selor In

2016

19

Year

Sun Fu

2015

94

2016

44

77

Year

Training

6

99

un

4

Camp A

2017

43

78

g & Actio

20

2017

190

2016

69

Year

Adventur

on Ques

C.I.

Act

017 Summer C

2017

106

re

st

T.

tion Quest

Camp Report

P a g e | 17

t



When
grade
was s
was d
and m
impac
Aquat
repor

n analyzing ca
e size grows o
maller than t

down 9 campe
moved in to C
cted Sun Fun
tics and Sailin
rt, as they are

650

700

750

800

850

900

Pr
og

ra
m

Re
gi

st
ra

tio
ns

O

amp enrollme
or reduces, so
he outgoing 3
ers, while Cam
amp Adventu
enrollment, a

ng Camps enr
e included in t

2015

749

Overall C

ent numbers,
does camp e

3rd grade, lea
mp Adventure
ure. The addit
as campers w
ollment and f
the beach rep

2016

83

Year

Camp Pa

grade size is
enrollment. T
ading to a shi
e increased b
tion of Aquat

were eager to
financials are
port.

6

38

articipat

20

positively co
his summer t
ft in enrollme

by 37, as cam
ics and Sailin
try this speci

e not reflected

2017

883

tion

017 Summer C

rrelated. Gen
the incoming
ent. Sun Fun’
pers aged ou
g Camps may
ialty beach ca
d in the summ

Camp Report

P a g e | 18

nerally when a
2nd grade
s enrollment
t of Sun Fun
y have
amp. The new
mer camp

t

a

w



2017 Summer Camp Report

P a g e | 19

Appendix B – Financial Information



2017 Summer Camp Report

P a g e | 20

2015
Actual

2016
Budgeted

2016
Actual

2017
Budgeted

2017
Actual

Revenue $79,153 $84,755 $100,635 $109,231 $79,804
Expense $39,395 $44,484 $45,751 $46,998 $35,625
Net $39,758 $40,271 $54,884 $62,233 $44,179

$25,000
$35,000
$45,000
$55,000
$65,000
$75,000
$85,000
$95,000

$105,000

Bear Camps Financial Trends

2015
Actual

2016
Budgeted

2016
Actual

2017
Budgeted

2017
Actual

Revenue $40,087 $46,464 $51,283 $64,524 $82,089
Expense $18,582 $23,401 $22,456 $24,299 $36,409
Net $21,505 $23,063 $28,827 $40,225 $45,680

$15,000
$20,000
$25,000
$30,000
$35,000
$40,000
$45,000
$50,000
$55,000

Kinder Korner Financial Trends

2015
Actual

2016
Budgeted

2016
Actual

2017
Budgeted

2017
Actual

Revenue $3,717 $3,870 $5,678 $7,440 $5,626
Expense $992 $268 $1,802 $2,285 $1,874
Net $2,725 $3,602 $3,876 $5,155 $3,752

$100

$1,100

$2,100

$3,100

$4,100

$5,100

Safety Town Financial Trends



2017 Summer Camp Report

P a g e | 21

2015
Actual

2016
Budgeted

2016
Actual

2017
Budgeted

2017
Actual

Revenue $36,204 $38,774 $49,563 $49,685 $55,321
Expense $13,231 $15,989 $9,494 $12,772 $16,960
Net $22,973 $22,785 $40,069 $36,913 $38,361

$5,000
$10,000
$15,000
$20,000
$25,000
$30,000
$35,000
$40,000
$45,000
$50,000
$55,000

Summer's Beginning/End Financial Trends

2015
Actual

2016
Budgeted

2016
Actual

2017
Budgeted

2017
Actual

Revenue $95,689 $97,304 $66,452 $72,260 $96,914
Expense $47,335 $52,738 $43,017 $50,288 $61,044
Net $48,354 $44,566 $23,435 $21,972 $35,870

$20,000
$30,000
$40,000
$50,000
$60,000
$70,000
$80,000
$90,000

$100,000
$110,000
$120,000

Camp Adventure Financial Trends

2015
Actual

2016
Budgeted

2016
Actual

2017
Budgeted

2017
Actual

Revenue $214,515 $211,881 $229,313 $233,406 $217,478
Expense $115,852 $117,780 $112,360 $123,112 $141,753
Net $98,663 $94,101 $116,953 $110,294 $75,725

$60,000
$80,000

$100,000
$120,000
$140,000
$160,000
$180,000
$200,000
$220,000
$240,000

Sun Fun Financial Trends



2017 Summer Camp Report

P a g e | 22

2015
Actual

2016
Budgeted

2016
Actual

2017
Budgeted

2017
Actual

Revenue $102,121 $102,829 $106,610 $108,809 $109,074
Expense $56,708 $58,039 $51,303 $54,955 $55,542
Net $45,413 $44,790 $55,307 $53,854 $53,532

$25,000
$35,000
$45,000
$55,000
$65,000
$75,000
$85,000
$95,000

$105,000

Action Quest Financial Trends

2015
Actual

2016
Budgeted

2016
Actual

2017
Budgeted

2017
Actual

Revenue $25,354 $26,010 $31,312 $30,272 $30,313
Expense $3,955 $11,176 $5,850 $9,384 $6,852
Net $21,399 $14,834 $25,462 $20,888 $23,461

$2,000
$7,000

$12,000
$17,000
$22,000
$27,000
$32,000

C.I.T Financial Trends

2015
Actual

2016
Budgeted

2016
Actual

2017
Budgeted

2017
Actual

Revenue $610,600 $632,838 $645,264 $713,451.00 $714,126.00
Expense $306,314 $337,899 $294,945 $344,239.00 $371,963.00
Net $304,286 $294,939 $350,319 $369,212.00 $342,163.00

$230,000
$280,000
$330,000
$380,000
$430,000
$480,000
$530,000
$580,000
$630,000
$680,000

Overall Camp Financial Trends



2017 Summer Camp Report

P a g e | 23

Appendix C – Camp Schedules



Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri 
 
 
6/19 
Orientation: 
10-10:45am 

 
 

 
 
6/20 

First Full 
Day of 
Camp! 

 
 
6/21 

 

 
 
6/22 

Skokie  
Exploratorium  

10-12 
Wear camp shirt 

 

 
 
6/23 

 
 

6/26 
 

6/27 
Tots & Tunes  

10-10:45 

6/28  ROOM  224 

Walking Trip: 
Public Safety 
 
 

Drop off/Pick up 
at Takiff 

6/29 
 

6/30 ROOM 222 
Walking Trip: 
Public Safety 
 
 
Drop off/Pick up 

at Takiff 
 
 

07/03 
 
 
 
 
 

7/4 
 

No Camp  
 

Happy July 4th! 
 

 
 

 
 

7/5 
 

The Grove 
10-12 

 
 
 
 
 

Wear Camp shirt 

7/6 
 
 

7/7 
 
 

Miss Jamie’s 
Farm 

10:30-11 

7/10 
 
 

 
 

7/11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7/12 
 

Beach Trip 
Drop off/Pick up at 

Beach 
 
 
 
 

Wear camp shirt 

7/13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

7/14 
 

The Frog  
Lady  

10:30-11 
 
 

WEEK 2: WEEK 2: WEEK 2:    

WEEK 1: WEEK 1: WEEK 1:    

WEEK 3: WEEK 3: WEEK 3:    

1st Session: KOALA CAMP 20171st Session: KOALA CAMP 2017  

WEEK 4: WEEK 4: WEEK 4:    

 
 

10:30-11



Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri 
 
7/17 

 
 

 
7/18 

 

 
7/19 

 

 
7/20 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7/21 

 
Pirates Cove  

10-12 
 
 
 
 

Wear camp Shirt 

 
7/24 

 
 

 
7/25 

 
Tots & Tunes  

10-10-45 
 
 

 
7/26 

 

 
7/27 

 

BG Spray & 
Play 
10-12 

 
 
 
 

Drop off/Pick up 

 
7/28 

 
 
 
 
 

 
07/31 

 
 
 
 

 
8/1 
Beach Trip 
Drop off/Pick 
up at Beach 

 
 
 
 

Wear camp shirt 

 
8/2 

 

 
8/3 

8/ 
8/4 
 

Walking 
Trip: Old Elm 
Park 

Drop off/Pick up 
at Takiff 

 
 

 
8/7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
8/8 
 
 
 

 
 

 
8/9 

 
Friends Park 

Trip:  
Drop off/ Takiff 

Pick up at Friends 
 
 
 
 

Wear camp shirt 

 
8/10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
8/11 

 
Last Day 

 
 
 

2nd Session: KOALA CAMP 20172nd Session: KOALA CAMP 2017  

WEEK 5: WEEK 5: WEEK 5:    

WEEK 6: WEEK 6: WEEK 6:    

WEEK 7: WEEK 7: WEEK 7:    

WEEK 8: WEEK 8: WEEK 8:    

 



Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri 
 
 
6/19 
First Day of 

Camp! 
 
 

 
 
6/20 
 

 

 
6/21  RED group 

Walking Trip:  
Glencoe Library 

 
 
 
 

Drop off/Pick up at 
Takiff 

 
 
6/22 

 

 
6/23 BLUE group 

Walking Trip:  
Glencoe Library 

 
 
 
 

Drop off/Pick up 
at Takiff 

 

6/26 
Beach Trip 

Drop off/Pick up 
at Beach 

 
 
 
 

Wear camp shirt 

6/27 
Tots & Tunes 

10-10:45 

6/28 GREEN group 
Walking Trip:  

Glencoe Library 
 
 
 
 

Drop off/Pick up at 
Takiff 

 
 

6/29 
 

6/30 
 
 
 
 
 

07/03 
Field Trip to  
BG Spray & Play 

 
 
 
 

Drop off/Pick up 
at Takiff 

 
 
 

 
07/04 

No Camp  
 

Happy July 4th! 

07/05 
 

07/06 
 
 
 
 

7/7 
 

Miss Jamie's 
Farm 

10:30-11 
 
 

7/10 
 

Beach Trip 
Drop off/Pick up 

at Beach 
 
 
 
 

Wear camp shirt 
 
 

7/11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7/12 
 

7/13 
Walking 

Trip: Old Elm 
Park 

 
 
 

Drop off/Pick up 
at Takiff 

 
 

7/14 
 
 

The Frog  
Lady  

10:30-11 
 

WEEK 2: ALOHA SUMMERWEEK 2: ALOHA SUMMERWEEK 2: ALOHA SUMMER   

WEEK 1: FRIENDSHIP/WE ARE FAMILYWEEK 1: FRIENDSHIP/WE ARE FAMILYWEEK 1: FRIENDSHIP/WE ARE FAMILY   

WEEK 3: PARTY IN THE USAWEEK 3: PARTY IN THE USAWEEK 3: PARTY IN THE USA   

1st Session: KINDER KORNER 20171st Session: KINDER KORNER 2017  

WEEK 4: AROUND THE WORLDWEEK 4: AROUND THE WORLDWEEK 4: AROUND THE WORLD   

Lady 
10:30-11



Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri 
 
7/17 
Field Trip to  
BG Spray & Play 

 
 
 
 

Drop off/Pick up 
at Takiff 

 
7/18*LATE RETURN  
3 PM* 

Field Trip to  
Brookfield Zoo 

 
 
 
 

Drop off/Pick up 
at Takiff 

 
7/19 

 
7/20 
Field Trip to  

Khols children’s 
Museum 

 
 
 
 

Drop off/Pick up 
at Takiff 

 
7/21 

 
 

 
7/24 

Beach Trip 
Drop off/Pick up 

at Beach 
 
 
 
 
 

Wear camp shirt 

 
7/25 

 
Tots & Tunes   
10-10:45 

 
 

 
7/26 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7/27 
Field Trip to  

Sunshine Crafts 
 
 
 
 

Drop off/Pick up 
at Takiff 

 
 

 
7/28 

 
 
 
 
 

 
7/31 

 
Field Trip to  
BG Spray & Play 

 
 
 
 

Drop off/Pick up 
at Takiff 

 
08/1 
 

 

 
08/2 

 

 
8/3 

 
8/4 

 
 

 
8/7 

 
Beach Trip 

Drop off/Pick up 
at Beach 

 
 
 
 
 

Wear camp shirt 

 
8/8 
 
 
 

 
 

 
8/9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
8/10 

 
Friends Park 

Trip:  
 
 
 

Drop off/ Takiff 
Pick up at 

 
8/11 

 
Last Day 

 
 
 

2nd Session: KINDER KORNER 20172nd Session: KINDER KORNER 2017  

WEEK 5: PRINCESS & PIRATESWEEK 5: PRINCESS & PIRATESWEEK 5: PRINCESS & PIRATES   

WEEK 6: WILD WESTWEEK 6: WILD WESTWEEK 6: WILD WEST   

WEEK 7: NATUREWEEK 7: NATUREWEEK 7: NATURE   

WEEK 8: SUPERHEROSWEEK 8: SUPERHEROSWEEK 8: SUPERHEROS   



Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri 
 
 
6/19 
First Day of 

Camp! 
 
 

 
 
6/20 
Brunswick 

(Wear socks!) 
 

 

 
 
6/21 

Campers’ Choice 
 
 

Sports 
With Coach Tommy 

 
 
6/22 

Olympics 
(Wear your country’s 

colors) 
 

        

 
 
6/23 

Beach Trip 
(All Day) 

 
 
 
 

Pizza Lunch 
 
 

6/26 
1st: MAC Pool 

 
2nd & 3rd: Hidden 

Creek 

6/27 
NEW! 

Hot Ground Gym 
 

6/28 
Campers’ Choice 

 
 

Sports 
With Coach Tommy 

 
 

2nd Grade  
Swim Lessons (PM) 

6/29 
Gold Rush 
(Wear your best 
Western gear) 

Hot Dog Cookout! 

6/30 
Skokie Water 
Playground 

7/3 
Wheeling Aquatic  

Center 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3rd Grade  
Swim Lessons (PM) 

7/4 
No Camp  
Today! 

Join us at the pa-
rade or at the fire-

works. 
 
 
 

Happy 4th of  
July!!! 

 

7/5 
Campers’ Choice  

 
 

Sports 
With Coach Tommy 

 
 
 

2nd Grade  
Swim Lessons (PM) 

7/6 
Carnival Day 

(Dress in your  
favorite costume!) 

 
 

 

7/7 
Beach Trip 

(All Day) 
 

 
 

Pizza lunch included 
Sun Fun Overnighter 

 
 
 

7/10 
 
 

Hidden Creek 
 
 

 
 

7/11 
 

Funtopia 
(Wear socks) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7/12 
Campers’ Choice  

 
 

Sports 
With Coach Tommy 

 
 
 
 

7/13 
COLOR WARS 
(Wear your team 

color!) 
Hot Dog Cookout! 

 
 
 
 
 

Popsicle Treat! 
 
 

7/14 
Vernon Hills 
Water Park 

 

WEEK 2: Goal of the Week: TeamworkWEEK 2: Goal of the Week: TeamworkWEEK 2: Goal of the Week: Teamwork   

3rd Grade  
Swim Lessons (PM) 

WEEK 1: Goal of the Week: SportsmanshipWEEK 1: Goal of the Week: SportsmanshipWEEK 1: Goal of the Week: Sportsmanship   

WEEK 3: Goal of the Week: AppreciationWEEK 3: Goal of the Week: AppreciationWEEK 3: Goal of the Week: Appreciation   

1st Session: Sun Fun 20171st Session: Sun Fun 2017  

WEEK 4: Goal of the Week: RespectWEEK 4: Goal of the Week: RespectWEEK 4: Goal of the Week: Respect   

 1st Grade 
Swim Lessons (PM) 

 1st  Grade 
Swim Lessons (PM) 

 

= Marla’s Brown Bag Lunch Available for purchase at www.marlasbrownbaglunch.com         =Pack Lunch     

3rd Grade  
Swim Lessons (PM)  

2nd Grade  
Swim Lessons (PM) 

1st Grade 
Swim Lessons (PM) 



Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri 
 
7/17 

First Day of  
second session! 

 
 
 

 
7/18 

 
Libertyville 

Sports 
Complex 

 

 
7/19 

Schaumburg 
Boomers 

Game 
 

 
7/20 
Superhero Day 

(Dress like your    
favorite superhero)  

 
Hot Dog Cookout! 

 
 

 
7/21 

NEW! 
The Oasis 

 
 
 
 

Sun Fun Overnighter 
  
 

 
7/24 

Beach Trip 
(All Day) 

 
 

Pizza Lunch 
Included 

 
 
 

 
7/25 

 
Pump it Up! 

 
7/26 

Campers’ Choice 
 
 

Sports 
With Coach Tommy  

 

 
7/27 

NEW! 
Hollywood Day! 
Dress as your favorite 

movie/TV star! 
 

 
7/28 

NEW! 
Madagascar 

At the Chicago 
Shakespeare 

Theatre 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7/31 

 
Wheeling Water  

Park 
 
 

 
8/1 
Lincoln Park 

Zoo 
 
 

 
8/2 

Campers’ Choice  
 
 

Sports 
With Coach Tommy 

 
 

 
8/3 

 NEW! 
Animal Day! 

Dress as your favorite 
animal 

 
 

 
8/4 

Barefoot 
Bay 

 
 

 
8/7 

K/ 1st Grade:  
Hidden Creek  

Water Park 
 

2nd & 3rd Grade: 
Vernon Hills  
Water Park 

 
 

 

 
8/8 
 

1st. Gr. Only: 
Pirates Cove 

 
2nd Gr. Only: 
Pump it Up! 

 
3rd Grade:  

On Site 
 
 

 
8/9 

Campers’ Choice  
Sports 

With Coach Tommy  
Gr. 1&2 

3rd grade only 
Field trip with 

CA to Action Territory 
 
 
 
 

 
8/10 
COLOR WARS II 
(Wear your team 

color!) 
 
 
 

Parent Night 
6:00pm  

 
 

 
8/11 
Beach Trip 

(All Day) 
 

DJ Party 
PIZZA LUNCH @ 

BEACH 
 
 

Sign up for  
Summer’s End! 

2nd Session: SUN FUN 20172nd Session: SUN FUN 2017  

3rd Grade  
Swim Lessons PM 

WEEK 5: Goal of the Week: FriendshipWEEK 5: Goal of the Week: FriendshipWEEK 5: Goal of the Week: Friendship   

3rd Grade  
Swim Lessons 

(PM) 

WEEK 6: Goal of the Week: I Believe in Myself/PerseveranceWEEK 6: Goal of the Week: I Believe in Myself/PerseveranceWEEK 6: Goal of the Week: I Believe in Myself/Perseverance   

3rd Grade  
Swim Lessons (PM) 

WEEK 7: Goal of the Week: SensitivityWEEK 7: Goal of the Week: SensitivityWEEK 7: Goal of the Week: Sensitivity   

1st Grade 
Swim Lessons (PM) 

2nd Grade  
Swim Lessons (PM) 

1st Grade 
Swim Lessons (PM) 

2nd Grade  
Swim Lessons (PM) 

1st Grade 
Swim Lessons (PM) 

WEEK 8: Goal of the Week: Health and FitnessWEEK 8: Goal of the Week: Health and FitnessWEEK 8: Goal of the Week: Health and Fitness   

3rd Grade  
Swim Lessons 

(PM) 

2nd Grade  
Swim Lessons 

(PM) 
1st Grade 

Swim Lessons (PM) 

= Marla’s Brown Bag Lunch Available for purchase at www.marlasbrownbaglunch.com         =Pack Lunch     

GGrGrrGrGrGGrGrGGrGrGGrGrGrGGrGrGrGrGGrGrGrGrGrGrGrrGrGrrrGGrGrGrGrGrrGGrGrGrrrrrrrGGrGGGrrrrrrrrGrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrGrrGGrrGrrrGrrrrG ...........

PaPaPaPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP



Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri 
 
 
6/19 

First Day of 
Camp! 

 
 

 
 
6/20 
Brunswick 

Bowl 
(Wear socks!) 

 
 

 
 
6/21 

Camp Adventure  
Club Day! 

 
 

 
 
6/22 

Olympics 
(Wear your group’s 
assigned country’s 

colors!)        
 

 
 
6/23 

Hidden 
Creek 

 
 

6/26 
Wheeling 

Water Park 
 
 

6/27 
 

Camp Adventure  
Club Day! 

 

6/28 
NEW! 

Hot Ground Gym 
 
 

6/29 
Gold Rush 
(Wear your best 
Western gear) 

Hot Dog Cookout! 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6/30 
Glencoe 
Beach 

 
 
 
 
 

Pizza Lunch  
Included 

 

7/3 
Glencoe 
Beach 

 
 
 
 
 

Pizza Lunch  
Included 

 
 

7/4 
No Camp  

Today! 
Join us at the pa-

rade or at the fire-
works. 

 
 
 
 

Happy 4th of  
July!!! 

7/5 
Par 

King 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7/6 
Carnival Day 

(Dress in your  
favorite costume!) 

 
 

7/7 
Vernon 

Hills 
 
 
 
 

Camp Adv. Overnighter 

 
 
 

7/10 
 
 

Wheeling 
Water Park 

 
 

7/11 
 
 
 
 

Camp Adventure  
Club Day! 

 
 
 
 
 

7/12 
Lincoln Park  

Zoo 
 

7/13 
 

COLOR WARS 
(Wear your team 

color!) 
Hot Dog Cookout! 

 
 
 
 

Popsicle Treat! 
 

7/14 
Glencoe 
Beach 

         
 
 
 

 Pizza Lunch 
            Included 

 
 

WEEK 2: Goal of the Week: TeamworkWEEK 2: Goal of the Week: TeamworkWEEK 2: Goal of the Week: Teamwork   

WEEK 1: Goal of the Week: SportsmanshipWEEK 1: Goal of the Week: SportsmanshipWEEK 1: Goal of the Week: Sportsmanship   

WEEK 3: Goal of the Week: AppreciationWEEK 3: Goal of the Week: AppreciationWEEK 3: Goal of the Week: Appreciation   

1st Session: Camp Adventure 20171st Session: Camp Adventure 2017  

WEEK 4: Goal of the Week: RespectWEEK 4: Goal of the Week: RespectWEEK 4: Goal of the Week: Respect   

= Marla’s Brown Bag Lunch Available for purchase at www.marlasbrownbaglunch.com         =Pack Lunch    



Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri 
 
7/17 

First Day of  
Second 

Session! 
 
 
 

 
7/18 

 
Camp Adventure  

Club Day! 

 
7/19 

Funtopia 
(Wear socks) 

 

 
7/20 
Superhero 

Day  
 
 
 
 

Hot Dog Cookout Included! 

 
7/21 

Cubs Game
Bring $$ for Dinner! 

 
 
 
 

Camp Adv. Overnighter 

 
7/24 

Wheeling 
Water Park 

 
 

 
7/25 

 
Camp Adventure  

Club Day! 

 
7/26 

Rainbow  
Falls 

 

 
7/27 

NEW! 
Hollywood Day! 
Dress as your favorite 

movie/TV star! 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7/28 

Glencoe 
Beach 

 
 
 
 
 

Pizza Lunch  
Included 

 

 
7/31 

Glencoe 
Beach 

 
 
 
 
 

Pizza Lunch  
Included 

 
8/1 

 
Camp Adventure  

Club Day! 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
8/2 

NEW! 
Putting Edge 

 

 
8/3 

 NEW! 
Animal Day! 

Dress as your favorite 
animal 

 
 

 
8/4 

 
Barefoot 

Bay 

 
8/7 
 

Bartlett  
Water Park 

 
 

 
8/8 
 

Camp Adventure  
Club Day! 

 
8/9 

Action 
Territory 

 
8/10 
COLOR WARS! 
Wear your team 

color!) 
 
 
 
 

Popsicle Treat! 
Parent Night 

6:00pm   

 
8/11 
Beach Trip 

 
DJ Party 

PIZZA LUNCH @ 
BEACH 

 
Sign up for  

Summer’s End! 

2nd Session: Camp Adventure 20172nd Session: Camp Adventure 2017  

WEEK 5: Goal of the Week: FriendshipWEEK 5: Goal of the Week: FriendshipWEEK 5: Goal of the Week: Friendship   

WEEK 6: Goal of the Week: I Believe in Myself/PerseveranceWEEK 6: Goal of the Week: I Believe in Myself/PerseveranceWEEK 6: Goal of the Week: I Believe in Myself/Perseverance   

WEEK 7: Goal of the Week: SensitivityWEEK 7: Goal of the Week: SensitivityWEEK 7: Goal of the Week: Sensitivity   

WEEK 8: Goal of the Week: Health and FitnessWEEK 8: Goal of the Week: Health and FitnessWEEK 8: Goal of the Week: Health and Fitness   

= Marla’s Brown Bag Lunch Available for purchase at www.marlasbrownbaglunch.com         =Pack Lunch



Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri 
 
 
6/19 

Beach Trip 
Depart: 9:30 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

 
 
 

 
 
6/20 

The Zone 
(Parkour - wear 
athletic clothes) 
Depart : 9:30 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

 
 

 
 
6/21 
Hot Ground Gym 
(Obstacles/team 

building) 
Depart: 11:30 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

 
 
6/22 

Watts Center  
Color Wars 

Hot dog lunch w/ 
chips, lemonade 

and cookie       

 
 
6/23 

Bartlett Water 
Park 

Depart: 9:30 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

 
 

 
 

6/26 
Beach Trip 

Depart: 9:30 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

 
 

6/27 
Flick Pool 

Depart: 9:30 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

 

6/28 
Chicago Sky Game 

Depart: 9:30am  
Return: 2:30PM 

 
 
 
 

6/29 
Game Works 

Depart : 10:00 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

Lunch voucher provided 
 

 

6/30 
Wheeling Water 

Park 
Depart: 9:30 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

 
BEACH CAMP 

OUT 

7/3 
Beach Trip 

Depart: 9:30 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

 
 

7/4 
No Camp  

Today! 
Join us at the     

parade or at the 
fireworks. 

 
 
 

Happy 4th of  
July!!! 

 

7/5 
Beach Trip 

Depart: 9:30 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

 
 
 
 
 
 

7/6 
Watts Center 
International 

Day 
Pizza lunch w/ 

chips, lemonade 
and cookie 

 
 

 

7/7 
Laser Quest 
Depart: 9:30 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

 
 
 
 
 

7/10 
Lincoln Park 

Zoo 
Depart: 9:30 am 
Return: 3:30 pm 

 
 
 
 
 
 

7/11 
Barefoot Bay 
Water Park 

Depart: 9:30 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7/12 
Beach Trip 

Depart: 9:30 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

 
 

7/13 
Great America 
Depart: 9:00 am 
Return: 6:00 pm 

Lunch voucher provided 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

7/14 
Rainbow Falls 

Water Park 
Depart: 9:30 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

   

   

   

1st Session: Action Quest 20171st Session: Action Quest 2017  

   

=pack lunch                         =concessions     



Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri 
 
7/17 

Beach Trip 
Depart: 9:30 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

 
 
 

 
7/18 

The Zone 
(Parkour - wear 
athletic clothes) 
Depart : 9:30 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

 
 

 
7/19 

Wheeling Water 
Park 

Depart: 9:30 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

 
 
 

 
7/20 

Watts Center  
Halloween Day 

Hamburger lunch 
w/ chips, lemon-
ade and cookie       

 
 
 

 
7/21 

Chicago Cubs  
Game 

Depart: 11:30 am 
Return: 6:30 

 
Beach Camp Out 

  
 

 
7/24 

Glenview Ice 
Center 

Depart: 10:00 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

 
 
 
 
 

 
7/25 

Flick Pool 
Depart: 9:30 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7/26 

Beach Trip 
Depart: 9:30 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

 
 
 

 
7/27 

Game Works 
Depart : 10:00 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

Lunch voucher provided 
 

 

 
7/28 

Bartlett Water 
Park 

Depart: 10:00 am 
Return: 2:45 pm 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7/31 

Beach Trip 
Depart: 9:30 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

 
 
 

 
8/1 

Great America 
Depart: 9:00 am 
Return: 6:00 pm 

 
 
 
 

 
8/2 
White Sox Game 
Depart: 10:30 am 
Return: 5:30 pm 

 
 
 

 
8/3 

 Watts Center  
Chicago Sports 

Day 
Hot dog lunch w/ 
chips, lemonade 

and cookie   

 
8/4 

Laser Quest 
Depart: 11:00 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

 
 

 
8/7 

Lincoln Park 
Zoo 

Depart: 9:30 am 
Return: 3:30 pm 

 
 

 
 

 
8/8 

Barefoot Bay 
Water Park 

Depart: 9:00 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

 
 
 

 
8/9 

Beach Trip 
Depart: 9:30 am 
Return: 3:00 pm 

 
 
 
 

 
8/10 

Rainbow Falls 
Water Park 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
8/11 

Par King Mini 
Golf 

Depart: 9:45 am 
Return: 1:15 pm 

 
 

2nd Session: Action Quest 20172nd Session: Action Quest 2017  

   

   

   

   

=Pack Lunch       =concessions 



2017 Summer Camp Report

P a g e | 24

Appendix D – Marketing Materials



Attend Camp Reunion Night!

Camp Reunion Night
When
Wednesday December 21, 2016
from 5:30 PM to 7:00 PM CST
Add to Calendar

Where
Takiff Center
999 Green Bay Road
Glencoe, IL 60022

Driving Directions

  

Hello, campers!
 
It's time to re-connect with your counselors and friends at
our Camp Reunion Night! 
 
Join us for pizza, games, and fun on Wednesday, December 21
from 5:30-7 p.m. We'll be dancing as DJ Famos! spins your
favorite hits, jumping in the GPD Bounce House, shooting
hoops, and enjoying your favorite summer crafts! 

Get more information

Register Now!
I can't make it

Camp Reunion is free for all Glencoe Park District camp alumni,
but advance registration is encouraged. The first 40 campers to
arrive will receive a special prize. 
 
And, if you love summer camp, be sure to register for next
summer now! If you register before February 29, you will lock in
Early Bird savings!  Register
 
Sincerely,
 
Glencoe Park District
 
info@glencoeparkdistrict.com
847-835-3030

 
 

Gl P k Di i 999 G B R d Gl IL 60022

Reunite with your camp friends & counselors!

Having trouble viewing this email? Click here

Camp Reunion Night
When
Wednesday December 21, 2016
from 5:30 PM to 7:00 PM CST
Add to Calendar
 
 
Where
Takiff Center
999 Green Bay Road
Glencoe, IL 60022

Driving Directions

Dear Erin,
 
In just one week, your camp friends and counselors will be
at the Takiff Center for a reunion night! 
 
Join us for pizza, games, and fun at Camp Reunion Night on
Wednesday, December 21 from 5:30-7 p.m. We'll be dancing as
DJ Famos! spins your favorite hits, jumping in the GPD Bounce
House, shooting hoops, and enjoying your favorite summer
crafts! 
 
Click on the link below to register for this FREE event! 
 

Get more information

Register Now!
I can't make it

Camp Reunion is free for all Glencoe Park District camp alumni,
but advance registration is encouraged. The first 40 campers to
arrive will receive a special prize. 
 
And, if you love summer camp, be sure to register for next
summer now! If you register before February 29, you will lock in
Early Bird savings!  Register
 
 
See you next week!
 
Glencoe Park District
 
info@glencoeparkdistrict.com
847-835-3030

 

Email Blasts

-

Website





VII. Presentation of the Early Childhood
Report

Glencoe Park District
September 2017 Board Meeting



E

F

Mich
Na

Jes

Earl
Pro
Fiscal a

hael Lushn
aomi Garv
ssica Stoc

ly C
gra
and Sc

niak, Direc
vett, Early C
kl, Early C

Child
m R
hool Y

ctor of Rec
Childhood

Childhood P

dho
Repo

ear 201

creation an
d Program 
Program S

od
ort
16-17

nd Facilities
Manager

Supervisor

s

r



2

Contents

Introduction ................................................................................... 3

Marketing & Promotion .................................................................. 4

Early Childhood Facility Upkeep & Projects .................................. 5

Early Learning Center Preschool .................................................. 6

Preschool Enrichment Programs .................................................. 9

Children's Circle Full-day Preschool ........................................... 11

Special Events & Other Preschool Programming ....................... 14

Conclusion .................................................................................. 16

Appendix A - Participation, Financial, and Survey Data .............. 17

Appendix B - Sample Forms ....................................................... 20



3

Introd
The Gle
program
a wide v
serves p
entering
participa
opportun

Early Ch

T
th
e

T
w
th
o
6
h
D
s
o
k

E
s
s
C
D
p
s
s
m
c
e
a

Another
operated
licensee
early ch
years of

duction
ncoe Park 

mming in the
variety of hi
participants
g kindergart
ating in gen
nities. 

hildhood pro

The Early Le
hrough 4 wi
ither morni

The Children
works to me
he half-day 
pen Monda
:30pm and 
olidays and

December. C
erving child
ld up throu
indergarten

Early Childh
pecial even
upplements

Center and C
Daily classe

articipate in
pecifically i
ports, arts, 

more. Speci
reate a sen
arly childho
nother serv

early child
d by the Gle

e inside the 
ildhood pro
f early child

n
District has

e communit
gh quality c
 who range
ten. Once a
neral recrea

ogramming

earning Ce
ith parent-to
ng or aftern

n's Circle a
eet the need

option. Ch
ay-Friday fr

only closes
d for a wee
Children's C
dren as you
gh age 5 be
n.

hood enrich
nts are seen
s to the Ear
Children’s C
s allow you
n activities 
nterested i
literacy, m
al events a

nse of comm
ood families
vice to the c

hood progr
encoe Park
Takiff Cen

ogramming
hood progr

s become a
ty. Having a
class offerin
e in age from
a participan
ation progra

g is divided 

nter is a tra
ot classes f
noon option

rea of early
ds of workin
ildren's Circ

rom 7:00am
s on major 
k in August
Circle begin
ung as 6 we
efore enter

ments and 
n as 
rly Learning
Circle prog
ung children
they are 
n such as 
ath, and m

also work to
munity amo
s and provid
community.

ramming ar
k District is 
ter for a nu
within the c

ramming in 

a popular de
a dedicated
ngs. Early c
m 6 weeks 
t enters kin

amming as o

into three a

aditional ha
for ages 12
ns.

y childhood
ng parents 
cle is 

m to 

t and 
ns
eeks
ring

g
rams.
n to 

uch
o
ong
de
.

rea that is lo
Glencoe Ju
mber of ye
community.
2017.

estination fo
d wing of th
childhood p
though five

ndergarten,
opposed to

areas: 

lf-day prog
2-24 months

 is a full da
who need m

ocated in th
unior Kinde

ears. This p
. This organ

or early chi
he Takiff Ce
programmin
e years old 
they largel

o early child

ram that se
s. Classes 

ay preschoo
more progr

he Takiff Ce
ergarten. GJ
rovides ano
nization is c

ldhood
enter allows
ng specifica

before
ly begin 
dhood

erves ages 
are availab

ol. This prog
ramming tha

enter, but n
JK has bee
other option
celebrating 

s for 
ally

2
ble in 

gram 
an

ot
en a 
n for 
 100 



4

Mark
Marketin
brochure
of reside
program
downloa
with deta
source o
Glencoe
trends in

event (s
piece th
commer
also bee
increase
childhoo
applicati

In additi
messag
on Twitt
Program
parent m
program
the cust
custome
expecte
program

eting &
ng for early 
es, which a
ents cite the

ms and even
adable PDF
ails on the 
of their Park
e Quarterly 
n early child

ocial media
at is sent to
rcial on targ
en used to m
ed program
od initiatives
ion and vid

on, REACH
es for new 
er, Instagra

ms are also 
may receive
ms. 42% of r

omer suppo
er service to
d to respon

ms.

& Promo
childhood

are sent out
e Park Distr
nts. The sea
F on our we
season’s of
k District inf
with details

dhood learn

a, email, fly
o parents w
geted On-D
market earl
 awareness
s were high
eo. 

H TV screen
or low enro

am, and Fa
cross-mark

e email notif
residents fi
ort and recr
o our partic
nd to email 

otion
programs i

t three time
rict brochur
asonal broc
bsite, and e
fferings. Ov
formation. W
s about pre
ning.  

yers, traditio
within a five-

emand Com
ly childhood
s and resul
hlighted as 

ns at Watts
ollment prog
cebook to a
keted to pa
fications ab
nd out abou
reation team

cipants. In a
and social 

s done prim
s per year 
re as their p
chure is dis
each progra
ver 50% of 
We also reg
school regi

On
ea
dra
cla
mo
me
for
tak
als
inc
pro
Pa
Mo
pre
us

onal media)
-mile radius
mcast show
d programm
ted in seve
a feature in

s and Takiff
grams. Staf
advertise lo
trons using

bout adult c
ut programs
ms take ext
addition to i
media mes

marily throu
in fall, winte
primary way
splayed as a
am categor
residents a
gularly inclu
istration, ne

ne of the bi
arly childhoo
awing atten
assrooms a
onitors pare
edia sites, a
r a prescho
ke a tour. T
so prepares
cluding fold
ospective p
ark District 
orning” eve
eschool op

ses multiple
) as well as
s of the Tak
ws and on s
ming. The c
eral tours of
n Glencoe P

f are used t
ff uses boo

ow enrollme
g email blas
ceramics or
s from word
tra care in 
n-person c
ssages prom

ugh the sea
er, and spri
y to learn a
a flipbook a
ry has its ow
attribute the
ude articles
ew staff me

ggest ways
od program
ntion to the 
and facilities
enting grou
and invite t

ool or dayca
The marketi
s materials 

ders for staf
parents. In a
hosts an an

ent, which a
en house. 

e channels t
s a targeted
kiff Center. 
social medi
commercial 
f the facility
Park Distric

to display a
osted social
ent and new
sts; for exam
r parent nig
d of mouth.
providing e
ustomer se
mptly in rela

sonal
ing. Over 8

about upcom
and
wn webpag
e website to
s in the 
embers, and

s to promot
mming is by

exceptiona
s. Staff 

ups on socia
hose lookin
are program
ing departm
for tours, 

ff to give to 
addition, th
nnual “Mes
acts as a 
Marketing s
to promote 

d direct mai
A 30-secon
a channels
drew

y. Early 
ct Gold Med

dvertising
l media pos
w programs
mple, an EL
ht out 
. Knowing t

excellent
ervice, staff 
ation to spe

87%
ming

ge
o the 

d

te
y
al

al
ng
m to 
ment

he
sy

staff
the

l
nd

s has 

dal

sts
s.
LC

this,

is
ecific



5

Early
Capital P
The mos
installati
above th
improve
just the 
adding s
With the
ELC, bu
early ch
walk thro

Daily Fa
The earl
Bill Eldri
custodia
custodia
including
changes
door sys
areas of
ensure t
area of t
are kept

Minor Pr
In the 20
the early
were rep
During t
shutdow
the ELC
and the 
The faci
painting
areas pa

Behinds
include t
Building
System
tempera
center a

y Childh
Projects
st recent ca
ion of the n
he early chi
ments at th
early childh
spaces nea
e increased 
ut around th
ildhood par
ough the Ta

acility Clean
ly childhood
idge leads t
ans. Key pla
ans. Each d
g; bathroom
s light bulbs
stem. Staff 
f the Distric
the entranc
the facility u
t safe and t

rojects/Fac
017/18 fisca
y childhood
paired, cab
he annual f

wn in Augus
C parking lot

gym floor w
lity is on a 
routine wit

ainted at lea

s the scenes
the replace
Automated
which man

ature in the 
as well as th

hood Fa

apital impro
ew roof at t
ildhood win
he Takiff Ce
hood progra
ar the maint

parking, st
he entire fac
rticipants to
akiff Center

ning/Upkeep
d wing is m
the team th
ayers in the
day in the e
ms, classroo
s, cleans ca
also perfor

ct to be clea
ce is open b
usually take
he facility c

cility Improv
al year, sev

d wing. Refr
inets replac
facility
st, the trees
t were trimm
was resurfa
regular inte
th high prof
ast once a 

s improvem
ement of the
d Control 

nages the 
early learn

he entire fac

acility U

ovement aff
the Takiff C

ng. In the 20
enter will co
ams. Staff r
tenance are
taff expects
cility. In add
o go on dail
r parking lo

p
maintained b
hat includes
e regular up
arly childho
oms, progra
arpets, serv
rms the sam
ared of snow
by the dayca
es on a high
creates a gr

vements  
veral small-
rigerators in
ced and im

s in 
med
aced. 
erior
file
year.

ments
e

ing 
cility.

Upkeep

fecting the e
Center. A la
017/18 fisca
ontinue to h
remains foc
ea and whe
s drop off an
dition, a new
y walks. Th

ot during the

by a dedica
s a full-time
pkeep also 
ood wing th
am rooms, 
vices HVAC
me function 
w, with staf
are start tim
h priority to
reat impres

-scale repai
n a number
provements

p & Proj

early childh
arge part of 
al year, the

have a facili
cused on im
ere the old s
nd pick up 
w walking t
his will elim
eir daily out

ted group o
 facility tec
include six 

he following
lobbies, an

C units and 
for GJK. E

ff often star
me of 7:00a
o ensure ou
ssion for life

irs and imp
r of classroo
s were mad

jects

hood progra
this project

e main focus
ity-wide imp

mproving sit
skate park w
to be impro

trail will be a
inate the ne
tings.

of full and p
hnician and
regular pa

g areas are 
nd offices. S
maintains t

ELC is one o
rting before 
am. This pro
ur youngest 
elong Park D

provements
oms were r
de to the EL

am was the
t took place
s of capital
pact beyon
te parking b
was located

oved not jus
available fo
eed for staf

part-time sta
d two full-tim
rt-time 
maintained

Staff routine
the automa
of the first 
5:00am to 

ogramming
participant

District use

were made
replaced, bl
LC playgro

e
e

d
by
d.
st in 
or
ff to 

aff.
me

d
ely
atic

g
ts

ers.

e in 
linds
und.



6

Early

and wor
engagin
fostering
extends
seven le

  1. Pers
  2. Lang
  3. Math
  4. Scie
  5. Soci
  6. Crea
  7. Phys

Making
highly tr
and use
topic aft
District t
teachab
lesson is
the teac
we thrive
and eve

The Ear
staff, wh
this area
quality p
research
Learning
consider
group. T
environm

y Learni

rk to provide
g activities 
g self-estee
a child's pl

earning dom

sonal and s
guage and 
hematical th

entific thinki
ial studies 
ative expres
sical develo

learning fun
ained staff 
 creatively.
er engaging
teachers als
le moments
s on the so

cher adjusts
e to provide
ry child. 

rly Learning
hich develop
a an attract
preschool p
h-based kn
g Center pr
r the streng

The staff pro
ment. 

ing Cen

e an atmos
that build u

em. The pla
lay to ensu

mains:

ocial devel
literacy 
hinking 
ng and tech

ssion
opment

n is at the c
guide the c
 Staff has f
g in playful
so spontan
s that are in
lar system 

s the lesson
e innovative

g Center pro
p and grow
ive part of t
rogram. Th
owledge ab
rogram is de
gths, interes
ovides care

nter Pre
Naom
mana
recen
team
the s
work
achie
asse

sphere of pl
upon what c
ay-based cu
re children 

opment

hnology 

core of the 
children as 
found that c
, hands-on 
eously ada
nspired by t
but the chil

n to focus o
e programm

ogram is ve
w with the P
the ELC wh
he curriculu
bout the wa
esigned to 
sts, and nee
e so that ch

eschoo
mi Garvett, 
ages Early 
ntly joined t

m in June of
staff of the E
ks to set the
evements. T
ss a child's
ay-based le
children ca
urriculum ph
achieve ke

Early Lean
they select

children will
activities b

apt their less
the children
ldren are ca

on weather. 
ming creatin

ery focused
ark District

hen recruitin
m, teaching

ay children d
be develop
eds, as we
ildren feel s

ol
Early Child
Leaning Ce
the early ch
f 2017. As e
Early Learn
e stage for e
Trained tea
s developm
earning. Th
n do, encou
hilosophy in
ey developm

ing Center
t activities a
l often wan

because the
son plans t
n’s interests
aptivated b
Here at the

ng memora

d on recruiti
. This appro
ng new par
g strategies
develop an

pmentally a
ll as the cu
safe and se

dhood Prog
enter. Jess
hildhood ma
early childh
ning Center
each child’s
achers obse
ental accom

he preschoo
uraging exp
ntentionally
mental mile

program. E
and materia
t to learn m

ey had fun. 
to include u
s. For exam
y the rain fa
e Glencoe 

able experie

ng and reta
oach make
rticipants to
s, and envir
nd learn. Th
ppropriate.
lture of eac
ecure in the

gram Manag
sica Stockl 
anagement

hood educa
r programs 
s individual
erve and 
mplishment
ol staff plan
ploration an
y guides an
estones acro

Each day, 
als to explo
more about 

Glencoe P
unique
mple, if the 
alling outsid
Park Distric

ences for ea

aining the b
es the staff 
o the high 
ronment ref
he Early 
 Teachers 

ch child in t
eir preschoo

ger,

t
tors,

ts
n fun, 
nd
d
oss

re
a

Park 

de,
ct,
ach

best
in

flect

he
ol



7

Use of te
an area 
utilize te
program
this prog
can hav
understa
carefully
time.

Another
required
outside
house fo
other co
graham

Early Le

2 year o

S

O
T
b
e
th
c

echnology
of growth o

echnology to
m remains fo
gram will im
e more rea
anding of d
y on to still a

current cha
d to be prov
catering ve
ood prepara
ost effective

crackers a

earning Ce

old program

Staff: Christi

Overview: T
Teachers en

uild vocabu
xperiment w
his program
hoices and

has becom
or improvem
o maximize
ocused on a

mplement m
l-time infor
ay to day a
allow childr

allenge for 
vided to stud
endor to an 
ation and d

e, but health
nd pretzels

enter Progr

m: For childr

ina Pepe, J

This program
nrich the da
ulary. Partic
with paint, a

m is to make
 opportunit

ming an inte
ment in the
e learning a
authentic, n

more use of
mation abo

activities ha
ren to explo

the presch
dents per D
internal foo
istribution i

hy snack op
s are lower 

ram Details

ren turning 

Jennifer Mu

m focuses o
ay with song
cipants will 
and expand
e learning h
ies to explo

resting deb
Early Lear

and impleme
non- screen
communica

out their chi
ppening in

ore through

ool program
DCFS stand
od service.
s going ver
ptions for pr
in cost but

an
w
sn
fre

T
th
in
re
ch
en
pr
in
ed

s

2 years old

unck & CJ S

on social le
gs and rhym
use equipm

d creativity 
happen natu
ore.

bate in the e
rning Cente
ent new les
n teaching.
ation throug
ld’s program
class. This
 play and n

m are the m
dards. Last
After some

ry well. Staf
reschool. T
higher in ca
nd cost com

will provide h
nack option
equent req

he specific 
he Early Lea
ntroduced b
esearching
hildhood ed
nsure that t
reschool pr

n a highly co
ducation m

d by Septem

Smith 

arning and 
mes, stories
ment such a
with role p
urally and o

early childh
er. While it’s
sson planni
In the upco
gh technolo
m and a be
s will be an 
not have too

meals and s
year, staff 

e initial chal
ff continues

Traditional s
arbs. Staff 
mparing oth
heathy and
ns, which ha
uest of par

classes as
arning Cen

below. Staff
and followi

ducational t
the Glenco
rogram is a
ompetitive e
arket.

mber 1

 language d
s and conv
as media ta
laying toys
organically,

hood area a
s important
ing, the ELC
oming year
ogy so fami
etter
area we wo
o much scre

snacks that
moved from

llenges, the
s to look int
snacks such
is research

her items th
 kid-friendly
as been a 
ents.

ssociated w
nter are 
f is constan
ing early 
trends to 
e Park Dist
ble to stand
early childh

developme
ersation, an
ables,
. The goal o
, with lots o

and
to

C
rs
ilies

ork
een

are
m an 
e in-
to
h as 

hing 
hat
y

with

tly

trict
d out 
hood

ent.
nd

of
of



8

Parent events: 
 Potluck 
 Winter party to end the calendar year 
 End of year bagel breakfast 

3 year old program: For children turning 3 years old by September 1 

Staff: Jackie Kozelka, Pat Beaudroux, Cindy Dinham, Natalie Daverman & Sonja 
Anderson

Overview: Teachers of this program instruct through modeling appropriate social 
behaviors and support as children begin to negotiate and problem-solve. Special 
units bring learning to everyday experiences; a class trip to the grocery store 
sparks a host of new understandings about classifying, color, and nutrition, and 
sets the stage for imagination. Learning in the 3’s room follows a developmental 
model; children learn through real, hands-on experiences, using their curiosity to 
drive discovery. 

Parent Events: 
 Thanksgiving sharing Program 
 Dad’s night 
 Mother’s day program 
 End of year bagel breakfast 

4 year old program: For children turning 4 years old by September 1

Staff: Jackie Kozelka, CJ Smith, Kathy Kraemer & Bobbie Shore 

Overview: In the 4-year-olds class, the focus is placed on learning rapidly to 
prepare for the kindergarten year to follow. Curriculum is strong and embedded; 
numbers become real through counting games and routines; letters draw life 
from songs, storytelling, rhyming, and a host of situational experiences. Cooking 
is used to teach science and socialization, as the fruits of children’s efforts are 
enjoyed together. Use of social stories promotes deepening imaginative play, 
cooperation, and cognition. Learning is interactive, with plenty of opportunities for 
children to follow their interests, test, and explore. 

Parent Events: 
 Ice Cream Social 
 Thanksgiving sharing program 
 Chinese New Year Celebration 
 Dad’s night 
 Mother’s day program 
 End of year picnic 



9

Presc
Children
play with
helps th
confiden
skills fro
but enric
are cons
because
develop
this age 
shows th
music an
enrichm
children
beyond

Enrichm
provide
environm
children
and disc
specializ
opportun
Park Dis
the high
Besides
enthusia

In the sp
offerings
large nu
prescho
plans to 
and pop
trends o
commun

STEM (s
classes
most po
and Disc
carry a t
registrat

M
E

chool E
n are never 
h other child
em develop

nce and soc
om a young 
chment pro
sidered crit
e the brain i
ing so rapid
group. Res

hat learning
nd other 
ent skills ca
excel in wa
the basic A

ment classes
a different 

ment than w
experience

coverers of 
zation or ov
nities to exp
strict has de
est level of
 academics

asm, and th

pring of 201
s from area

umber of en
ol enrichme
spread out

pularity in th
of the educa
nity and by 

science, te
allow for co
pular enrich
cover. Shar
terrific repu
tion opens. 

Math Magic 
Explore & D

Enrichm
too young 

dren and le
p
cial 
age,
grams
ical
is
dly in 
search
g art, 

an help 
ays 

ABCs.

s

what
e at home. 
the world. 

ver program
plore and le
edicated en
f care and d
s, each staf
heir passion

17, the Park
a preschools
nrichment p
ent classes
t the offerin

he fall and w
ation field a
families.

echnology,
ompounded
hment clas
ron Stern a
tation in the

and Move 
iscover

ment Pr
for enrichm

earning new

Enrichmen
Classes are

mming, but 
earn in way
nrichment te
developmen
ff member i
n for early c

k District co
s and the P
rograms of

s were com
ngs and con
winter of 20
and match e

, engineeri
d learning e
ses in this a
nd Keri Rin
e communi

rograms
ment opport
w skills bene

t programs
e not desig
instead pro

ys that come
eaching sta
ntally appro
is chosen fo
childhood ed

onducted a 
Park District
ffered and o
peting with 
ndense prog
016-17. Staf
enrichments

ing, and m
either befor
area are M

ngel are the
ty and mak

s
tunities. Tea
efits them i

s let particip
gned to pus
ovide an en
e naturally 

aff that work
opriate prog
or their ene
ducation. 

thorough a
t. It was ide
often times 
one anothe
grams that 
ff will also c
s with what

math) enrich
re or after p
ath, Magic,

e teachers f
ke the class

aching child
n the long r

pants becom
h children i
vironment r
to them. Th
ks as a team
grams for c
ergy, creativ

analysis of e
entified that
Glencoe P
er. Moving 
were low in

continue to 
t is wanted 

hment clas
preschool cl
, and More 
for these tw
ses fill quick

dren how to
run. It not o

me explore
into
rich with 
he Glencoe
m to provid
hildren.
vity,

enrichment
t there were

Park District
forward, st
n participan
follow the 
in the 

sses: STEM
lasses. The
and Explor

wo classes.
kly when 

o
only

rs

e
de

t
e a 
t
taff
nt

M
e two 
re
The



10

 J
A

 J

Sports a
Instructo
follow di
early ch
positive

S
W
P

Literacy
learning
taught b
learn ab
snacks a

 L
A
C

 L

Arts & D
Park Dis
experien
instructo
a wide v
Children
themselv
classes
and othe

M
M
T
C
K
B
S
T
B
H

r. Travelers
Amazing An
r. Builders 

and Athlet
ors who run
irections, an
ildhood par
effects in o

SNAG Golf 
Wide world o
Pre-Karate

y classes: 
 and expos

by Cari Res
bout a new l
and work to
unchtime s

Alphabet An
Cooks& Boo

iteracy FUN

Dance clas
strict uses t
nced visual 
ors and con
variety of ar
n have the o
ves, learn, 
focusing on
er art media

Music & Mor
Mitey Movem
Tot Clay Pla
Clay Play 
Kids in Motio
Budding Litt
Sticky Finge
Tiny & Mini 
Ballet
Hip Hop 

s
nimals New 
New in 201

tic classes
n these prog
nd practice
rticipants ca
other areas 

of sports 

Similar to S
sure to lette
is and Sara
letter of the
o prepare c
stories New
ntics
oks
Ndementals

sses: The G
the skilled a
and perfor

ntractors it h
rts enrichme
opportunity
and explor
n music, da
a.
re
ment
ay

on New in 2
le Artists N

er cooking N
Footlighters

in 2017 
17

: Sports cla
grams are a
 teamwork 
an increase
of life.

STEM class
ers and read
ah Packer,
e alphabet.
hildren for 

w in 2017

s

Glencoe
and
rmance arts
has to offer
ent classes
to express

e through 
ance, clay, 

2017
New in 2017
New in 201
s

asses are v
able to teac
while playi

e physical li

ses, literacy
ding. The m
sends child
Classes als
kindergarte

s
r
s.
s

7
7

very popula
ch young at
ng with oth
iteracy, con

y classes a
most popula
dren on an 
so integrate

en curriculu

r at the Par
thletes how

hers. Athleti
nfidence, an

llow for sup
ar class, Alp
adventure
e stories wi

um.  

rk District. 
w to take tur
ic programs
nd can have

pplemental
phabet Anti
each week
ith unique 

rns,
s for 
e

ics,
k to 



11

Child

Learning
opportun
Children
story tim
Children
classes.
The Chi
strategie

Children
and staf
the Brigh
classroo
parents
digital co
commun

In additi
experien
in house
Supervis
changes
an Early
is used a
parents.
increase
feedbac

One are
teachers
time tea
taking p
burnt ou

dren's C

g through p
nity to explo
n learn best
me, songs, a
n’s Circle al

Additional
ldren's Circ
es based on

n’s Circle ha
ff. In order t
htwheel Ap

om, staff wil
the opportu
ommunicat
nication.

on to the im
nced some 
e, adding ne
sor position
s based on 
y Childhood
as another 
 Since the 

e because o
ck received 

ea of continu
s. The Glen
chers and 
lace in this 

ut and lookin

Circle F
Child
comf
full-d
presc
optio
mom
7:00a
progr
befor

play is the c
ore differen
t by doing. T
and more. L
so incorpor
learning op

cle teachers
n each indiv

as placed a
to continue 

pp starting J
ll be rolling 
unity to rece
ion to occu

mplementat
changes th

ew teacher
n. Staff cont
the eviden

d Advisory G
method of 
group was 
of staff’s res
at advisory

ued challen
ncoe Park D
have very l
area, as w

ng for new 

Full-day
dren’s Circle
forting, and 
ay program
chool witho
ns. Each da
ent. The Ch

am to 6:30p
ram only br
re the New 

core of Child
nt materials
The day en
Learning is 
rates additi
pportunities
s are exper
vidual stude

a significant
to build up

July 31. Ove
out the intr
eive live up
r in one pla

tion of techn
his year inc
s, and a ch
tinues to ev
ce-based b
Group. This
collecting f
formed, sta
sponsivene

y group mee

nge has bee
District has 
ow turnove

well as a num
opportuniti

y Presc
e provides w
supportive

m allows fam
ut having to
ay brings th
hildren's Ci
pm and prid
reaks for on
Year, and o

dren’s Circl
and to lear

ncompasses
always han
onal learnin
s include Sp
rienced edu
ent.

t focus on t
pon this stre
er the cours
roduction o
pdates on th
ace for easy

nology in th
luding open

hange in the
valuate the 
best practic
s group was
feedback an
aff has see
ess and abi
etings.

en a high tu
been very 

er for a num
mber of tea
es, new tea

hool
working fam

e environme
milies to en
o look for b
he opportun
ircle progra
des itself on
ne week in 
other major

le. Each da
rn through 
s sensory e
nds-on at C
ng similar to
panish, yog

ucators that

he commun
ength, the p
se of Augu
f the app. B
heir child’s 
y accessibi

his area, Ch
ning an infa
e Early Chil
program’s
es. One wa
s formed in
nd improvin
n satisfactio
lity to make

urnover rate
fortunate in

mber of year
achers expr
achers have

milies with a
ent for their
roll their ch

before and a
nity for a ne
am operates
n minimal d
the summe
r holidays. 

ay offers ch
a variety of
exploration
Children’s C
o preschoo
ga, music, a
t implement

nication bet
program wil
st, starting 
Brightwhee
day. The a
lity and ope

hildren’s Ci
ant room, c
ldhood Pro
growing ne

ay this is do
n Septembe
ng commun
on in the pr
e changes b

e of Childre
n its ability t
rs. Howeve
ressing feel
e been bro

a safe, 
r children. T
hildren in 
after care 
ew learning
s daily from

days off. Th
er, one wee

ildren the 
f activities. 
, art, free p

Circle.
ol enrichme
and gym cla
t learning 

tween fami
l be introdu
with the inf
l will give th

app allows a
en

rcle has 
ooking mea
gram
eeds and m
one is throu
er of 2017 a
nication with
rogram
based on 

en's Circle 
to retain lon

er, with cha
lings of bein
ught on sta

The

g
m

e
ek

lay,

nt
ass.

lies
ucing
fant
he
all

als

make
ugh
and
h

ng-
nges
ng
aff



12

over the
and are 
Children
precipita
standard
wages a
Educatio

As in an
using th
students
an impo
standard
focus on

Another
offers se
to Schoo
was wel
Muffins w
Children
continue
Board th

With the
smaller.
Due to t
the full d
area. Th
kinderga

Children
Jellyfish
Lead Te
Aviles 
Assistan

Opening
has prov
This fall
maximu
and curr
focus on
room is 
Although
they par

e last year. T
focused on

n's Circle te
ates down t
ds when it c
are competi
on teachers

ny program,
e kitchen in
s to try new
rtant time i
d for life. Th
n a wide va

area for gr
everal pare
ol Night. Th
l received b
with Mom a

n's Circle pr
es to improv
hat has bee

e addition of
There are 
he range of

day prescho
his helps to 
arten.

n's Circle P
 (6 weeks-

eachers: Ja

nt Teachers

g just one y
ven to be a 
, the infant 
m capacity 
rently has a
n the care a
very individ
h this room
rticipate in a

The new st
n reexamini
eam have b
to program 
comes to h
itive and Ch
s.

 there is alw
n the Takiff 

w foods and 
n life where
he Children
riety of hea

rowth is par
nt and fam

his year the
by parents 
and Donuts
rogram as w
ve on-site c

en added to

f the infant 
only a hand
f ages acco
ool program
retain stud

Program In
15 months)
clyn Cunnin

s: Stella Ge

year ago, th
strong nee
room will b
with twelve

a waiting lis
and attentio
dualized to 
 houses the
art, music, a

taff membe
ing practice
rought an e
participants
iring new te
hildren's Ci

ways room
Center to d
expand the

e children s
n's Circle pr
althy food o

rent and fam
ily events s
 Beluga roo
and childre

s with Dad t
well as show
communica
o display im

program, t
dful of prog
ommodated
m at the Gle
dents and fa

nformation
)
ngham, Aile

eller

e infant pro
ed in the co
be operating
e students 
t. The teac

on of each c
each child’
e youngest
and sensor

rs that have
es and proc
energetic an
s. Leadersh
eachers. St
rcle positio

 for growth
develop a c
eir food cho

set their foo
rogram has 
ptions that 

mily involve
such as Bea
om added a
en. Staff wil
to encourag
w an added

ation with pa
portant info

he list of co
grams on th
d in Childre
encoe Park 
amilies from

n

een

ogram
ommunity.
g at 
per day 
hers
child. The 
s needs. 
 students, 
ry

e been hire
cesses. New
nd innovativ
hip staff co
teps have b
ns are attra

. This year 
creative and
oices. Early

od preferenc
 hired a nut
create a w

ement in the
ach Night, P
a Preschoo
l continue a
ge parent in
d value to t
arents throu
ormation an

ompetitors i
he North Sh
n's Circle, f
District soo

m infancy un

ed are highl
w members
ve attitude 
ntinues a fo

been taken 
active to Ea

staff will be
d healthy m
y childhood
ces and nut
tritional con

well-balance

e school. T
Potluck Din

ol Graduatio
adding even
nvolvement
he program
ugh a Pare
nd family re

in the area 
hore that off
families are
oner than o
ntil they be

ly educated
s of the 
that

ocus on hig
to ensure 

arly Childho

e focusing o
menu that al

 encompas
tritional 
nsultant to 
ed diet.

The program
nner, and B
on night wh
nts such as
t in the 

m. Staff 
nt Bulletin 

esources.

became
fer infant ca
e able to joi
others in the
gin

d

gh

ood

on
llows
sses

m
ack
ich

s

are.
in
e



13

explorat
differenc
mileston
compas

During t
 L

P
W
D

Frogs (1

Due to t
througho
the gros
spend a
children

During t
P
B
E

Starfish
Lead Te
Assistan

The Sta
Through
teachers
children

tion. The les
ces in deve
nes, growth
sion create

he school y
earn sign la

Participate in
Work on tran
Develop con

15 months-2

he short att
out the day
ss motor ne
 total of two
space to d

he school y
Participate in
Begin to use
Enjoy a visit

(2.5-3.5 ye
eacher: Mar
nt Teachers

rfish classr
h the use of
s create an 
build upon

sson plans 
elopment du
, and laugh

ed by each o

year the infa
anguage
n a music e
nsitioning to
nsistent sch

2.5 years o

tention spa
y to keep the
eds as thes
o and a hal

develop. 

year the ch
n a music e
e their voca
ts from outs

ears old)
rsha Cohen
s: Nathanie

oom is whe
f free choice
environme

n their voca

are written
uring the firs
hter. The inf
of the teach

ants:

enrichment
o the schoo
hedules for 

old)

n of this ag
e children a
se children 
f hours a da

ildren:
enrichment
abulary to co
side enterta

n
l Mills and S

ere the child
e, toilet trai

ent where th
bulary throu

n for each in
st year of li
fant room is
hers.

class
ol schedule
eating and

L
A
T

T
c
b
in
w
to
p
th
c
th
a

ge group, th
active and e
gain confid
ay in the gy

class
ommunicat

ainers 

Sydney Kro

dren start to
ning, and s

he children 
ugh the inte

ndividual ch
fe. Each da
s based on

 to move to
 sleeping 

Lead Teach
Assistant Te
Twardowski

The Frog cla
children to e
boundaries.
ntroduce sc
while still all
o learn and

provide stru
heme and d

children in th
heme is ap

art, media ta
his class tra
engaged. T
dence in the
ym or on th

te with teac

oll 

o gain sign
structured g
learn self-r

eraction wit

hild due to t
ay the infan
n the warmt

o Frogs 

her: Anne F
eachers: Ju
i, Cristina P

assroom is 
explore whi
 The teach

chool rules 
lowing them

d play. The 
cture by cre
daily lesson
heir learnin
parent thou
ables, song
ansitions fre
There is a g
eir moveme

he playgrou

chers

ificant inde
group activi
regulation s
th staff and

the great 
nt room is fu
h and 

osco
ustyna
Pepe, Liz O

a space fo
le learning 
ers begin to
to the child

m the freedo
teachers
eating a we
ns that aid t
ng process. 
ugh the use
gs, and stor
equently
great focus 
ent. The Fro
nd to give t

pendence.
ties, the 

skills. The 
 friends. In 

ull of 

lson

or the 

o
dren
om

eekly
the
The

e of 
ries. 

on
ogs
the

the



14

Starfish
social sk
around t
learn ab
the use 

During t
P
c
P
C
g
B
th

Belugas
Lead Te
Assistan

The Belu
The day
and lette
children
These s
and prog
children
learning
their bod
this clas
This pas
children

During t
 L

W
G
P

 L

Spec
In additi
Childhoo
classes.
commun

room, stud
kills. The le
them. You w

bout their en
of play.

he school y
Participate in
lass 

Participate in
Coach Miria

ross motor 
Begin to gai
he choice o

s (3.5-4.5 ye
eacher: Ros
nt Teachers

uga room ta
y provides s
ers; all while
are free to
tories allow
gression. T
throughout
 one yoga 
dies while b
ssroom are 
st year the c
created lun

he school y
earn how t

Work on han
Go on field t
Participate in

earn Spani

cial Eve
on to enrich
od Staff foc
 These add

nity among 

dents learn 
sson plans
will often fin
nvironment

year the ch
n yoga and

n gym class
m to enhan
skills

n independ
of center pla

ears old) 
se Pepe 
s: Amanda 

akes play a
space for th
e playing. T

o tell their st
w educators
The classroo
t the day. W
pose a wee
bringing the
always brin
class spent
ngs out of p

year the ch
he body wo
ndwriting to
trips to furth
n gym class
ish

nts & O
hments, the
cuses on sp
ded opportu
program pa

how to inte
 are driven
nd these ch
. In this age

ildren:
d music 

ses with 
nce their 

dence in 
ay

Frugo and 

and makes 
he children t
The teache
tories while
s to peek in
om recently
When windi
ek. The yog
e energy lev
nging new, 
t time learn
paper bags

ildren:
orks
o prepare fo
her the lear
s to enhanc

Other P
e Early Lea
pecial event
unities for re
articipants

eract with on
by the Sta

hildren aski
e group, lea

Dina Steind

it applicabl
to work on 
rs have cre

e teachers a
to the mind

y implemen
ng down fo

ga poses he
vel in the ro
innovative
ing how the
 to watch h

or Kinderga
rning
ce their gro

Prescho
arning Cente
ts and auxi
esidents cr
and also ex

ne another 
rfish’s natu
ng “Why?” 
arning is a n

dler

e for soon 
handwriting

eated a dict
actively liste
ds of the ch
nted new wa
or rest time,
elp the child
oom to a res
ideas and 
e human bo

how they ex

arten

oss motor s

ool Prog
er, and Chi
liary progra

reates and f
xposes the 

and develo
ural curiosity

as they are
natural proc

to be kinde
g, storytellin
tation statio
en and write
hildren and 
ays to trans
, the class h
dren learn h
stful level. T
methods to
ody function
xpand and c

kills 

gramm
ildren's Circ
amming suc
fosters a se
Park Distri

op appropri
y of the wo
e self-driven
cess throug

ergarteners
ng, number

on where 
e them dow
gauge lear
sition the 
has been 
how to cont
The teache

o the Beluga
ns and the 
contract.

ing
cle, the Ear
ch as paren
ense of 
ict and pote

iate
rld
n to 
gh

.
rs

wn.
ning 

trol
ers in 
as.

rly
nt tot 

ential



15

early ch
through

Parent-t
The pare
Early Le
througho
10:00-11
winter se
registrat
to highlig
9-month
logistics
effective
througho

Prescho
While th
special 
Prescho
learning
not. It is
importan
lot of ef
school c
become

Takiff Ex

conduct
coal and
event an
event.

ildhood par
the agency

tot
ent-tot prog

earning Cen
out its histo
1:00am. Th
ession due 
tion format.
ght it as a p

h school yea
 of the prog

e way to intr
out their ea

ool Special 
he Park Dist
events are

ool specific 
. Events al

s a never en
nt for childr
ffort into o
community.
 a closer gr

xpress Trai

or and take
d play in sa
nd positive 

rticipants to
y.

gram has be
nter. Enrollm
ory. In fall 2
he class ran

to low enro
 The progra
preschool p
ar. Staff is h
gram will yie
roduce you

arly childhoo

Events
trict offers a
 specificall
events ar

low particip
nding part o
ren to expe
organizing e
. These ac
roup.

n Day was 

e a picture w
nd, and tak
participant 

o the educa

een in exist
ment and p
016, paren

n at its mini
ollment. In t
am has bee

program. St
hopeful tha
eld higher e

ung families
od.

a number o
y targeted 
e offered t
pants to ob
of their you
erience new
events tha

ctivities also

held on Ju

with a cardb
ke home tra
feedback,

ational and r

tence for m
opularity of
t-tot classe
mum for the
the fall of 2
en added to
taff has also

at the adjust
enrollment.
s to the Ear

of special ev
towards pr

to provide 
serve, touc

ung lives. T
w things an
t allow chi
o bring Gle

ly 15 at the
The
This
offe
pop
atte
exc
fest
exp
of tr
in th
the
The
on t

board Takif
ain themed 
Takiff Expr

recreationa

many years 
f this progra

es were offe
e fall sessio

2017, staff a
o the presc
o changed 
tments mad
 The paren
ly Learning

vents servin
reschool st
unique ex

ch, see, and
his 'learnin

nd new env
ildren to p
encoe fami

e Takiff Cen
e event cos
s was a new
ered for the
pular. Staff 
endance go
cited to repo
tivities. This

plore their lo
rain themed
he express
bounce ho

ey were als
train tables
ff Train pho
art projects

ress Train D

al opportuni

as an exten
am has fluc
ered on Mo
on, but did 
as adjusted
hool page o
it to a mon
de to the m

nt-tot progra
g Center an

ng a variety
tudents and
periences
d smell in w
g' is a big r

vironments.
articipate a
lies togeth

nter in the r
st was $8.00
w event tha
 first time a
set an expe

oal of 75 an
ort 170 cam
s event allo
ove of train
d activities.
 trackless t

ouse, and p
o able to pl

s, dress up 
oto frame, s
s. With the 
Day will bec

ities availab

nsion of the
ctuated
ndays from
not run in t

d the 
of the broch
thly fee for 

marketing an
am is an 
d retain the

y of ages, s
d their fam
that encou
ways that m
reason why
 Thus we p
actively in 
er to bond

rear parking
0 per perso
at was bein
and was ver
ended
d was very

me to enjoy 
owed childre
s with a va
. Families ro
train, jump 
play mini go
lay with tra
like a train 

shovel some
success of

come an an

ble

e

m
the

hure
the

nd

em

some 
milies. 
urage
might
y it is 
put a 
their
 and 

g lot. 
on.
g
ry

y
the

en to 
riety
ode
in

olf.
ins

e
f this 
nnual



16

Messy Morning doubles as a special event for current preschool students as well as an 
open house for prospective participants. This year, Messy morning was held on January 
31 and is free for those in attendance. The event features open preschool classrooms 
with staff led activities for children to explore. Children get to squeeze, squish, paint, 
swat, and experience messy activities that cannot be done at home. Activities this year 
included painting by throwing soaked cotton balls at a wall full of paper, shaving cream 
art, painting with your feet by walking across paper, and sensory tables full of Jell-O. 
Attendance was strong for this event with over 100 people.

The Park District also offers other special events that are not specific to Early Leaning 
Center and Children's Circle participants, but are extended to the early childhood age 
range. Those events include: 

 Daddy Daughter Dance  
 Spring Egg Hunt 
 Teddy Bear Picnic 
 Mommy & Me Tea 
 Fourth of July Preschool Games 
 Meet the Machines  
 Cookie Decorating Party 
 Tots & Tunes series  
 Itty Bitty New Year 

Conclusion
The Glencoe Park District takes great pride in its early childhood program offerings. The 
agency offers a comprehensive program portfolio for this age group that allows families 
to use the Glencoe Park District as the sole provider of early childhood recreation and 
education up to kindergarten if desired. The quantity and quality of programs offered, 
combined with the excellent facility they are housed in, provides an experience that 
rivals any competitor in either the private or public sector.

Staff will continue to review and investigate trends both within the agency and in the 
early childhood industry to ensure that popular classes remain exciting and classes in 
decline are replaced with innovative offerings. Staff will also continue to hear the 
feedback from program participants, the Early Childhood Advisory Group, and the 
community at large to ensure that class offerings are meeting a need and that 
operations and procedures are constantly reviewed to meet the expectations of the 
community.



17

Appendix A 
Participation, Financial, and Survey Data 

$70,251
$86,850

$52,957

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

2014 15 2015 16 2016 17

Pr
of

it

Fiscal Year

Early Childhood Enrichment Net Surplus

384 422

296

0
100
200
300
400
500

2014 2015 2016

Pa
rt

ic
ip

an
ts

Year

Early Childhood Enrichment 
Participation

$172,279

$185,748
$191,358

$160,000

$170,000

$180,000

$190,000

$200,000

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

Pr
of

it

Fiscal Year

ELC Preschool Net Surplus



18

55 53 51

0

20

40

60

2014 2015 2016

En
ro

llm
en

t

Year

Children's Circle 
Participation

$180,339 $196,867
$160,649

$0
$50,000

$100,000
$150,000
$200,000
$250,000

2014 15 2015 16 2016 17

Re
ve

nu
e

to
GP

D

Fiscal Year

GJK Contribution to Park District

107
97

85

0
20
40
60
80

100
120

2014 2015 2016

Pa
rt

ic
ip

an
ts

Year

ELC Preschool Participation

$170,204
$154,418

$171,379

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

N
et

Fiscal Year

Children's Circle Net Surplus



19

Ea

91% o

86% o

Only
sat

86%

21
excit

100

Children

rly Lear

of participan
the educat

of participa
w

55% of par
tisfied with 

of participa
Child

 out of 22 r
ted for the u

0% of age e
returning

1

1

n’s Circ

rning Ce

nts were eit
tion and cur

nts were ei
with their ch

rticipants w
the leaders

ants were e
dren Circle p

respondent
use of an a

eligible part
to Children

00% of re
m

100
satis

14 of 
using a

2 of the 1
to

le Partic
Ju

enter Pa

ther satisfie
rriculum of 

ther satisfie
hild's teach

were either s
ship of Chil

either satisf
policies and

ts said they
pp for Child

ticipants sa
n's Circle ne

esponses
materials,

0% of res
sfied with 

16 respo
an app for

15 age elig
o the ELC 

cipant E
ne 2017

rticipan

ed or very s
Children's

ed or very s
er. 

satisfied or 
dren's Circ

ied or very 
d procedure

y would be 
dren's Circl

id they wou
ext season

were very
teachers

pondents
the ELC l

ndents we
r daily upd

gible resp
program

Evaluatio
7

t Evalua

satisfied  wi
Circle.

satisfied

very
le.

satisfied w
es.

e

uld be 
.

ry satisfied
, and curr

s were sat
leadership

ere excite
dates in th

pondents
next scho

on Highl

ation Hig

th

with

d or satisf
riculum.

tisfied or v
p and pol

ed at the id
he ELC pr

plan on re
ool year. 

lights

ghlights

fied with 

very
icies.

dea of 
rogram.

eturning

s



1/

T

Wh

Ve

Ho
wi

a

Bu

W
w

20

Appe

MONDAY

/2 1/30 2/27

Turkey Taco on W

heat Tortilla w/Shr
Cheddar Chees

egetarian: Veggie

1/9 2/6 3/6

omemade Pizza B
th Mozzarella C
and Marinara Sa

1/16 2/13 3/

Chicken Burgers
Whole Wheat B
Vegetarian: Veg

urger on Whole W
Bun

1/23 2/20 3/

Whole Wheat Wa
with Hard Boiled

endix B

Y T

3/27 1/3

Whole

redded
se

e Taco

Whole
Ma

Ch
Vege

Ma

6 1

Bagels
heese
auce

All

Veg

/13 1/

s on
Bun
ggie
Wheat

Whole
Ma
Ch

Vege
Ma

/20 1/

affles
Eggs

All

Veg

Ch

 – Sam

TUESDAY

1/31 2/28 3/
e Wheat Pasta w
rinara Sauce and

hicken Meatballs
etarian: Pasta w
arinara & Veggie

Meatballs

1/10 2/7 3/7

Natural Chicken
Tenders

getarian: Veggie
Nuggets

/17 2/14 3/14
e Wheat Pasta w
rinara Sauce and

hicken Meatballs
etarian: Pasta w
arinara & Veggie

Meatballs

/24 2/21 3/21

Natural Chicken
Tenders

getarian: Veggie
Nuggets

hildren
Janu

Mo
Lun
Afte

ple For

WED

/28 1/4 2
with
d

s
with
e

Turkey B
W

Veget
Burger o

1/1

n

e

Turkey Sa
Wheat
with C
Veget

Sausage
Englis

Che

4 1/18
with
d
s

with
e

Turkey

Wheat To
Che

Vegetar

1 1/25

n

e

Soy Nut
Sa

n’s Cir
uary/Febr

Serv

rning Snac
nch
ernoon Sn

rms

DNESDAY

2/1 3/1 3/29

Burgers on Whol
Wheat Bun

tarian: Veggie
on Whole Wheat

Bun

11 2/8 3/8
ausage on Whol
t English Muffin
heddar Cheese
tarian: Veggie
on Whole Whea

sh Muffin with
ddar Cheese

8 2/15 3/15

y Taco on Whole

ortilla w/Shredded
eddar Cheese

ian: Veggie Taco

5 2/22 3/22

t Butter and Jelly
andwiches

rcle Lu
ruary/Ma

ving Times

ck 9:30
11:4

nack 3:45

THU

1/5 2

e

t

Brown Ric

Chicken
Vegetar

Crumble w

1/12
le

at

Swedish M
Brow

Vegetari
Butter an
Sandwic

Whe

1/19 2

d

o

Tuscan Be
Whole W

Ch

1/26 2

y
Beef Pepp

Brow
Vegetar

Crumble w
and

unch
rch 2017

s

-10:00 AM
5 AM 
-4:00 PM 

RSDAY

2/2 3/30

ce with Pulled

n BBQ Sauce
rian: Veggie

with Brown Rice

2/9 3/9

Meatballs with
wn Rice
ian: Soy Nut

nd Grape Jelly
ch on Whole
at Bread

2/16 3/16

ean Soup with
Wheat Grilled
heese

2/23 3/23

per Steak with
wn Rice
rian: Veggie

with Brown Rice
d Cheese

Menu

FRID

1/6 2/3 3

Whole Whe

Chee
With Hum

Vegetables o

1/13 2/1
Turkey and

Sandwiches
Wheat

Vegetarian
Cheese on Wh

Bread with
Chee

1/20 2/1

Sweet & Sour
Brown

Vegetarian: B
with Veggie

1/27 2/2

Cheese Rav
Marinara

DAY

3/3 3/30

eat Grilled

ese
mus and
on the side

10 3/10
d Cheddar

on Whole
Bread
n: Grilled
hole Wheat
Cheddar

ese

17 3/17

r Chicken w/
Rice

Brown Rice
e Crumble

24 3/24

violi with
a Sauce



21

SAMPPLE DAAILY SHHEET



22

SAMPPLE STTUDENTT PAPEERWORRK CHEECKLISST



3 
U
 (
sl

10
   

17
(C
   
   

24
T
yo
bo
   
 

  
3
W
T
dy
  
   

23

SAMP

Monday 

Party in the
USA  

Make confet
lime) 

0 Lotsa Pasta

7 Fairy Tales
Costume Day
    
  

4 Storytime 
Telling (bring 
our favorite 
ook) 

1 Nature Gon
Wild (bring wh
T-shirt to tie-
ye)  

PLE MO

 

tti 

 4 NO
   

a 11 Art
  

s 
) 

18 Veh
 

25 Tot
   Brin
(Walk
Trip) 

ne 
hite 
-

 
 
 
    

ONTHL

Tuesday 

SCHOOL 

tful Antics  

hicle Adventu

ts-N-Tunes  
g a sack lunc
ing Field 

Y CALE
July 20

W

 

 5 Coa

  

12 Coa

  

ures   19 Lam
Field 

     
ch 

26 Co
   

   

    

ENDAR
017 Beluga

Wednesday 

ach Miriam 

 
 

ach Miriam 

 

mbs Farm 
Trip    

    
oach Miriam 

 

R
as 

Thurs

 6 Movin’ 
Groovin’ 
(Make mu
instrume

13 Mad S
     

 

20 Treas
Island 

27 Wate
(field tri

   
   

sday 

 and 

usical 
nts)       

   

7 
Fa

Science 14

 

sure 

 

21
(F

r World 
p)   

28
(C
yo
PJ
   

   
   

Friday 

Miss Jamie’s
arm 

4 Frog Lady 

1 Pirates’ Cov
Field Trip)  

8 Slumber Pa
Come to scho
our 
Js) 
  

     
  

s 

ve 

    

arty 
ool in 



VIII. Staff Reports

Glencoe Park District
September 2017 Board Meeting



Glencoe Park District 
Business Department Report 

September 2017 

FY2018/19 Budget 
The FY2018/19 budget process has officially begun! Computerized general budget worksheets and 
program budget worksheets have been distributed to staff. On September 8, a mandatory budget 
kickoff meeting/ in-service training workshop was conducted for all District staff that submit 
departmental and/or program budgets. The timeline of the District’s financial legal calendar (which 
includes the FY2018/19 budget timeline) is included in your board packet. Please make a special 
note in your calendars of the specific meeting times related to District’s legal calendar.

Front Office 
Front office staff has been busy preparing for the new school year and for the fall program season. 
Billing for the 2017/18 school year for the ELC preschool and afterschool program has started, and 
all went smoothly in the first billing month. Hard to believe that staff will soon start to prepare for 
the Watts/Winter registrations. 

2017 Levy Information 
Preliminary information and analysis regarding the new 2017 proposed levy request is being 
prepared by staff and will be presented to the Board at the Finance Committee of the Whole 
meeting scheduled for October 3.  

Rectrac Training 
On August 29-31, District staff received specialized one-on-one training with a trainer from VSI 
(our District’s registration software vendor) onsite at the District’s offices. Given the turnover in 
staff in the past two years, it was felt that it would be most helpful to bring a trainer back for more 
intensive training. (Our initial training was in 2013, right before RecTrac/WebTrac went “live”). 

Distinguished Agency Accreditation 
Staff continues to gather, organize and update policies required for the Legal, Financial and Human 
Resources/Safety sections of the Accreditation Standards Manual. As part of this process, in August 
all departmental staff completed a thorough review of all full-time and part-time job descriptions of 
the District. 

Financial Procedures and Policy Manual/Credit Card Policy 
Staff has finalized the final version of both the new Financial Procedures and Policy Manual and the 
new Credit Card Policy. These two documents will be presented to the Board for their initial review 
and discussion at the Finance Committee of the Whole meeting on October 3. 

Timeclock Management System 
As mentioned in the July departmental report, staff will be finalizing a recommendation for the 
purchase of a new timeclock management software system, and will be bringing forth that 
recommendation for Board approval. This was included in the FY17/18 Capital Projects Budget. 

Submitted by: 
Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance/Human Resources 



                           GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 
                          FY 2018/19 BUDGET TIMELINE 

By September 8, 2017 Distribute regular budget worksheets AND program budget worksheets with budget 
time line to staff. 

September 8, 2017  Budget In-service Training for staff. 

October 2, 2017 Deadline for staff to submit capital project ideas/proposals to their Department Head. 
All items must be priced.

October 9, 2017 Deadline for Department Heads to submit capital project proposals to Executive 
Director. All items must be priced.

Week of Oct. 16, 2017 Director and Department Heads meet to discuss all capital project proposals.  
Afterwards, Capital List is distributed to Executive Director and Department Heads 
for discussion and prioritization. 

October 27, 2017 Deadline to complete recreation program AND general budget worksheets.  

November 6, 2017 Capital Project List finalized by Executive Director and submitted to Carol. 

November 21, 2017 Potential FCW Meeting to discuss capital ideas with Board. 

November 21, 2017 Draft #1 of budget worksheets turned back to staff from Carol for their 
review/update.

November 21, 2017 Excel version of recreation program budget worksheets turned back to staff from 
Carol for review/update. 

December 20, 2017 Draft #2 of all budget worksheets turned back to Carol for further revisions. 

January 12, 2018 Deadline for staff changes/corrections to be made to First Budget Draft. 

By Jan 31, 2018 Proposed First Budget Draft FY2018/19 distributed to Board for review. 

Wk of Feb 5-9 or Finance Committee of the Whole meeting to discuss budget. 
Feb 12-16, 2018 Additional meetings in early March, if necessary. 

By March 16, 2018 Budget and Appropriations Ordinance (BAO) put on public inspection for 30 days. 

March 20, 2018 Regular Board Meeting -- Approve the FY 2018/2019 Approval Budget. 

April 17, 2018 Regular Board Meeting -- BAO hearing held, then BAO approved by Board. 

By April 30, 2018 BAO is officially filed with the Cook County Clerk’s Office. 

P:\budget\budget timelines\ Time Line 2018-19.doc 



Glencoe Park District 
Recreation and Facilities Department 

September 2017 

Recreation Department Report 
September is a time of transition for the Recreation Department. Staff is busy closing out the 
summer season while at the same time preparing for the fall session of classes and programs to 
begin. This summer was overwhelmingly positive in a number of different areas. The swimming 
and boating beaches saw a very high level of usage on the weekends and navigated the beach 
erosion effectively. The beach staff did a great job working hard and developing/improving 
operations to provide a great experience for all the guests who visited the lakefront.  

Summer camp was another area that ended on a very positive note. Staff ended the season with 
Camp Night, where parents and campers got to say their final goodbyes to the camp staff they 
have bonded with over the eight weeks of the camp season. Enrollment for camps has increased 
overall compared to last year, and staff continues to offer the same high quality program that the 
community is accustomed.  

No faster has summer ended than fall has started. Staff continues to focus on growing 
programming in popular areas and developing new opportunities in place of programs that are 
nearing the end of their lifecycle and low in popularity. Classes like Super Hero Lego Class, 
Science Class, Video Game Design, Broadway Bound, Youth Ceramics, and the Preseason 
Basketball Clinics have all seen incredible registration numbers and staff has been able to open 
more sections and secure additional staff to meet this demand. Staff is also working to grow 
fitness programming this fall with numerous class offerings including a rowing class and other 
traditional fitness programming. 

Another exciting event this fall is the start of Preschool and resumption of Day Care after a week 
long summer break. Registrations for these programs are strong. We have added new staff to 
both programs and Naomi and Jessica have developed an excellent training program for new 
staff. 

Early Childhood: Naomi Garvett and Jessica Stockl
We are excited to see an increase in enrollment for fall as we are increasing to 67 children in 
Children Circle. Beginning in September, the infant classroom is registered at fifteen children 
with twelve attending each day. We already have three enrolled to start in March, one in June, 
and one in August! The Frogs classroom has 14 children with two on the waiting list. The 
Starfish classroom has 17 children registered, and the Beluga classroom is full with 21 children. 

The Children’s Circle Beluga class was busy traveling this summer. The class enjoyed a trip to 
Lambs Farm, Buffalo Grove Spray and Play, Pirates Cove and attended all of our Tots-N-Tunes 
Concerts at Kalk Park. Our Starfish classroom also did great walking trips to Tots-N-Tunes. The 
Belugas also enjoyed walking field trips to some of the gorgeous parks in our community and to 
Public Safety. The Jellyfish and Frog classrooms enjoyed the addition of a music class this 
summer. All classrooms had a blast enjoying the warm weather, running through the sprinklers, 
and most importantly- PLAYING! As we gear up for the new school year, we are hosting a Back 



to School Night and Paperwork Extravaganza. The paperwork part of the evening is a new 
addition to continue to be diligent in all DCFS policies. At our Back to School Night, we 
announced the addition of some wonderful enrichments for this school year. We are adding Mr. 
Shaun, a music teacher, for Jellyfish, Frogs, and Starfish. He came in as a substitute for a class 
and had the children instantly mesmerized! As we work toward our goal of increasing parent 
involvement, we are adding a mystery reader program where parents, grandparents, employees, 
aunts, uncles, or siblings can come in and read a story to the class of their choice. With this goal 
in mind, we are also adding an Art Gallery Show in the springtime. At this event, families will be 
able to come in and listen to the children as they show off their artwork and discuss it! Children’s 
Circle will push through the winter by having Fun Fridays! Fun Fridays will include pajama 
days, guest speakers, and special treats. A few of the guest speakers we have lined up include a 
dentist, pediatrician, pediatric nurse, and librarian. We are excited to have the children learn 
about community helpers, what they do, and how the children can stay healthy. Our teachers 
have been working hard to continue to research new teaching methods and activities to 
implement in our classrooms.  

The Bears and Kinder Korner camps experienced strong enrollment. Many of the preschool 
camp programs were close to maximum capacity this summer! It was a wonderful summer in the 
Bears and Kinder Korner camp programs!  

Enrollment 2017 2016 2015 
Teddy Bears  23 19 24 
Panda Bears 26 39 31 
Koala Bears 48 56 29 
Kinder Korner 69 53 40 
Total 166 167 124 

Takiff Express Train Day was held on July 15 at the Takiff Center in the rear parking lot. The 
event cost was $8.00 per person. This was a new event that was being offered for the first time 
and was very popular. Naomi Garvett, Early Childhood Program Manager, set an expected 
attendance goal of 75 and was very excited to report 170 came to enjoy the festivities. This event 
allowed children to explore their love of trains with a variety of train themed activities. Families 
rode the express trackless train, jumped in the bounce house, and played mini golf. They were 
also able to play with trains on train tables, dressed up like a train conductor and took a picture 
with a cardboard Takiff Train photo frame, shoveled coal and played in sand, and took home 
train themed art projects. With the success of this event and positive participant feedback, Takiff 
Express Train Day will become an annual event.  

In September we are looking forward to the start of the Early Learning Center. To get the year 
started the teachers hosted a parent only orientation night to inform the families of the school 
year expectations. Later in the week, the parents brought their child to come and meet their 
teacher and to do a fun “getting to know you” art project. There are a total of 89 children 
enrolled for the 2017-2018 school year. We do have families that start throughout the school 
year, so we expect these numbers to increase a bit. 



Enrollment 2017-2018 2016-2017 2015-2016 
2’s classes 25 21 29 
3’s classes 24 27 14 
3/4’s classes n/a n/a 12 
4’s classes 40 24 29 
Total 89 72 84 

Athletics/Teen Camp - Chris Pietrini:  
Preparation continues for fall programs that began in early September. Additional instructors 
were hired for Little Sportsters, Wide World of Sports, and Tumbling to accommodate high 
demand and waitlisted participants.  

Staff has been working to meet the increased desire for basketball instruction. The preseason 
travel clinic has been extended and a preseason clinic for house league will take place in 
September. 

Enrollment  2017  2016 
Preseason Travel 49 36 
Preseason House* 39 30 
Total 88 66

*Still accepting registration; this was run as 3 on 3 Basketball last year. 

Staff is working with the Park District of Highland Park, Deerfield Park District, and Lake Forest 
Park District to schedule games for the 2017-2018 house league season. This would give house 
basketball players a small experience of what travel basketball is like, with away games at each 
of the other locations.

RecTrac is being used to track all athletic field usage and booking. Using the same system that 
we do for program registrations and facility bookings will help to ensure that there are no 
scheduling conflicts, help keep track of usage, and will ensure communication with parks staff is 
strong so that fields are always prepared before usage. This system has been tremendously 
beneficial over the past year in helping to ensure that we are as organized as possible for field 
usage. 

Arts and Youth - Stephani Briskman: 
Fall is in full swing with Kids Club which began on August 28. Kids Club is located at Watts Ice 
Center and utilizes our bus, Hilary, to transport children to and from school and their after school 
activities. Currently we have 14 children enrolled in AM Kids Club ranging from a two day 
option to five day option and one child signed up for the Watts Shuttle Service, and 41 children 
enrolled in PM kids club ranging from a two day option to five day option and 4 children signed 
up for the Watts Shuttle Service. We also offer a “School Day Off” program for most school 
institute days and holidays. The program starts and ends at the Takiff Center and includes a field 
trip during the day. For example, our first day off program is September 21 and the children will 
be going bowling at Pinstripes and then back to the Takiff Center to play games and create arts 
and crafts projects. 



Our Broadway Bound program has two sections of classes and both filled with a waitlist. We 
were able to accommodate most of our waitlist participants. There are 80 participants working on 
in Broadway Bound who will perform the play “Beauty and the Beast” in January.  

This is the second year for Little Footlighters. While we did see larger registration numbers last 
year in the Little Footlighters we are not overly concerned due to the fact that a large number of 
last year enrollees aged out of the program and moved up to Broadway Bound. We will continue 
to watch this programs enrollment numbers. 

Enrollment Fall 2017 Fall 2016
Little Footlighters 35 

3 sections 
48

3 sections
Kinderlighters 16 18 

New this fall, we are offering different STEM classes to add to the interest of our community. 
Video Game Design and Superhero Legos are just a couple of the new STEM classes offered. 
Both classes filled on the first day of registration with a waitlist, and we opened new sections to 
accommodate those waitlists. We are also offering fashion and sewing classes. 

Special Events & Active Adults: Liz Visteen 
The Park District had a busy summer full of special events. New events included Meet the Fleet, 
Kidbucks Game Show, and the End of Summer Fire Party. 

Meet the Fleet was a partnered event with the Park District and Village to showcase vehicles. 
Public Works provided a lift truck in which children and adults could ride in the lift, a front 
loader, and an excavator. Public Safety had available their ambulance and a fire engine, and the 
Park District brought over a pickup truck, a small bobcat, and a riding mower. The Park District 
also provided carnival games and a bounce house. The event was well received and the two 
agencies plan on offering this event together again next year. 

The Beach Campout had the highest enrollment ever with 186 participants. Weather was perfect 
for the event; however, the beach experienced some high winds that night, therefore staff filled 
sand bags to help participants weigh down their tents. Campers enjoyed a big bonfire, dinner 
provided by Northshore Catering, s’mores, and watched Finding Dory on the big screen. In the 
morning, families enjoyed breakfast before heading home. It was such a beautiful morning, many 
lingered to enjoy more time on the beach.  

The Kidsbucks Game Show was well received with 26 kids and 15 adults. It was a free event 
which was relocated to Takiff Center since the weather outside was wet and rainy. Kids were 
issued a ticket to compete against other kids in a variety of activities for prizes. Those who 
participated had a great time and audience members got to participate as well.  

The End of Summer Fire Party was another successful event despite the light rain experienced 
during the first hour. The rain affected attendance; however, over 100 registered for the event in 
advance with a handful of people registered at the door. Activities under the trellis were well 
received and included making glow slime, glow bracelets, gutter boats. Participants also enjoyed 



s’mores before the fire show began at 8:30pm. Two fire performers danced to music and dazzled 
the crowd.

Special Event Attendance 2017 2016 
July 7 – Tots-N-Tunes ~150 Offered by the Library 
July 20 – Park-N-Play: Water Wonders 25 kids, 16 adults Cancelled due to weather 
July 22 – Meet the Fleet ~400 Offered by Public Works 
July 25 – Tots-N-Tunes ~200 ~200 
July 28-29 – Beach Campout 53 families (186 people) 46 families (149 people) 
August 3 – Kidbucks Game Show 26 kids & 15 adults Not offered 
August 4 – Tots-N-Tunes ~150 Offered by the Library 
August 17 – Park-N-Play: Back to Nature 12 kids, 10 adults Cancelled due to weather 
August 26 – End of Summer Fire Party 101 Not offered 
September 5 – West Park Opening ~250 Not offered 

Upcoming Fall events:  
Sep 16 – The Great Mud Run 
Sep 17 – Doggie Dip 
Sep 23 – Doggie Dip 
Oct 1 – Disc Golf Tournament 
Oct 1 – GPD Annual Community Give- Back with The Night Ministry 
Oct 5 – Teen Game Night 
Oct 15 – Mom & Son Night Out 
Oct 26 – Boo Bash

We did get notice after our fall brochure was at the printer that GYS and GJHP would not be 
holding Harvest Fest. Needless to say, we were very disappointed to receive that news, but it was 
too late for us to rescue the event this year. We will discuss if this something we will put on next 
year. 

Summer adult and arts programs ended in August. Ceramics did well with new adult students 
who plan to continue in the fall.

Enrollment Summer 2017 Summer 2016 
Adult Ceramics 15 8 
Youth Ceramics 27 15 
Teen Art Programs 0 0 
Other Adult Art Programs 0 0 

Early Fall Enrollment looks good with several new adult programs offered including 
Watercolors, Drawing, The Plays The Thing: Play Reading for Adults, and Sewing. The Park 
District offered a 25% off flash sale for adult art classes which resulted in a large boost in 
ceramics enrollment.  



Enrollment Fall 2017 Fall 2016 
Adult Ceramics 40 14 
Youth Ceramics 50 63 
Teen Art Programs 10 6 
Other Adult Art Programs 15 0 

We do notice a dip in youth ceramics enrollment, but an increase in other age groups, especially 
our adult ceramics programs. We will analyze the dip in youth to see what changes can be made 
to increase participation. 

Takiff Center/Fitness: Paul Goedjen 
It was another successful year for the park district’s paddleboard fitness and paddleboard yoga 
classes that took place at Glencoe Beach. It is exciting to see the program grow each year – staff 
will look to expand these class offerings next year. 

Staff successfully relocated the consistent renters of the Activity Room to other areas of the 
Takiff Center. This was done as a result of the renovations for the new fitness area beginning. 
The groups successfully relocated include Hakafa, New Horizons Senior Band, and The Writers. 
These groups will now rent space in the community room wing of the facility. 

Over the summer, planning was done in anticipation of the renovations beginning for the 
Glencoe Fitness Area. Staff met with contractors on construction, equipment, and IT issues in 
order to ensure that the renovations take place as smoothly as possible. At this time, work has 
started on the Takiff Center customer service desk and on converting an old office into the new 
shower for the fitness area. 

On August 31, the Takiff Center hosted the annual Glencoe PTO Welcome Dinner for families 
that have recently moved to Glencoe. Other events hosted at the Takiff Center over the past 
month include a wedding reception and multiple birthday parties. 

Type
August

2017 2016 
Birthday Parties $1,450.00 $387.50 
Facility Rentals $4,017.00 $3,862.00 
Total $5,467.00 $4,249.50 
Difference $1,217.50 

Beaches and Watts Ice Center - Bobby Collins: 
As of September 4, the Beach House officially closed for the season. The restrooms will remain 
open Saturdays, Sundays and other warm days until October 15. The Boathouse will remain open 
Friday thru Sunday until October 15. 

This season the beach witnessed lower attendance compared to 2016. This can be attributed to 
the mixed weather conditions. When comparing average temperatures for August, 2017 was six 
degrees cooler than the same period in 2016. This had a noticeable impact on August daily 
admissions, with revenue down $10,540 compared to 2016.  



Boat storage revenue was strong and staff expects winter storage to be in line with this trend. 
Winter storage applications will be sent out mid-September. Staff is also preparing to send out 
surveys to beach and boat house patrons. 

Overall beach revenue was in line with 2016. There was growth in trellis, sun shelter, camp and 
storage revenue but declines in daily admission and boat rentals. The new Sailing and Aquatics 
Camps were popular and staff added two additional weeks due to demand.  

Revenue (as of 9/1) 2017 2016 Variance
Summer Boat Storage $83,121 $67,225 $15,896
Boat Rentals $16,960 $23,750 ($6,790)
Trellis Rentals $12,941 $9,636 $3,305
Daily Admissions $183,041 $191,453 ($8,412)
Beach Passes $54,530 $56,542 ($2,012)
Sailing Camp/Youth Sailing $17,498 $15,978 $1,520
Aquatics Camp (New 2017) $20,008 n/a $20,008
Total Revenue $388,099 $364,584 $23,515

The elevated water levels contributed to significant sand erosion, especially on the north boating 
beach. Staff worked to keep the beach operational by regrading sand and covering the Village 
water main, which became exposed due to the erosion. Staff also worked with the Village and 
Water Plant to support their water intake cleaning. In September, the erosion became worse, 
which made launching our safety boat difficult. We arranged with Winnetka Beach to store and 
launch our safety boat from that location for the remainder of the season. We also moved some 
boats from the Boating Beach to the South Beach for the convenience of our boaters. 
In preparation for the skating season, Watts’s staff has been busy booking ice and programming 
skating and hockey classes. Watts opens Friday, November 24.  

Submitted by: 
Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director 



What to look forward to this year... 
ENRICHMENT CLASSES: 
Jellyfish– Music with Mr. Shaun 

Frogs– Music with Mr. Shaun 

Starfish– Music with Mr. Shaun and Coach Miriam 

Belugas– Spanish class and Coach Miriam  

FAMILY	FUN	EVENTS:	
Annual	November	Potluck	

January	Messy	Morning		

First	Annual	Artwork	Gallery	in	May	

August	Beach	Night	

COMMUNITY 
INVOLVEMENT 

Visits from: 

Mystery Readers  

Pediatrician  

Pediatric Nurse 

Librarian  

DenƟst 

More to come! 

These community  

helpers will come in to 
talk to the children 

about what they do and 
what the children can 
do to keep themselves 

healthy! 

WINTERTIME FUN FRIDAYS 

Come winter the months seem a bit longer 
and we all need a little pick me up! Every  

Friday will be a FUN FRIDAY from  

December-February. Fridays may include a 
special event in the building, a theme such 
as pajama day, a special treat, or a guest!  







Glencoe Park District 
Parks & Facilities Maintenance Report 

September 2017 

Administrative 
I have continued to work with AltaManu relating to the West Park, Astor Park and Takiff 
Parking projects. I am continuing to work with ACG relating to the Takiff Lead Paint Study. I 
have continued to coordinate the Fitness Center Construction with Wight Design. 

Grounds/Horticulture
The landscape crews have been out in full force completing plantings at the West Discovery 
Area and Astor Park. Staff has begun fall pruning, bed preparations and has been working on 
natural area maintenance. The pathways at the Bob Everly Wildflower Sanctuary received new 
mulch and pruning was done to widen the pathways for the Mud Run. 

Parks Maintenance & Construction 
Staff installed new park identification signs throughout the district. At West and Astor parks staff 
installed benches, trash receptacles and split rail fencing. 

Staff has been busy making preparations for the first Mud Run race. The event spans across 
multiple parks and natural areas. Staff completed the installation and manufacture of many of the 
obstacles used in the race.

Staff is beginning the process of fall athletic turf maintenance including aerating, seeding and 
weed treatments. Staff continues to groom baseball fields, soccer fields and football fields.  

Facilities 
The new floor at Watts was installed during the facility shut down in late August. Staff used over 
20 gallons of paint to repaint the entire first floor of Watts. The new paint job and floor has given 
the old facility a new glow. In addition, we are preparing to complete the leak repair at Watts Ice 
Rink. The cooling floor has been drained and concrete will be removed this month.  

During the Takiff Center shutdown, staff was busy cleaning, painting, updating the ceramics 
studio and preparing for the fitness area project. Staff has continued updating the facility with 
LED lights and fixtures. During the shutdown, the gym floor was refinished, multipurpose wing 
counter tops were replaced, a new awning was installed, all trees were trimmed and the boilers 
received an upgrade. Applied Controls is currently making progress in updating the BAS system.  

Equipment
The John Deere Gator, primarily used for snow removal, was sent out for bi-annual maintenance.

Shared Services 
The Village of Glencoe has continued to support the Park District by performing 
maintenance on vehicles. 
I am currently managing tree maintenance on District 35 property with our contractor. The 
school district is reimbursing the park district for all costs. 
We have continued to cut all Village of Glencoe grass per the shared services agreement. 

Submitted by: 
Chris Leiner, Director of Parks & Maintenance 



Glencoe Park District 
Marketing/Communications Report 

September 2017 

Social Media/Email 
We ended the month of August with 
39,453 Facebook impressions (in 2016, 
we ended the month with 73,055 
impressions). We now have 1318 
followers on Facebook, 758 followers 
on Twitter and 773 followers on 
Instagram. Glencoe Beach has 1625 
followers on Facebook.

We sent out several targeted email 
blasts, primarily focused on filling fall 
classes with low enrollment and special 
events.

Date Subject Total
Sent

Open
Rate

Mobile
Open

Desktop
Open

Click
Rate

Thu, Aug 31 Fall Adult Art Class Flash Sale 4863 21.70% 55.60% 44.40% 4.90%
Wed, Aug 30 Preschool Enrichments 53 61.50% 54.70% 45.30% 37.50%
Mon, Aug 28 Disc Golf Classes & Tournament 4840 26.50% 52.50% 47.50% 1.90%
Wed, Aug 23 Mud Run Email 2 4842 26.20% 57.10% 42.90% 6.40%
Tue, Aug 22 West Park Opening 4847 31.40% 58.80% 41.20% 9.40%
Mon, Aug 21 Fire Party Reminder 4633 27.70% 60.30% 39.70% 2.90%
Sun, Aug 20 Disco Dance Party 722 41.60% 67.00% 33.00% 4.00%
Wed, Aug 16 Park n Play August 891 36.30% 62.10% 37.90% 5.70%
Wed, Aug 16 Takiff Center Closed 8/21 8/27 146 47.20% 45.50% 54.50% 6.00%
Mon, Aug 14 Boater/Beach letter 544 63.90% 59.40% 40.60% 0.30%
Sat, Aug 12 Mud Run Email 1 4663 28.00% 65.90% 34.10% 8.30%
Thu, Aug 10 Fire Party 4641 28.90% 61.90% 38.10% 2.20%
Mon, Aug 7 Summer's End Camps 619 46.10% 60.80% 39.20% 24.40%
Thu, Aug 3 Play On Passport 662 35.70% 60.50% 39.50% 10.30%
Tue, Aug 1 Kidsbucks Show reminder 643 29.80% 65.00% 35.00% 9.10%

Glencoe Quarterly 
This fall, the Park District had the cover of Glencoe Quarterly. I’d like to thank Ava and Sophia 
Boron for posting for the cover photo at West Park! The newsletter will be sent out the first week 
of September with content from the Park District, Village, School District, Family Service of 
Glencoe. 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

Facebook Twitter Instagram

Social Media Followers
Likes at the end of August

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017



IPRA Agency Showcase 
Once again, I will be the co-chair of the judging committee for the IPRA Agency Showcase, the 
annual marketing awards program held during IPRA’s Annual Conference. Our committee is 
looking for judges to spend the day at the conference, reviewing park district materials ranging 
from websites and social media campaigns to brochure series and green marketing programs. Let 
me know if you are interested in acting as a judge! 

Special Events 
I worked with the Recreation Team to promote the End of Summer Fire Party, a new beach event 
designed to capitalize on the end of the summer, as well as Park-N-Play and the Kidsbucks 
Show. I created an email blast, flyers, posters, event signage, and social media posts to promote 
the event.  

Play On Passport 
This fall, we introduced our new Play On program, which highlights classes designed to give you 
an active start to physical literacy, which is the ability, confidence, and desire to be physically 
active for life. By participating in programs which focus on sharpening each of these skills, our 
kids will be on their way to becoming more physically literate and, ultimately, active for life. 
The program kicked off with a one-page spread in the fall brochure and icons on programs 
throughout the brochure that encourage physical literacy skills. Our summer intern, Patrick 
Lentz, created a series of videos during July (National Park & Recreation Month) to promote 
Play On programs. The videos were shared on social media and featured instructors from Play 
On programs. We also sent an email blast out to all residents with links to Play On programs and 
have been posting articles on the news section of our website. This will be an on-going program, 
with a publicity emphasis designed at registration times.  

Submitted by:  
Erin Maassen, Manager of Marketing and Communications 







































SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING 
Agenda and Minutes 

Wednesday, July 19, 2017 / 11:00 a.m.
(Please Note: Items in red print require action) 

1. Call to order at 11:06 a.m. 

Roll Call:  Present: Carol Mensinger, Chris Leiner, Mike Lushniak, Liz Visteen, Paul Goedjen, Naomi Garvett 
and Lorise Weil.  Absent:  Lisa Sheppard. 

2.   Review of the Minutes:  The Safety Committee Minutes from June 29, 2017 were reviewed and accepted.   

3. Accident/Incident Review:  Carol reported that there were four (4) minor accident/incident reports.   

4. Open Claims:  Carol reported that there was one property claim still open: (1) First Student bus hit a bollard.   

5. Carry Over Items:  

a) Lorise asked about the Safety Manual and asked if we could possibly review the manual to see what 
should and should not be in it.  It was decided by all that the Safety Committee members would 
review the Safety Manual, via section, in October 2017.  It is at that time we will take an in-depth look 
at what should be mutually included in the manual.   

b) Lorise asked if, and when, we will be having a tornado or severe weather drill, in addition to a Facility 
Lockdown drill.  It was decided that Chris, Carol and Mike will follow-up with this question at the next 
A-Team meeting.  Note:  This will be conducted during our “All Staff Training,” which is scheduled for 
August 17, 2017.     

   
6. Certificate of Insurance Information:  Please continue to submit any needed Certificate of Insurance 

information, as requested.  The COIs should be updated on a monthly basis.   

7. New Items:   

a) Chris stated that an outside firm will be testing all water at the Takiff Center, as well as other areas.  
This testing will take place on Tuesday, July 25, 2017.   

b) Mike asked about needed documentation being requested by Northwestern University for their winter 
events. Paul is going to double check with PDRMA on this.   

c) Mike would like to give kudos to the Beach Staff and Counselors for doing a great job when the 
Beach was audited on July 11, 2017.   

d) Paul stated that Public Safety will be reviewing the Intruder Plan and will be talking about it at our 
Staff Safety Training, scheduled for August 17, 2017.   

   

Adjourn:  11:15 a.m.

Due to the Staff Safety Training that will take place on Thursday, August 17, 2017, the next 
Safety Committee Meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, September 20, 2017 at 11:00 a.m.



IX. Executive Director Report

Glencoe Park District
September 2017 Board Meeting



Glencoe Park District 
Executive Director’s Report 

September 2017 

Camp
We had amazing Summer Camp sessions! Stephani Briskman, Chris Pietrini, and Naomi Garvett 
will be presenting the final camp report to the Board, which is included in the packet. 

Early Childhood 
The preschool year is off to a great start and Children Circle resumed with a lot of new 
participants after a one week vacation in August. We thought this would be a perfect time to 
present to the Board the Early Childhood report. 

Staff Training 
The business, recreation, and facility managers and other key staff participated in a four day 
training with VSI. Now that staff is familiar with the basics of our registration software we 
wanted to do a more in depth training so that staff can utilize all of the software’s potential to be 
more effective and efficient in their positions. 

Seasonal Employee Survey  
We conducted our third annual employee survey to provide seasonal staff an opportunity to share 
their opinion and provide feedback about their employment at the Glencoe Park District. All 
seasonal recreation and facility employees were asked to complete this survey. Out of 
approximately 100 seasonal staff, 78 responded. The constructive feedback is important in 
evaluating how the Park District is doing as an employer and is an essential tool for future 
changes/improvements. We had more staff that indicated this was their first summer. As with 
every survey, we gathered useful information to improve our services to not only our staff, but 
also those who attend our programs. We will take notes of the areas that we could improve on 
when budgeting and planning staff training next year. Attached is a summary of the survey 
results. 

West Park 
West Park opened with great reviews earlier this month. This park is unique, inspires play and 
also has areas for creative art or just sitting and thinking. This park is also a model in 
intergovernmental cooperation. Together as a community we can accomplish great things. 

Building Improvements 
During the August one week closure a great deal was accomplished. A new awning was installed 
at the west entrance of the building to encourage foot traffic through that entrance, the new 
registration desk was installed to facilitate easier conversations with our customer service staff, 
new shelves were installed in the ceramics room, construction on washrooms and fitness area 
began, a new opening for easier access from the registration area to the fitness area was installed, 
other smaller projects were completed and the new floor was installed and painting completed at 
the Watts Ice Center. Construction for the Glencoe Fitness Area and shower rooms have begun 
with estimated completion by November. Construction on the parking area and walking trail will 
begin on September 18. Due to the parking lot construction, we have moved 25 GJK and ELC 



2

staff to the Old Green Bay Road train lot. The remainder of staff on site will have their parking 
spots moved though out the course of the fall. We are developing a system where staff is notified 
via text in the morning if their spot has changed and where they will need to park. This may 
require staff to park on the street or other remote locations and walk or be shuttled in. We will be 
staging construction staff and equipment on the fields as much as possible and then complete 
restoration work after the project is complete. We acknowledge that the parking situation will be 
difficult on staff throughout the fall and appreciate their patience. 

Intergovernmental Cooperation 
Village Wide Active Transport Plan 
I am pleased to report that the Village Board has concurred with the Village Staff’s 
recommendation to engage in an Active Transportation Plan with the Active Transportation 
Alliance for the Village of Glencoe, in partnership with School District 35 and the Glencoe 
Park District. The proposed biking and walking study will provide a detailed and resident 
prioritized action plan for potential improvements to biking, walking, and transit in the 
Village of Glencoe. Such recommended improvements could include the following: 
infrastructure improvements to sidewalk networks, path and trail expansions to tie us into the 
extensive regional trail network, and targeted recommended improvements to provide for 
safe travel for Glencoe children to and from parks and schools. This item will be placed 
before the Village Board for formal consideration at the September 21 Village Board 
meeting. Upon the approval of that Agreement, planning meetings for the parties involved 
will begin. The Park District’s financial commitment for study is $5,000. 

Steering Committee Workshop on Tudor Court 
As you may recall, the Village of Glencoe recently approved the Downtown Plan and it 
strongly emphasized the importance of the public spaces for their contributions to Downtown 
Glencoe as a special place. The Downtown Plan recommended that consideration be given to 
create a “special environment” streetscape treatment on the Tudor Court in order to 
emphasize the arts hub and retail environment that compliments the new Writers Theater. 
The opportunity before them right now is to look to creative approaches to the physical 
attributes of the Tudor Court including pavement, curb lines, sidewalk, public lighting as 
well as ways to enhance users’ experience.  

With this in mind, at their meeting the Village approved an agreement with Teska Associates 
to consider opportunities to design that special environment. They developed a stakeholder 
focus group to consider and evaluate a wide range of design alternatives and I happily agreed 
to serve on this focus group when asked to participate. As you are aware, Tudor Court is 
home to Friends Park and WLC Park. I will keep you up to date on the process as we move 
forward.

Sustainability Committee 
Chris Leiner continues to be the liaison to the Village wide sustainability committee. 
Commissioner Onderdonk also serves on that committee. 

School Partnerships 
With the start of the school year it is important to acknowledge our partnership with the 



3

school district. The District allows us to use their facilities for afterschool and athletic 
programs in return we maintain the field areas around the schools. This and the partnership 
with West Park are examples of great partnerships we have developed with the school 
district.

Goal Update – six month 
Attached is the six month goal update. As you can tell we have been busy this month and a lot is 
getting accomplished. 

Strategic Planning 
The last Strategic plan that the District approved was a plan for 2011- 2015. It is time to embark 
on a new strategic planning process. The action item’s attached information outlines the 
proposed process by Heller and Heller Consulting, LLC (HHC). A Strategic Plan is different 
from a Master Plan. A Master Plan deals primarily with physical assets, or the bricks and mortar 
of a district, including parks and facilities. A strategic plan focuses on an agency’s leadership 
infrastructure, or the strategic direction of the organization, in alignment with the mission and 
vision. Strategy can include areas related to staffing and structure, future requirement for 
organizational competencies, the need for increasing business sophistication and technology, 
service deliver, operational excellence, and how to position the district in alignment with 
changing demographics and industry trends. 

Barbara Heller from Heller and Heller Consulting lead the Master Plan process for our agency. 
She is familiar with Glencoe because of that extensive process and I feel that her insight is 
critical to the success of the plan. In addition Barbara is well known throughout the parks and 
recreation industry for her expertise in leadership, innovation, and best practices. She frequently 
appears at state and national conferences and has a reputation for delivering excellent content 
with passion and energy. 

Barbara was director of two park districts in the Chicago area and worked for large park systems 
in Maryland, Virginia, Texas, and Illinois where she was renowned for her leadership qualities 
and successfully designing work cultures that created high performance. While with the Elk 
Grove Park District, Barbara won the Lincoln Award Commitment to Excellence, a Malcom 
Baldrige state quality award program. 

Barbara holds a Master of Public Administration from the American University, Washington, 
D.C., and a Bachelor of Science in Recreation and Parks, from Pennsylvania State University. 

In addition to owning her own company, Barbara has also joined SGR as Sr. Vice President in 
the company’s new Boston office as SGR expands its footprint into the New England area. 
Barbara’s focus will be on Servant Leadership Implementation, Strategic Planning, I-OPT 
Workshops, Parks and Recreation Recruitment, and Live Training. 

I have completed reference check on seen past work and she comes highly recommended. 

The entire process should take four months and will require additional meetings with both the 
Board and the public. 



4

I am looking for a commitment to the Strategic Planning process and to move ahead with Heller 
and Heller Consulting to provide direction and consultation in this process. 

Freedom of Information Report 
There was one FOIA request this month from SmartProcedure requesting purchasing records. 
This was received on Tuesday, August 15 and responded to on Friday, August 18. 

Staff News 
I am happy to announce that Bobby Collins will be our new Director of Recreation and 
Facilities. We had many qualified candidates for this position and Bobby rose to the top. You are 
all aware of his ability to problem solve, innovate, and develop positive relationships with 
stakeholders along with his superb day to day management of the Beach and Watts. Previous to 
Glencoe, Bobby was the Sailing School Director for the Chicago Yacht Club. While leading the 
Yacht Club’s aquatic program, he grew the program by 50% and supervised full-time staff. 
Included in his responsibilities was the logistics, management, and customer service of over 400 
youth traveling throughout the United States. He has a finance degree from the University 
College Dublin and the first few years of his career, he worked with the COO of a bank on their 
restructuring plan. Budgeting, financial, and strategic planning were core to his role at the bank 
and a strength that he will bring to this position. He then realized his passion lay more in 
recreation. With his programming and management experience combined with his analytical 
skills we believe he will make invaluable contributions to safety, leadership, and programming at 
the Glencoe Park District. Being an internal candidate, we also have the added bonus of 
continuing the foundation that Mike and I have built in the department. Bobby has intangible 
skills that you just cannot teach such as innovation, accountability, attitude, and hard working. 
Bobby will officially transition into his new role at the Park District on September 11 and his 
first task will be replacing his position. 

GPD Annual Community Give-Back Day 
GPD Annual Community Give-Back day is scheduled for Sunday, October 1 from 1:00-4:00pm. 
This is a first annual event and is in conjunction with The Night Ministry. This day is meant to 
be a day of Education and Impact and is recommended for grades 6 – adult. This day will 
empower our kids, ourselves, and our community to learn about issues related to homelessness in 
Chicago and the suburbs. This day will include viewing an award winning documentary, 
participate in expert-led discussion sessions, tour the Night Ministry’s custom-designed outreach 
bus and prepare meals for The Night Ministry’s Outreach program. At the end of the day, we 
will have a pizza party and a band from the School of Rock! I hope the Board can join me on that 
day!

Items that you may want to add to your calendar 
September 17 & 23: Doggie Dip at Glencoe Beach 2:00-3:00pm 
September 16: The Great Mud Run at Watts Park 9:00-11:00am 
September 26: NRPA Gold Medal Announcement! 
October 1: GPD Annual Community Give Back at Takiff Center 1:00-4:00pm 
October 3: Finance and Special Projects Committee Meetings at Takiff Center 7:00pm 
October 15: Mother & Son Date Night at Takiff Center 5:00-7:00pm 
October 17: Finance Committee of the Whole and Board Meeting at Takiff Center 7:00pm 



5

October 26: Boo Bash at Takiff Center 5:00-7:30pm 
November 18: Snoopy Thanksgiving at Takiff Center 10:00-11:30am 
November 22: Merry and Bright Holiday Celebration at Kalk Park 4:00-6:00pm 
November 24: Black Ice Friday at Watts Park 6:00-8:00pm 

Action Items 
A. Approval of FY 2018/19 Master Plan Capital Projects 
B. Approval to Proceed with Glencoe Park District 3-Year Strategic Plan 
C. Approval to Change Time of October 17 Regular Board Meeting 
D. Approval of a Web Based Time Clock Management Software System 
E. Approval of the Altamanu, Inc. Contract for Playground Design Services for 2018/2019 

Capital Projects 

Submitted by:
Lisa Sheppard, CPRP 
Executive Director 



2017 Glencoe Park District
Summer Employee Survey Results

Question Yes No
Total

Responses
I received Proper training to perform my job well. 87.18% 12.82% 68
I have the tools and resources I need to perform my job well. 93.59% 6.41% 73
I am treated with courtesy, respect, and dignity by my coworkers. 97.40% 2.60% 75
My work environment is safe. 100.00% 0.00% 77
Overall, our parks and facilities are clean and in good condition. 98.72% 1.28% 77
I am treated with courtesy, respect, and dignity by my immediate supervisor. 97.44% 2.56% 76
I am treated with courtesy, respect, and dignity by my program/facility manager. 94.87% 5.13% 74
I receive useful and constructive feedback from my immediate supervisor. 91.03% 8.97% 71
I receive useful and constructive feedback from my program/facility manager. 84.62% 15.38% 66
I feel valued at work. 88.31% 11.69% 68
There is a strong feeling of teamwork and cooperation in my department. 94.81% 5.19% 73
Glencoe Park District maintains a high standard of customer service. 100.00% 0.00% 77

Question Excellent Good Fair Poor
Total

Responses
How well were you trained to perform your job responsibilities? 44.16% 48.05% 6.49% 1.30% 77
How would you rate the effectiveness of your orientation? 31.17% 42.86% 22.08% 3.90% 77
What was your confidence level related to performing your duties after your training? 48.05% 46.75% 5.19% 0.00% 77
Did you have clear expectaitons of your role and responsibilities after training? 44.16% 46.75% 6.49% 2.60% 77

Question
Strongly
Agree Agree Disagree

Strongly
Disagree

Total
Responses

I am satisfied with my job. 38.46% 57.69% 3.85% 0.00% 78
I know my role in fulfilling Glencoe Park District's mission. 58.97% 37.18% 2.56% 1.28% 78
Glencoe Park District does an excellent job of keeping employees informed about matters affecting us. 42.31% 50.00% 5.13% 2.56% 78
Glencoe Park District has a positive image to my friends and family. 61.54% 30.77% 7.69% 0.00% 78
My job makes a difference in the lives of others. 6154.00% 30.77% 7.69% 0.00% 78
Overall, I had a positive work experience at Glencoe Park District. 55.13% 43.59% 1.28% 0.00% 78

Question Yes No
Total

Responses
Would you encourage a friend to apply for a job at Glencoe Park District? 85.90% 14.10% 78



2017 Glencoe Park District
Summer Employee Survey Results

Question Beach Boat Camp
Rec

Programs
Total

Responses
What is your primary area of summer employment? Select one answer 20.51% 6.41% 73.08% 0.00% 78

Question
1

Summer
2 3

Summers
4 5

Summers
5+

Summers
Total

Responses
How many summers have you worked at Glencoe Park District? 62.34% 31.17% 5.19% 1.30% 77

Question Yes No
Total

Responses
Do you supervise any summer employees? 13.16% 86.84% 76

Question 16 18 19 22 23 34 35 44 45 54 55+
Total

Responses
What is your age? 67.11% 27.63% 3.95% 0.00% 1.32% 0.00% 76

Question

Sun Fun/
Camp

Adventure
Action
Quest Beach

Bears/
ELC

Camp Other CIT Boat
Total

Responses
Employee Type 43.59 8.97 20.51% 15.38% 5.13% 0.00% 6.41% 78



PARK DISTRICT
ANNUAL GOALS FOR FY 2017/2018

GOAL STATUS:

NOT STARTED

HOLD

COMPLETED

STARTED



2

PARK DISTRICT
ANNUAL GOALS FOR FY 2017/2018

1 Goal:  Deliver Innovative Programs and Services that align with current and future 
needs of the community.

Fiscal Year: 17-18 
Objective Responsible 

Person
Status
Update 
9/2017 

Completion
Date 

1 Develop a new “Aquatics Camp” program to attract 
new beach goers

Bobby Completed 8/17

2 Restructure and re-brand the youth sailing program to 
“Sailing Camp” to grow enrollment

Bobby Completed 8/17

3 Offer more flexible and frequent adult sailing classes
Offered but did not impact enrollment

Bobby Completed 8/17

4 Meet all deadlines necessary to support staff in 
opening the fitness center. Coordinate contractor 
access to the facility and act as owners representative 
in absence of Director of Parks

Bill 12/17

5 Use focus groups and survey results to determine the 
course for Travel Basketball

Chris P Completed 12/17

6 Restructure the Counselor In Training program to 
provide more training and coaching opportunities to 
develop future staff.

Chris P Completed  8/17

7 Offer five (5) new small special events to the 2017-18 
Glencoe Park District calendar.  

Teddy Bear Picnic – March 2017 
Open Mic Night – March 2017 - CANCLELED 
Mommy & Me Tea – May 2017 - CANCELLED 
Cookie Decorating – May 2017 
Cardboard Regatta – June 2017 
Kids Bucks Game Show – August 2017 

Upcoming events… 
Teen Game Night – October 2017 
Feed My Starving Children – October 2017 
Nerf Battle – November 2017 
Snoopy Thanksgiving – November 2017 
Gingerbread House Decorating – December 2017 

Liz V Started 2/18

8 Create and implent new annual event: The Great Mud 
Run (Youth Obstacle Race). Event scheduled for 9/16

Liz V, Mike L, 
and Parks Team 

Started 2/18

9 Introduce a wellness and physical literacy program 
spanning across the entire agency program portfolio 
rasing awareness for healthy lifestyles and 
encouraging participants to diversify program 
enrollments. Included in the Fall 2017 brochure:  See Pay 
On Passport

Mike and 
Recreation
Team

Started 2/18

10 To add 1 new early childhood event per year to 
encourage families with young children to visit and be 
part of Takiff center early childhood community. 
Takiff Train Day!  Very successful. 

Naomi Started 2/18



3

11 Provide and run a parent workshop. This workshop will 
provide parent awareness of the importance of play at 
home and in the classroom. Researching

Naomi Started 2/18

12 Research nature based programming in order to create  a
nature play area. This is a continued goal with a plan to 
present a nature Play presentation at IPRA conference in
2019 or 2020. Attended seminars at Chicago Botanical 
Gardens and planted vegetables in ELC playgorund and 
purcahsed nature based play equipment.

Naomi Started 2/18

13 Provide enrichments to neighboring communities and 
preschools, utilizing bus services to transport children to
the Takiff  Center. Marketed in fall 2017 brochure – target 
Highland Park, Am Shalom & Sacred Heart

Naomi Started 2/18

14 Open a fitness center within the Takiff Center and 
acquire 250 memberships within the first 12 months of 
operation

Paul/Bobby/Lisa Started 2/18

15 Create and implement new summer camp program: 
Zombie Camp Planning for Summer 2018

Stephanie Started 2/18

16 Offer two (2) new technology classes each brochure 
cycle: Offered in all brochures thus far with much success

Stephanie Started 2/18

2 Goal:  Maintain and enhance standards of excellence in parks and facilities.
Fiscal Year: 17-18 

Objective Responsible 
Person

Status Update 
9/2017 

Completion 
Date 

 Become an IPRA/IAPD Distinguished 
Accediated Agecny 
Meet with representative from DA team.  Legal, 
Sec 1 and 2  have been reviewed.

Lead: Lisa  
Dept. Heads, 
Managers,
Jenny, Liz S. 

Started 1/19

 Become a  National Gold Medal Finalist! A-Team Completed 3/17
1 Oversee the planning , bidding and construction 

process for West Park. 
Chris L and Lisa 
S

Completed 8/17

2 Oversee the planning , bidding and construction
process for  the Takiff Parking Improvements.

Chris L and Lisa 
S

Started 12/17

3 Oversee the completion of the “by owner” tasks 
during the renovation of Astor & West Park 

Anthony Started – 
West Completed

8/17

4 Develop a maintenance plan to ensure Berlin 
Park is maintained to high standards. 

Anthony Started 11/30

5 Make “By Owner” repairs to plumbing fixtures to 
ensure compliance with 2017 clean water act. 
Coordinate this with Building Maintenance 
Supervisor and Director of Parks. 

Anthony and Bill Started 11/17

6 Work to provide support and communication to 
the Recreation & Facilities department during the 
Takiff parking upgrades. 

Bill Started 12/17



4

7 Act as the “owner representative” in the 
replacement process of the BAS system at the 
Takiff Center. 

Bill Started 2/18

8 Oversee the planning , bidding and construction 
process for Lake Front Park.

Chris L and Lisa 
S

On-Hold 2/18

9 Oversee the planning , bidding and construction 
process for the Takiff Fitness Area 

Chris L and Lisa 
S

Started 2/18

10 Oversee the planning , bidding and construction 
process for Astor Park. 

Chris L and Lisa 
S

Started 10/17

3 Goal:  Enhance Customer Service
Fiscal Year: 17-18 

Objective Responsible 
Person

Status Update 
9/2017 

Completion 
Date 

1 Create better communication between teachers 
and parents by better utilizing technology, such as 
communication apps Brightwheel implemented on 
7/31/17

Mike L, Naomi 
and Jessica 

Completed   10/17

2 Implement new beach pos/pass system at beach 
halfway house for the 2017 season

Carol, Mike, 
Bobby, Chris 

Completed 8/17

3 Create new annual benefit letter for full-time 
employees to see true value of all benefits 
received as part of employment

Carol, Liz Completed 3/17

4 Assist with fitness area project, as needed 
Fitness Passes set up 
Equipment Purchased 
Marketing Started 
Construction Started 

Carol, Paul, 
Mike, Lorise, 
Chris

Started 1/18

5 Perform cross-training in specific areas of the Main 
Registration desk to enhance customer service and 
provide competent back-up/coverage.  

Lorise, Lauren, 
and Autumn 

Started 2/18

6 Evaluate all pass types (Watts, Beach and Fitness) 
to ensure RecTrac procedures necessitate that all 
three pass types are being processed similarly to 
accommodate online renewal.   

Lorise, Lauren, 
Autumn, Bobby, 
and Paul 

Completed  2/18

7 To maximize the potential of RecTrac by 
allowing for renewal rink, beach, and fitness pass 
sales on-line as well as the booking of facilities at 
Watts, Takiff, and the beach on-line. 

Recreation and 
Business teams 

Started 2/18

8 Create a facility rental / birthday party evaluation 
form and collect 75 completed evaluations. 
Created – collecting responses

Paul Started 2/18



5

4 Goal:  Sustain Long Term Financial Strength
Fiscal Year: 17-18 

Objective Responsible 
Person

Status Update 
9/2017 

Completion 
Date 

1 Move ice reservation dates for Watts forward by 
6 months to maximise ice rentals and reduce 
‘dead ice’. Currently we start accept rentals 
starting in October but have patrons booking ice 
with other rinks in April.

Bobby Completed 11/17

2 Restructure the tennis program to provide more 
flexibility for participants and to increase net 
profit by 10%. 
Created private lessons and one day classes – has not 
impacted revenue positively 

Chris P Started 11/17

3 Begin gfoa certificate of achievement in financial 
reporting application process for fy2017/18 audit 
Samples of statistic date secured. 

Carol Started 2/18

4 Review/update current policies, and create new 
finanical policies as needed 
Financial Policy Manual Completed

Carol Completed 2/18

 Research, purchase and implement new timeclock 
management software sytsem  
Research done, Picked software, pending board 
approval to purchase. 

Carol and Liz Started 2/18

5 Goal:  Enhance Glencoe Park District through effective marketing
Fiscal Year: 17-18 

Objective Responsible 
Person

Status Update 
9/2017 

Completion 
Date 

1 Evaluate Park Signs with approval from Park 
Board for future signs.

Erin and Lisa Completed 2/18

2 Develop special event survey and collet 100 
surveys each quarter 
Survey created- collecting responses

Mike/Liz V. Started 1/18

3 Develop signage system for Fitness area Erin, Paul, Mike 
and Lisa 

Started 11/17

4 Effectively communicate beach season pass 
changes to previous pass holders 

Bobby/Erin Completed 5/17

5 Expand marketing program to increase the Park 
District’s visibility within the community by 
Create a calendar of 2017-18 marketing themes & 
priorities

Erin Started 2/18

6 Incorporate video and live event feeds into social 
media platforms Created “Get Your Play On” 
videos to promote programs; increasingly use 
video to promote events

Erin Started 2/18



6

7 Incorporate Unplug & Play themes into marketing 
pieces (Brochure, Glencoe Quarterly, social 
media) Shifted to “Get Your Play On” theme for 
Summer 2017 

Erin Completed 2/18

8 Mentor marketing intern by teaching key graphic 
design/social media skills

Erin Completed 2/18

9 Present monthly reports to the park board on 
different areas of the recreation deaprtment.  Use 
reports to keep the community informed about 
agency operation and improve agency preception 
in the community 

Mike and Erin 
and Recreation 
team

Completed 2/18

6 Goal:  Create a system to maintain and improve operational processes
Fiscal Year: 17-18 

Objective Responsible 
Person

Status Update 
9/2017 

Completion 
Date 

1 Create a process for beach operations, cashier 
training and equipment maintence related to the 
new Rectrac and credit card precedures at the 
beach. 

Bobby Completed 8/17

2 Create a process by which Watts Ice Passes can be 
renewed online for the 2017-2018 Watts winter 
season.

Lorise, Lauren, 
Autumn, Bobby 
and Erin 

Completed 11/17

3 Create a process by which patrons can renew boat 
storage spaces online, as an activity;  currently, the 
process is very labor intensive for staff and 
patrons.

Lorise, Lauren, 
Autumn, Bobby 
and Erin 

Completed 8/17

4 In Children Circle, achieve Bronze Circle 
Accreditation through Excel Rate.

Amanda Hold 2/18

5 Create a comprehensive CIT (Counselor In 
Training) manual

Chris P Started 6/17

6 Hold quarterly staff meetings to coordinate 
schedules, solicit feedback and conduct any 
trainings that staff would need. 

Chris P Started 2/18

7 Upgrade pc workstations/equipment of district ft 
supervisory staff Inventory completed. Ongoing.

Carol Completed 2/18

8 Prepare new business department operations 
manual 

Carol Completed 2/18

9 Organize files for simple, timely and more 
efficient use by employees and Business 
Department staff. 

Liz S Started 2/18

10 Work closely with the Recreation staff to develop 
a list of Frequently Asked Questions, as a go-to 
point of reference (for internal use) to help ensure 
consistency in the area of processes and procedures 

Lorise, Lauren, 
Autumn, Tricia, 
and Rec Staff 

Started 2/18



7

when working with clients and the multitude of 
diverse situations that will come up during the 
course of any season. 

11 Reorganize both the Children’s Circle and Early 
Learning Center documents that are currently 
located on the P:Drive.

Tricia, Naomi 
and Jessica 

Started 2/18

12 Create and implement new Special Event Check 
List.

Liz V Started 2/18

13 Use technology advances to increase Marketing 
Department effieciences; Utilize Google Analytics 
goals to increase website traffic; Create set of 
templates for Rec staff to use to promote smaller 
programs Templates completed; working on 
analytics

Erin Started 2/18

14 Coordinate a quartely meeting for instructors and 
contractors to review agency expectations and 
procedures including safety, customer service, and 
sign in/sign out. done in spring & planned for fall

Mike Started 2/18

15 Create a digital log for all Glencoe Park District 
keys.

Paul Completed 

16 To create a comprehensive Fitness Center 
Opertations Plan that explains all areas of the 
fitness center. The plan will include equipment 
operations, rec trac, employee trainings, marketing, 
etc. 

Paul Started 2/18

17 Implement 85% of ACA standards to prepare of 
American Camp Association (ACA) accredidation 
50% implementation for 2017

Stephani Started 2/18

18 Create and implement new Kids Club Operations 
Manual

Stephani Started 2/18

19 Become NAEYC accredited in the next 3 years 
Investigating feasibility

Naomi Started 2/20

7 Encourage Environmental Sustainability Practices District-Wide
Fiscal Year: 17-18 

Objective Responsible 
Person

Status Update 
9/2017 

Completion 
Date 

1 Inventory and asses the districts outdoor lighting 
systems not related to facilities. Assess function and 
whether LED fixtures could be installed.

Anthony Started 12/17

2 Install bottle fill drinking fountains at the Takiff 
Center

Bill Started 2/18

3 Work with Village of Glencoe, FOGBT and UP to 
begin phase one of the natural area restoration 
North of the Shelton Park Tennis Courts.

Chris L Started 2/18



8

4 Explore the SEDAC Energy Audit Process with 
goal of auditing Takiff/Watts

Chris L Not Started 2/18

5 Oversee testing all of the district’s potable water 
sources for lead contamination. Make 
recommendations to Executive Director after tests 
are complete. 

Chris L Started 10/17

6 Communicate the green practices taking place 
throughout the District: create a “Gong Green” 
column for Glencoe Quarterly 

Erin Not started 2/18

7 Communicate the green practices taking place 
throughout the District: Showcase green efforts in 
applicable marketing materials Highlighted green 
efforts in Gold Medal application and video

Erin Started 2/18

8 Replace Dog Waste Stations with bags that are 
biodegrable (vegatable based) 

Completed 

9 Install suncreen dispensers at the Safran Beach 
house and Boat House 

Chris and Mike Completed 5/17

10 Work with Village Sustainability committee to 
complete a Transportation study and safe passages 
to school and parks : study approved by Village 
Park District contributing $5,000 study and will 
serve on comittee

Lisa Started 2/18

8 Goal: Continue to foster good community and intergovernmental relations to maximize 
District effectiveness

Fiscal Year: Fiscal Year: 17-18 
Objective Responsible 

Person
Status
Update 
9/2017 

Completion 
Date 

1 Work with Village of Glencoe, FOGBT and and 
other community groups on resoration of park 
property

Chris L Started 2/18

2 Work with Glencoe Baseball Association, AYSO 
and renters to improve the communication and field 
booking process and have less than 5 last minute 
field bookings. 

Chris P Started 2/18

3 Partner with local government agencies and/or 
community groups to offer three (3) active adult 
programs or special events in FY 2017-18.

Liz V Started 2/18

4 Highlight Park District benefits in relationship to 
community’s healthy lifestyles, sustainable 
envirnoment, thriving economy, and engagement 
Used Gold Medal video/application to highlight 
NRPA’s three pillars 

Erin Started 2/18

5 Collaborate with school district 35 on West 
Playground grand opening and Youth Obstacle 
Course race

Mike Started 2/18



9

6 Continue to look at ways to collaborate with other 
Governmental Agencies to make our organizations 
more efficient and fiscally responsible 

Lisa
Department 
Heads

Started 2/18

7 Work with Village Sustainability Committee on 
Park Board approved initiatives. 

Lisa and Chris Started

9 Goal:  Encourage professional development in full-time staff
Fiscal Year: 17-18 

Objective Responsible 
Person

Status Update 
9/2017 

Completion 
Date 

1 Develop a training program for newly purchased 
equipment. Forklift, dump truck, field striper

Anthony Started 9/17

2 Attend an Ellis lifeguard training class 
possible for spring 2018

Bobby Not Started 8/17

3 Become an active member of the Great Lakes 
Water Safety Consortium’s (GLWSC) 
Lifeguarding Committee

Bobby Completed 8/17

4 Become a Certified Parks & Recreation 
Professional

Chris L Started 2/18

5 Attend Professional Development School – Year 2 
Naomi - registered

Chris P and 
Naomi 

Naomi - 
completed  

12/17

6 Maintain CPRP status by attending 
conferences/trainings related to my position  

Lisa S and 
Carol

Lisa: Completed 
Carol: Started 

2/18

7 Enhance understanding of accounting procedures 
and HR regulations/tasks, as they relate to 
accounting manager position.

Liz Started 2/18

8 Enable the staff to expand their job knowledge by 
allowing them to attend a work-related course(s) 
off-site, or some type of in-house training 

Lorise and 
Lauren

Lauren:Completed 
Lorise: Started

2/18

9 Attend Special Event Committee Meetings and 
Recreation Section meetings 

Liz V Started 2/18



Glenc

Septemb

Board of
Village o
675 Villa
Glencoe,

Dear Tru

The Glen
Village s
for the V
understan
action pla

The Glen
to develo
and Villa

Sincerely

Lisa Shep
Executiv

Cc: Glen

coe Park Distri

er 14, 2017 

f Trustees 
of Glencoe 
age Court 
, IL 60022 

ustees of Gle

ncoe Park Di
staff to engag

Village of Gle
nd the propo
an for poten

ncoe Park Di
op infrastruct
age. 

y,

ppard, CPRP
ve Director

ncoe Park Di

ct / 999 Green

encoe Village

istrict suppo
ge in an Acti
encoe, in par
osed biking a
tial improve

istrict will co
ture improve

P

strict Board 

n Bay Road / G
www.glen

e Board, 

rts the initia
ive Transpor
rtnership wit
and walking 
ements to bik

ommit $5,00
ements that w

of Park Com

lencoe, IL 600
coeparkdistrict

ative presente
rtation Plan 
th School Di
study provid

king, walkin

00 to this pla
will provide

mmissioners

022 / (847) 835
t.com 

ed by the Su
with the Act
istrict 35 and
des a detaile

ng, and transi

an and look f
e safe travel t

s

5-3030 / fax (8

ustainability 
tive Transpo
d the Village
ed and reside
it in the Vill

forward to w
through our 

847) 835-4942

Committee
ortation Allia
e of Glencoe
ent-prioritize
lage of Glenc

working toge
parks, schoo

2

and
ance
e. We 
ed
coe.

ether 
ols



X. Appointment of Members to the Beach
and Lakefront Advisory Group

Glencoe Park District
September 2017 Board Meeting



Glenc

TO:
FROM:
SUBJEC
DATE:
CC:

After req
many qua
diversity
the group
meeting i
still welc
President
Advisory

S
L
Jo
H

coe Park Distric

BOARD O

 LISA SH

CT:  GLEN

8/30/17

questing appl
alified appli
in the select

p. The Advis
is open to th

come to atten
t Onderdonk
y Group: 

teve Varick 
Lawrence R. 
ohn Satter

Harrie Hughe

ct / 999 Green

 IN

OF COMMIS

EPPARD, E

NCOE BEAC

lications for 
cations for th
tion of the a
sory Group h
he public so t
nd the meetin
k plans to app

Smith 

es

 Bay Road / Gl
www.glen

TEROFFIC

SSIOINERS

EXECUTIVE 

CH AND LAK

over two m
he Glencoe 
dvisory grou
has four open
the individua
ngs. After re
point at the B

lencoe, IL  600
coeparkdistrict

CE MEMO

DIRECTOR

KEFRONT A

onths, Staff 
Beach and L
up members 
nings and w
als not chose
eviewing the
Board meeti

022 / (847) 83
t.com 

RANDUM

R

ADVISORY 

and Commi
Lakefront Ad

so we have
we received e

en to be one
e many quali
ing the follow

5-3030 / fax (

GROUP 

issioner Ond
dvisory Grou
a wide rang

eight applica
e the Advisor
ified applica
wing individ

847) 835-4942

derdonk revie
up. We look

ge of opinion
ations. The 
ry Committe

ations the 
duals to the 

2

ewed
k for 
ns in 

ee are 



XI. Action Item A
Approval of FY2018/19 Master Plan Capital

Projects

Glencoe Park District
September 2017 Board Meeting



Glenc

To:      B

From: L

SUBJEC

The Spec
meetings
2020/21.
recomme
Attached
the comm
the Board

Approva
on these 
includes
developm

It is also 
and appro

coe Park Distric

oard of Com

Lisa Sheppard

CT: Approval

cial Projects 
s staff’s reco
  The entire 

endation of t
d is the three-
mittee did di
d and Comm

l of the Mas
projects and
agreements 

ment.

important to
oved as part

ct / 999 Green

mmissioners 

d, Executive

l of the FY2

and Facilitie
mmendation
Board partic

the Committ
-year Capita
scuss the fut

munity an ide

ter Plan Cap
d authorizes 
with Altama

o note that th
t of the norm

 Bay Road / Gl
www.glen

e Director

018/19 Mas

es Committe
n for Fund 69
cipated tour 
tee to advanc
al Plan.  We 
ture year’s p
ea of improv

pital Projects
staff to begin
anu, design m

here are proj
mal budget pr

lencoe, IL  600
coeparkdistrict

ter Plan Cap

ee discussed
9 Master Pla
of the parks 

ce for approv
are only app

projects.  By 
vements we a

s indicates th
n the plannin
meeting, pub

ects from ot
rocess.

022 / (847) 83
t.com 

pital Projects

d in two cons
an Capital Pr
 throughout 
val the Mast
proving the F
forecasting

are consider

hat the Board
ng process f
blic input me

ther District 

5-3030 / fax (

s

secutives com
rojects for F
Glencoe.  It

ter Plan Cap
FY2018/201
three years o

ring for the fu

d approves m
for the projec
eeting, and p

funds that w

847) 835-4942

Date:  9/1

mmittee 
FY2018/19 –
t was the 
ital Projects
9 projects, b
out, this give

future.

moving forw
cts, which 
plan

will be discus

2

11/17

–

.
but
es

ward

ssed 



PROPOSED 3YR Master Plan For Approval
September 19, 2017

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Later Notes

Estimated Beginning Balance, 3/1/xx 1,628,882 1,061,882 256,882 691,882

Funding Sources:
Transfer from Corp Fund 500,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 For past 6 FYE, ave of $325,000/Impact of Tax Freeze, Min Wage?
Transfer from Recreation Fund 500,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 For past 5 FYE, ave of $570,000/Impact of Tax Freeze, Min Wage?
Transfer from Impact Fund 8,000 Must be used in areas near development
Sale of Linden house Unknown
Interest Income 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Annual ADA monies Special Recreation Fund 125,000 125,000 125,000 125,000 These monies will be incorporated in total project costs below
New bonds (Non Referendum replace Watts debt being retired) TBD Unknown; placeholder only based on bond issue amount

Total Funds Available 2,771,882 1,796,882 991,882 1,426,882

Projects To Be Funded:
Shelton Park Master Plan Pathways implementation phase A 20,000 70,000 Flooded pathway not useable in spring and fall
Playground Replacement Lincoln & Cresent 225,000 Safety and ADA Driven
Playground Replacement Vernon & Jefferson 225,000 Safety and ADA Driven
Lakefront Park Tennis Court 150,000 Remove or Replace
Playground Replacement Old Elm 225,000 Safety and ADA Driven
Takiff Parking Lot Phase D 455,000 Safety and ADA Driven

Playground Replacement Lakefront Park 225,000 Safety and ADA Driven
Playground Replacement Woodlawn 300,000 Safety and ADA Driven
Secret Garden Park and WLC Park Retaining Walls 200,000 High Profile Park Downtown tune up
Everly Wildflower Sanctuary move to operating
Playground Replacement Milton Park and pathway 130,000 Safety and ADA Driven

Playground Replacement Takiff Early Childhood 400,000 Safety and ADA Driven
Playground Improvements Friends Park Phase 2 25,000 300,000 Safety and ADA Driven
Park Maintenance Garage TBD Safety and Operational Efficiency Driven

Lakefront Park Master Plan Phase 3 TBD
Bluff Stabilization TBD
Beach Renovation TBD
Reinsdorf Athletic Field 800,000
Watts Ice Rink TBD
Clara Dietz Bird Santuary 50,000
Old Green Bay Linear Parks Master Plan and Phase A 35,000 365,000
Replacement Skate Park TBD 350,000
Kalk Park Phase 2 300,000
Sports Fields at West Park 800,000
Sports Fields at Watts Park 350,000
Takiff Parking Lot Phase E 385,000
Takiff Parking Lot Phase F 415,000
Veterans Park 275,000
Contingency/High Impact playground equipment board directive 200,000
Dog Park Only if Donation Secured/Site Located

Total Projects 1,710,000 1,540,000 300,000 3,725,000

Ending balance, 2/28/xx 1,061,882 256,882 691,882 (2,298,118)



XI. Action Item B
Approval to Proceed with Glencoe Park

District 3 Year Strategic Plan

Glencoe Park District
September 2017 Board Meeting













XI. Action Item C
Approval to Change Time of October 17

Regular Board Meeting

No Documents

Glencoe Park District
September 2017 Board Meeting



XI. Action Item D
Approval of a Web Based Time Clock

Management Software System

Glencoe Park District
September 2017 Board Meeting



Glenc

To: B

From: L

SUBJEC

As part o
August 2
Fund (65
system w
cumberso
for the pa
100% du

Staff beg
vendors t
that resea
demonstr
managers

The three

ExcuTim
District’s

TimePro
Illinois. T
their sale
software.

TimeClo
past 3 ye
building
even mor

Please se
and an on
to seven 
to our cu
long-term

coe Park Distri

Board of Park

Lisa Sheppard

CT: Staff Rec

of the final p
2012, there w
5) budget for
was to move 
ome to input
ayroll proces

ue to the num

gan their prel
that are curre
arch, there w
rations and w
s.

e vendors tha

me: This com
s current fina

o: This syste
This system 
es representa
.

ock Plus: Th
ars). While t
client base i
re so. 

ee attached c
nsite premise
cost shown. 

urrent networ
m needs of th

ct / 999 Green

k Commissio

d, Executive

commendatio

hase of the D
was an amou
r the purchas
away from t
t, and can be
ss, especially

merous seaso

liminary rese
ently being u

were three ve
webinars we

at were inve

mpany was p
ancial softwa

m is owned 
has been uti

ative, all park

his is a relativ
they are new
in the Chicag

cost informat
e version. Y
Please note

rk infrastruct
he District. 

n Bay Road / G
www.glen

oners

e and Carol M

on – Timecl

District’s IT 
unt of $30,00
se of a timec
the current sy
e an inefficie
y in the busy

onal camp an

earch on this
utilized by o
endors that w
re scheduled

estigated wer

purchased in 
are system, I

by Commeg
ilized by sev
k districts pu

vely new sy
w and are bas
goland area,

tion for all th
You will note

, given the f
ture, staff fe

lencoe, IL 600
coeparkdistrict

Mensinger, D

ock Softwar

System Plan
00 included i
clock softwar
ystem of pap

ent use of sup
y summer m
nd beach staf

s system in l
other park di
were investig
d and presen

re as follows

2016 by Ty
Incode.

g Systems In
veral park dis
urchased the 

stem to the I
sed in San A
and seem ve

hree systems
e both the ye
fact that the p
eels that the w

022 / (847) 835
t.com 

Director of F

re System

n, which wa
in this year’s
re system. T
per-based tim
pervisory tim

months when 
ff that are em

late spring an
stricts in the

gated, and su
nted in July t

s:

yler Technolo

nc. and is bas
stricts over t
 premise ver

Illinois park 
Angelo, Texa
ery devoted 

s – both for w
ar one initia
premise opti
web-based o

5-3030 / fax (8

Finance/HR 

as approved b
s FY2017/18

The goal of im
mesheets/tim
me to calcula
total payroll

mployed. 

nd concentra
e Chicagolan
ubsequently
to the Distric

ogies, who a

sed locally i
the past 15-2
rsion of the T

district wor
as, they are v
to increasin

web-based (
al cost, as we
ion would al
option is a be

847) 835-4942

Date: 9/11/

by the Board
8 Capital Pro
mplementing

mecards whic
ate time wor
l can increas

ated efforts o
nd area. Base
onsite

ct’s supervis

also owns the

n Villa Park
20 years. Per
TimePro 

rld (within th
very quickly
ng their prese

(cloud) versi
ell as a year o
lso increase 
etter fit for th

2

/2017

d in 
oject 
g this 
ch is 
rked
se

on
ed on 

sory 

e

k,
r

he
y
ence 

ion
one
costs
he



Glencoe Park District / 999 Green Bay Road / Glencoe, IL 60022 / (847) 835-3030 / fax (847) 835-4942 
www.glencoeparkdistrict.com 

Based on initial costs, the ExecuTime system was eliminated as a possible web-based option. 
Further, given their relatively recent purchase by Tyler Technologies, they are still in process of 
fine-tuning their product to meet the needs of park district clients. For example, the ability to 
import/upload data from a third party scheduling software, such as the type we currently use for 
the beach/boat house (When To Work), or to utilize their own advanced scheduling software 
comes with an extremely high additional cost to do so. For most of their standard reports within 
the system, data fields must currently be re-input to run. And further, their current time off 
request process can only accommodate one level and does not meet our need. 

While TimePro does have many long-term park district clients, their current software platform 
seems to be somewhat antiquated and clunky. While they are based locally in Villa Park, their 
customer service team is very limited and based on the current clients I have spoken to, they 
stated that customer service is very slow and seemed stretched beyond their resources. 
Furthermore, staff noted additional system limitations – the position limit max is 25, they do not 
currently offer an advanced scheduling component, nor is there a clear-cut ability to import data 
from “When To Work”, the third party software we currently use at the beach/boat house. 

In evaluating the TimeClock Plus software system, there were numerous positives to the system 
itself, along with a heavily discounted cost option for the web-based (cloud) version. The 
following were noted by staff: 

The software platform was recently updated to 7.0 in 2015, and provides a simplified, easy-
to-use system for both system administrators and supervisory end users alike. 

The software offers its own advanced scheduling component, and is also easily integrated 
with the “When To Work” system, should we choose to continue to do so. The software also 
integrates with several different financial software systems, including our Incode system. 

The system easily allows for the unique requirements of the District’s different employees 
and for the District’s unique facilities. 

TimeClock Plus has an increased number of support staff despite their location in Texas, 
including 55 implementation specialists and 50 support staff, and current clients seem very 
pleased with their level of customer service. 

TimeClock Plus offers a Wi-Fi option for wireless timeclocks, which can encompass pin 
code, fingerprint, and proximity/scan card options, as well as a mobile app and use of PC 
web-based clock. 

The system offers Affordable Care Act (ACA) compliance tracking and exempt time-
tracking for salaried staff and thus is in compliance with the recent Illinois law that now 
requires tracking of hours worked. 



Glencoe Park District / 999 Green Bay Road / Glencoe, IL 60022 / (847) 835-3030 / fax (847) 835-4942 
www.glencoeparkdistrict.com 

The quoted price for the first year of initial system costs includes a discount of $12,004. 
Annual software fees paid to TimeClock Plus would be $4,260/per year and there is no 
planned or foreseeable increase to this amount. 

Recommendation: Given the numerous positives associated with the TimeClock Plus 
system, staff recommends that the Glencoe Park District enter into a contract with 
TimeClock Plus for the purchase of their web-based (cloud) timeclock software system at 
an initial cost not to exceed $30,000. 



TimeClock Plus
(Web Based)

TimeClock Plus
(Premise)

TimePro
(Web Based)

TimePro
(Premise)

ExecuTime
(Web Based)

ExecuTime
(Premise)

Web Based System Cost + Setup/Training $4,999 $8,755 $16,000

Premise Based Software + Training
Dedicated Support/Implementation Included 20 hours $34,615 $17,285 $33,015

Annual FT Employee Licenses (35) $1,260
Annual PT Employee Licenses (75) $2,700
Annual Seasonal Licenses (150) $5,400
Advance Scheduler (75) Add'l Fee $600 None available None available $6,000 $18,725
Module Package $6,304 $6,927
Import License Add'l Fee

$21,263
Discounts ($12,004) ($2,550)
5 Biometric Time Clocks $13,245 $13,245 $9,600 $9,475 $15,050 $15,050
Software Maintenance $9,261 $1,895 $12,428 $6,748
Hardware Maintenance $2,250 $2,250 $1,810 $1,810 $1,806 $1,806

Year 1 Total Cost $24,754 $66,298 $18,355 $26,020 $51,284 $75,344
Annual Fees Year 2 and Beyond $6,510 $11,511 $4,260 $3,705 $14,234 $8,554
(Hardware Maint/Software Maint/License)

Total Cost: Years 1 7 $63,814 $135,364 $43,915 $48,250 $136,688 $126,668

P:/Busmgr/Time Clock/Time Clock Vendor Comparison



XI. Action Item E
Approval of the Altamanu, Inc. Contract for

Three Playground Design Services for
2018/19 Capital Projects

Glencoe Park District
September 2017 Board Meeting



Glenc

To:      B

From: L

SUBJEC
2018/201

Attached
developm
Jefferson
2018. Th
public in
$1,865.

Recomm
Approva
Jefferson

coe Park Distric

oard of Com

Lisa Sheppard

CT: Approval
19 Capital Pr

d is an agreem
ment, constru
n, Old Elm, a
he fee structu
put meeting 

mended Motio
l of the Alta

n, Old Elm, a

ct / 999 Green

mmissioners 

d, Executive

l of the Altam
rojects

ment from A
uction docum
and Woodlaw
ure represent

and one Bo

on:
amanu, Inc. a
and Woodlaw

 Bay Road / Gl
www.glen

e Director

manu, Inc. c

Altamanu for
ments, and c
wn Playgrou
ts 11% of the
ard level me

agreement fo
wn Playgrou

lencoe, IL  600
coeparkdistrict

contract for t

r services, sp
onstruction m

unds. The int
e total projec
eeting. Each 

or the playgr
unds not to e

022 / (847) 83
t.com 

three playgro

pecifically th
managemen
tent is to bre
ct budget.  In
additional p

round design
exceed $ 104

5-3030 / fax (

ound design

he schematic
nt support for
eak ground in
ncluded in th

public meetin

n services for
4,000.

847) 835-4942

Date:  9/1

n services for

c design, des
r Vernon and
n the spring
his cost is on
ng will cost 

r Vernon an

2

11/17

r

sign
d
of

ne

d



    

1 | P a g e  
 

September 13, 2017 
 
Mr. Chris Leiner 
Director of Parks and Maintenance 
Glencoe Park District 
999 Green Bay Road 
Glencoe, Illinois 60022 
 
cleaner@glencoeparkdistrict.com 
 
RE: Landscape Architecture and Civil Engineering Services for Vernon & Jefferson 

Playground, Old Elm Playground, and Woodlawn Playground in Glencoe, Illinois,  
 
 
Dear Chris,  
 
The Glencoe Park District (GPD/Client) has requested a proposal from the Altamanu and SMP 
team to prepare Schematic Design, Facilitate a Public Meeting, Prepare Design Development 
and Construction Documents, provide Bidding and Permit assistance and Construction 
Administration Services for Improvements to the Vernon & Jefferson Playground (located at 
Vernon Ave. & Jefferson Ave.), Old Elm Playground (located at Old Elm Lane & Park Place), and 
Woodlawn Playground (located at Woodlawn Ave. & Green Bay Road). 
 
We understand that all three of these improvement projects will go out to bid in the spring of 
2018. We further understand that the Vernon and Jefferson Playground will have an estimated 
budget of 225,000, the Old Elm Playground an estimated budget also of 225,000, and that the 
Woodlawn Playground will have an estimate base budget of $300,000 and an additional 
alternate amount of $200,000 for potential design features for a total of $500,000.  

 
 

We understand the overall scope of these projects to include: 
 

 Play equipment updated to include universal accessibility components 
 Accessible paths from the public right of way to the playground 
 Engineered wood fiber surfacing at the play equipment areas with concrete curb surround 
 Update site furnishings 
 Plantings  
 Possible non-conventional play/discovery features (Woodlawn Playground) 

 
 

SCOPE OF WORK/PROJECT PLAN 
 

The following is an outline of the “Scope of Work” to be carried out by the Altamanu, Inc./SMP 
team. 
 

 
 



    

2 | P a g e  
 

TASK 1:  SCHEMATIC DESIGN AND PUBLIC INPUT 
Goals:  Review existing conditions, project scope, budget, schedule and set a direction for Client 
expectations and public process.  
 

1. Verify existing conditions using available site data such as surveys, aerial photos, and 
topographic maps.  The Client will furnish Altamanu with an accurate base map, site survey and 
topographic map for each of the sites. These maps and surveys will be at a working scale for the 
preparation of site improvement construction documentation for each of the three sites.  The 
survey will show existing contours, detailed site features, and existing utilities to the center line 
of adjacent streets. The team will verify if the extents of the survey are sufficient for the 
intended scope of improvements and advise the Client if any further topographic information is 
required. Two soil borings and infiltration tests will be required per each of the three sites. The 
cost for surveys and soil borings/infiltration tests are not part of this proposal and shall be the 
fiscal responsibility of the Client. 
 

2. Review available zoning and landscape codes and advise client of any requirements. Incorporate 
requirements into improvements. 
 

3. Review potential MWRD permit requirements for the site improvements of each site. 
 

4. Meet with Client to review the project scope, budget, and schedule for each of the three sites 
and discuss public meeting dates and expectations. (Meeting #1)  

 
5. Tour the sites with Client to refine scope/goals and to field review existing conditions. (Site 

meeting at same time as project Kick-Off meeting). 
  

6. Prepare ppt. presentation for public meeting showing existing conditions and make suggestions  
for improvements for each of the three sites. 
 

7. Facilitate public meeting to discuss existing conditions, possible concepts and gather input from 
public for desired/preferred improvements. (Public Meeting #1)  
 

8. Meet with Client to discuss public input and set a direction for the concept design for each of 
the three sites.(Meeting #2) 
 

9. Prepare up to two (2) concepts for each of the three sites. Conceptual designs may include 
plans, reference images, elevations, and or perspective renderings. 
 

10. Present concepts to Client.  Client to select a preferred concept for each site. (Meeting #3) 
 

11. Make revisions as per Client input of preferred concept.  
 

12. Prepare Rough Opinions of Probable Costs for each of the preferred concepts. 
 

13. Present concepts to GPD Board for input.  (Board Presentation #1) 
 

14. Make minor revisions as requested by Board prior to commencing the Design Development 
Phase.  



    

3 | P a g e  
 

 
TASK 2:  DETAILED DESIGN DEVELOPMENT & CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS 

Goals: Finalize relevant design elements and incorporate Client’s comments and produce the 
final Construction Documents. 
 

1. Prepare Design Development/Construction Documents for a 60%, 90% and 100% review with 
the Client.  The Construction Documents will include the following (it is possible that some of 
these items will be shown on the same plans): 
• Detailed Final Landscape Plan (1”=20’) 
• Layout and Dimension Plan (1”=20’) 
• Enlarged Site/Landscape Plans as needed for clarity. 
• Site Detail Sheets - Layout/Dimensioned of Related Special Site Elements  
• Drainage/Utility Details, utility connections, (SMP) 
• Grading and Drainage Plan and Details (SMP) 
• Planting Details, Plant Schedules and General Notes 
• Related Technical Specifications (Altamanu and SMP) 
 

5. Continue to field verify existing conditions as necessary to prepare the CD set. 
 
6. Coordinate design decisions with Client throughout the DD and CD process. 
 
7. Coordinate Landscape Plan with Civil Engineer’s Grading/Drainage and Utility Plans.  
 
8. Revise Opinion of Probable Costs to reflect adjustments to Landscape/Engineering Plans. 
 
9. Submit 60% Construction Set and Outline Specifications to Client for review.  
 
10. Meet with Client to review 60% Construction Set. (Meeting #4) 
 
11. Coordinate with Village of Glencoe and MWRD (if necessary), and verify permit submission 

requirements. (Meeting #5) 
 
12. Submit 90% Construction Set and Outline Specifications to Client for review. 

 
13. Meet with Client to review 90% Construction Set. (Meeting  #6) 

 
14. Make revisions and submit 100% Construction Set and Specifications to Client for final review. 
 
15. Submit Final 100% Construction Documents Package and related Technical Specifications, 

including SWPP plan for permit, to Client for review and subsequently for bidding.  



    

4 | P a g e  
 

 
TASK 3:  PERMITTING, BIDDING & BID ASSISTANCE  

Goal: Assist in obtaining appropriate approvals as required for construction. Assist in the 
packaging and distribution of construction drawing sets and specifications to potential 
contractors. Altamanu will review and assess bids with Client and assist in the selection of a 
contractor(s).  Time tables and schedules for construction will be established with selected 
contractors.  
 

1. Assist Client in submitting Permit Set for appropriate approvals and coordinate with Village of 
Glencoe on any permit approvals from MWRD. (SMP will manage permit approvals) 

 
2. Provide Client Construction Set prior to bidding for review.  
 
3. Issue addenda as appropriate to interpret, clarify or expand the Construction Documents. 
 
4. Meet with Client to assist in preparation of Bid Packages.  Use Site Landscape Construction Bid 

Form, cover letter and related addenda to include with Bid/Drawing Package. Distribute 
Bid/Drawing Package to contractors on selected list as vetted by team.   

 
5. Assist the Client in conducting a Pre-Bid Review Meeting with selected Contractors. (Meeting #7) 
 
6. Assist Client in preparing Bid Analysis for comparison of proposed bids. 
 
7. Assist Client with the selection(s) of appropriate contractors.  
 
8. Assist in the preparation AIA/GPD Contract between contractors and Glencoe Park District 

(GPD).  
 
9. Develop Landscape Installation Timetable with Client & Contractor. 
 
 
TASK 4:  CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION & PROJECT CLOSEOUT 

Goal: Provide on-site review and observation of landscape construction related to the Site 
Landscape Construction Package and its Related Specifications.  
 

1. Provide on-site observation of site and landscape construction related to the Altamanu-SMP 
Landscape and Engineering Plans and their related elements.  Visit site sixteen times (16) at 
intervals appropriate to the stage of landscape construction to review proper construction 
methods and adherence to the design intent. (Site Meetings #8 through #23).    SMP/Civil 



    

5 | P a g e  
 

Engineer will visit the site six times (6) at intervals appropriate to the stage of civil engineering 
items  

 
2. Make written reports regarding site construction progress for landscape improvements. 
 
3. Review and respond to contractor’s requests for information and provide interpretations and 

clarifications for the Construction Documents.  
 
4. Review and approve samples of materials and shop drawings and assess change order requests. 
 
5. Review contractor’s request for payments. 
 
6. Conduct a final on-site observation/inspection of Landscape Construction with Client and 

Contractor.  (Site Meeting #24) 
 
7. Prepare a Final Punch List prior to final acceptance of job. 

 
8. Troubleshoot for 2 months until project closeout. (16 hours) 
 

 
PROFESSIONAL FEES 

 
Fees for the project are broken down by discipline are as follows: 
 
Estimated Landscape Architecture Fees (Altamanu)     

Task 1 Schematic Design & Public Input     $     19,635.00 
Task 2 Design Development & Construction Documents    $     41,995.00  

 Task 3 Permitting, Bidding and Bid Assistance    $       4,245.00 
Task 4 Construction Administration & Project Closeout   $     15,240.00 

Estimated Total Landscape Architecture Fees (Altamanu)   $     81,115.00 
 
Civil Engineering Fees (SMP)        

Task 1 Schematic Design & Public Input     $       6,200.00 
Task 2 Design Development & Construction Documents    $     11,000.00  

 Task 3 Permitting, Bidding and Bid Assistance    $           600.00 
Task 4 Construction Administration & Project Closeout   $        2,200.00 

Total Civil Engineering Fees (SMP)      $     20,000.00 
 
 
 



    

6 | P a g e  
 

Expenses 
Estimated Expenses - Altamanu      $       2,075.00 
Estimated Expenses - SMP      $          800.00 

Total Expenses         $       2,875.00 
 

Estimated TOTAL PROFESSIONAL FEES  (Altamanu & SMP)     $   101,115.00   
 

Estimated TOTAL PROFESSIONAL FEES & EXPENSES (Altamanu & SMP)  $   103,990.00     
 
 
Reimbursable expenses which will be billed at direct expense.  Reimbursable expenses related to this 
project shall include, but may not be limited to the following: 

 
 Transportation/Parking 
 Reproduction 
 Special Supplies 
 Photography 
 Copies 
 Messenger/Delivery 
  Large Scale Scans 
  Soils Analysis/Consultation 

 
Professional fees and expenses will be billed monthly for work completed and are due within 30 days. 
 
 
ASSUMPTIONS 

 All base information; site survey, site topography and site utility information, will be provided by 
the Client to Altamanu. 

 Site base information will be provided to in a form compatible with AutoCAD 2017 format. 
 There are no electrical engineering services included in this proposal.  
 The project team will make one (1) presentation of preferred concepts to the Board of the Park 

District only. If further presentations are required the Client will be invoiced for this service at 
our standard hourly rates. 

 The project team will moderate one (1) Public Meeting to gather information. If further public 
meetings are required the Client will be invoiced for this service at our standard hourly rates. 

 This agreement does not include: soils or environmental studies or property surveys. 
 Any services beyond what is outlined above will be considered extra services and will be billed at 

our standard hourly rates. 
 This agreement may be terminated by either party 15 days after written notice.  Altamanu shall 

be compensated for all services performed up to this date. 
 
If the aforementioned terms are acceptable to you, we would appreciate the execution of this 
document in the space provided below and the return of a copy for our files. 

 



    

7 | P a g e  
 

We at Altamanu Inc. appreciate this opportunity to continue working with the Glencoe Park 
District.  
 
 
 
Very truly yours, 

 
Josephine Bellalta, PLA, ASLA, President Altamanu Inc. 
 
 
ACCEPTED BY: 
 
 
             
Signature 
 
 
            
Printed Name 
 
 
            
Title 
 
   
            
Date 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



    

8 | P a g e  
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

SMP GROUP DESIGN ASSOCIATES, LLC 
 

CIVIL ENGINEERING PROPOSAL 
for 

Improvements to the Vernon & Jefferson Playground (located at Vernon Ave. & Jefferson Ave.), 
Old Elm Playground (located at Old Elm Lane & Park Place), and Woodlawn Playground (located 
at Woodlawn Ave. & Green Bay Road). 

 
 

 
 
  





This fee proposal is based on your recent email request and our previous conversations. We understand 
that a survey will be completed as part of this proposal and will be made available soon.

Scope of Work

We understand that ALTAMANU will take the lead on the site planning and strategy meetings with the 
Park District and the Public. This fee does, however; include attendance and support at one public 
meeting where all three concepts will be presented for public comment. We understand that these projects 
are under MWRD jurisdiction and we will be responsible for obtaining a letter of determination and any 
required permitting. 

Schematic Design & Public Input
The SD & Public Input Phase is intended to obtain and review all background information available from 
the Park District, review site constraints and existing conditions in a detailed manner, and develop concept 
designs to present to the Park District and Public. This phase will begin to identify stormwater 
management ideas and utility routings to meet the requirements of the local authorities. Tasks Include;

Site visit to evaluate existing conditions and establish project limits
Attend a project kick-off meeting with ALTAMANU and the Park District.
Survey review.
Complete a MWRD determination application.
Develop concept level grading and utility plans.
Attend a Public Meeting with Altamanu to present to concept plans.

Design Development and Construction Documents
This phase of the project builds on the SD Phase and is an expected to produce a permit ready civil 
engineering drawing set. This phase will begin once schematic design has been completed and the 
Project Team is confident that no substantial revisions to the site plan will occur. This includes
intermediate document submittals and coordination with the Park District at a 60% and 90% level to 
develop a cohesive drawing package.  Tasks include;

Coordinate with ALTAMANU and the Park District to finalize construction documents.
Finalize the utility and drainage routing/strategy.
Prepare final demolition, dimension, grading, utility, erosion & sedimentation control, civil construction 
detail plans.
Prepare technical specifications in CSI format for Civil Engineering scope items as requested.
Assistance with the review of a Cost Opinion.

Permitting, Bidding and Bid Assistance
This phase works with the documents prepared in the DD/CD Phase and works towards obtaining a 
building permit. Here, we will work with Altamanu on the preparation of a contract bid package as well as 
the selection of a contractor.  Tasks include;

Compile the necessary civil drawings to issue for Permit through the Village of Glencoe.
Assist with project bidding, contractor RFI’s and contractor selection.

Construction Administration
We propose the following limited scope to assist in technical field questions regarding civil engineering 
items. Common tasks included with construction administration generally include the following;

Attend a pre-construction meeting with the Client and Contractor to review construction schedule.
Review submittals and shop drawings applicable to engineering construction. 
Respond to RFI’s as requested.
Issue interpretations or clarifications of the documents when requested by the Owner or the 
Contractor.
When requested by ALTAMANU, attend weekly project meetings and prepare site reports during the 
construction phase as requested.  We assume a 6 site visits to review and assist with items directly 
related to civil engineering. 

P
ag

e 
2



Accepted by

Date: ____________________

Printed name: ___________________________

Signed name: ___________________________

Title: __________________________________

Conduct a punch list review of the engineering construction and prepare recommendations regarding 
the Contractor’s request for acceptance of substantial completion.
Conduct a final walk-through of the project and prepare recommendations regarding the Contractor’s 
request for acceptance of final completion.

Compensation

Limits of Service
Surveying
Earthwork Calculations
Pump Design
Geotechnical/Environmental 
Engineering & Testing
Traffic Engineering/Studies 
Structural engineering (retaining walls)

Sewer televising
Site Logistics Planning
Landscape Architecture
Flood plain/floodway/wetland mitigation
or delineation or design
Review and sign-off of payment 
applications or waivers

Additional Services
Changes to completed documents due to revised input or direction, change of project limits or scope 
and preparation of additional drawings shall be invoiced as an Additional Service.  Work will not be 
performed without your expressed, written consent.  Estimates for additional services will be 
provided upon your request.

Acceptance
This proposal, with the signature of the appropriate personnel, constitutes acceptance of fee and terms as 
stated herein.  Please return one copy of the signed proposal to me as authorization to begin work.

If you have any questions or need clarification on any of the above, please do not hesitate to call. We look 
forward to working with you on this project and sharing the success.

Yours truly,

Jerry Pilipowicz, P.E.
Civil Engineer

Principal & Managing Member
SMP Group Design Associates, LLC

j.pilipowicz@smpgroupllc.com

TASK FEE
Schematic Design & Public Input
Design Development and Construction Documents
Permitting, Bidding and Bid Assistance
Construction Administration

Subtotal
Reimbursables (estimated)

$6,200.00
$11,000.00

$600.00
2,200.00

$20,000.00
$800.00

 

P
ag

e 
3



XI. Action Item F
Approval of the Altamanu, Inc. Contract for

Lincoln and Crescent Playground Design
Services

Glencoe Park District
September 2017 Board Meeting



Glenc

To:      B

From: L

SUBJEC
Crescent

Attached
developm
Crescent
the direct
construct
presentat
additiona

Total cos
stand alo

A contrac
Green Ba

Recomm
Approva
Crescent

coe Park Distric

oard of Com

Lisa Sheppard

CT: Approval
Playground

d is an agreem
ment, constru

Playground
tion given re
tion will be s
tion. Commu
al public mee

sts of propos
one nature of

ct will be de
ay Linear Pa

mended Motio
l of the Alta
not to excee

ct / 999 Green

mmissioners 

d, Executive

l of the Altam
d 2018/2019 

ment from A
uction docum

d. The design
egarding the 
scheduled fo
unity input w
eting will co

sal represent 
f the project.

eveloped and
arks Master P

on:
amanu, Inc. a
ed $31,000. 

 Bay Road / Gl
www.glen

e Director

manu Inc. co
Capital Proj

Altamanu for
ments, and c
n of the Linc

Old Green B
or fall 2018. 
will be coord
ost $1,865. 

13.75% of t

d put forward
Plan and the

agreement fo

lencoe, IL  600
coeparkdistrict

ontract for p
jects  

r services, sp
onstruction m

coln and Cre
Bay Linear P
Included in 

dinated thru t

the project b

d to the Boar
 Shelton Ma

or the playgr

022 / (847) 83
t.com 

playground d

pecifically th
managemen
scent playgr
Park Master 
this proposa
the Master P

budget; this p

rd for approv
aster Plan ne

round design

5-3030 / fax (

design servic

he schematic
nt support for
round will be
r Plan. Due to
al is one Boa
Plan meeting

percentage r

val for servi
ext month. 

n services for

847) 835-4942

Date:  9/1

ces for Linco

c design, des
r the Lincoln
e contingent
o this fact, 
ard level 
gs. Each 

epresents th

ices for the O

r Lincoln & 

2

11/17

oln & 

sign
n & 
t on 

e

Old



    

1 | P a g e  
 

September 13, 2017 
 
Mr. Chris Leiner 
Director of Parks and Maintenance 
Glencoe Park District 
999 Green Bay Road 
Glencoe, Illinois 60022 
 
cleaner@glencoeparkdistrict.com 
 
RE: Landscape Architecture and Civil Engineering Services for Lincoln and Crescent (Green 

Bay) Playground in Glencoe, Illinois 
 

Dear Chris,  
 
The Glencoe Park District (GPD/Client) has requested a proposal from the Altamanu and SMP 
team to prepare Schematic Design, Design Development and Construction Documents, provide 
Bidding and Permit assistance and Construction Administration Services for improvements to 
the Lincoln & Crescent Playground (located at Lincoln Drive & Old Green Bay Road). 
 
We assume this project will go out to bid in the fall of 2018 after the Master Plan for the Green 
Bay Road adjacent open spaces has been completed.  The budget for this project is $225,000. 

 
We understand the overall scope of these project to include: 
 

 Play equipment updated to include universal accessibility components 
 Accessible paths from the public right of way to the playground 
 Engineered wood fiber surfacing at the play equipment areas with concrete curb surround 
 Updated drinking fountain 
 Update site furnishings 
 Plantings  

 
 

SCOPE OF WORK/PROJECT PLAN 
 

The following is an outline of the “Scope of Work” to be carried out by the Altamanu, Inc. /SMP 
team. 
 

 
TASK 1:  SCHEMATIC DESIGN 

Goals:  Review existing conditions, project scope, budget, schedule and set a direction for Client 
expectations. 
 

1. Verify existing conditions using available site data such as surveys, aerial photos, and 
topographic maps.  The Client will furnish Altamanu with an accurate base map, site survey and 
topographic map for the site. This map and survey will be at a working scale that will be used as 
a basis for the preparation of site improvement construction documents.  The survey will show 



    

2 | P a g e  
 

existing contours, detailed site features, and existing utilities to the center line of adjacent 
streets. The team will verify if the extent of the survey is sufficient for the intended scope of 
improvements and advise the Client if any further topographic information is required. Two soil 
borings and infiltration tests will be required for the site. The cost for surveys and soil 
borings/infiltration tests are not part of this proposal and shall be the fiscal responsibility of the 
Client. 
 

2. Review available zoning and landscape codes and advise client of any requirements. Incorporate 
requirements into the design of the improvements. 
 

3. Review potential MWRD permit requirements for the site. 
 

4. Meet with Client to review the project scope, budget, and schedule for the site and discuss 
expectations. (Meeting #1)  

 
5. Tour the site with Client to refine scope/goals and to field review existing conditions. (Site 

meeting at same time as project Kick-Off meeting). 
 

6. Prepare up to two (2) concepts for the site. Conceptual designs may include plans, reference 
images and elevational drawings. 
 

7. Present concepts to Client.  Client to select a preferred concept. (Meeting #2) 
 

8. Make revisions as per Client input of preferred concept.  
 

9. Prepare preliminary Opinion of Probable Costs of the preferred concept. 
 

10. Prepare ppt. presentation for Board Meeting. 
 

11. Present concepts to GPD Board for input.  (Board Presentation #1) 
 

12. Make minor revisions as requested by Board prior to commencing the Design Development 
Phase.  

 
 

TASK 2:  DETAILED DESIGN DEVELOPMENT & CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS 
Goals: Finalize relevant design elements and incorporate Client’s comments and produce the 
final Construction Documents. 
 

1. Prepare Design Development/Construction Documents for a 60%, 90% and 100% review with 
the Client.  The Construction Documents will include the following (it is possible that some of 
these items will be shown on the same plans): 
 
• Detailed Final Landscape Plan (1”=20’) 
• Layout and Dimension Plan (1”=20’) 
• Enlarged Site/Landscape Plans. 



    

3 | P a g e  
 

• Site Detail Sheets - Layout/Dimensioned of Related Special Site Elements  
• Drainage/Utility Details, utility connections, (SMP) 
• Grading and Drainage Plan and Details (SMP) 
• Planting Details, Plant Schedules and General Notes 
• Related Technical Specifications (Altamanu and SMP) 
 

5. Continue to field verify existing conditions as necessary to prepare the construction document 
set. 

 
6. Coordinate design decisions with Client throughout the DD and CD process. 
 
7. Coordinate Landscape Plan with Civil Engineer’s Grading/Drainage and Utility Plans.  
 
8. Revise Opinion of Probable Costs to reflect adjustments to Landscape/Engineering Plans. 
 
9. Submit 60% Construction Set and Outline Specifications to Client for review.  
 
10. Meet with Client to review 60% Construction Set. (Meeting #3) 
 
11. Coordinate with Village of Glencoe and MWRD (if necessary), and verify permit submission 

requirements. (Meeting #4) 
 
12. Submit 90% Construction Set and Outline Specifications to Client for review. 

 
13. Meet with Client to review 90% Construction Set. (Meeting  #5) 

 
14. Make revisions and submit 100% Construction Set and Specifications to Client for final review. 
 
15. Submit Final 100% Construction Documents Package and related Technical Specifications, 

including SWPP plan for permit, to Client for review and subsequently for bidding.  
 
 
TASK 3:  PERMITTING, BIDDING & BID ASSISTANCE  

Goal: Assist in obtaining appropriate approvals as required for construction. Assist in the 
packaging and distribution of construction drawing sets and specifications to potential 
contractors. Altamanu will review and assess bids with Client and assist in the selection of a 
contractor(s).  Altamanu together with the Client and Contractor(s) will establish time tables and 
schedules for construction. Assist Client in submitting Permit Set for appropriate approvals and 
coordinate with Village of Glencoe on any permit approvals from MWRD. (SMP will manage 
permit approvals) 



    

4 | P a g e  
 

 
1. Provide Client Construction Set prior to bidding for review.  
 
2. Issue addenda as appropriate to interpret, clarify or expand the Construction Documents. 
 
3. Meet with Client to assist in preparation of Bid Packages.  Use Site Landscape Construction Bid 

Form, cover letter and related addenda to include with Bid/Drawing Package. Distribute 
Bid/Drawing Package to contractors on selected list as vetted by team.   

 
4. Assist the Client in conducting a Pre-Bid Review Meeting with selected Contractors. (Meeting #6) 
 
5. Assist Client in preparing Bid Analysis for comparison of proposed bids. 
 
6. Assist Client with the selection(s) of appropriate contractors.  
 
7. Assist in the preparation AIA/GPD Contract between contractors and Glencoe Park District 

(GPD).  
 
8. Develop Landscape Installation Timetable with Client & selected contractor. 

 
 
TASK 4:  CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION & PROJECT CLOSEOUT 

Goal: Provide on-site review and observation of landscape construction related to the Site 
Landscape Construction Package and its Related Specifications.  
 

1. Provide on-site observation of site and landscape construction related to the Altamanu-SMP 
Landscape and Engineering Plans and their related elements.  Visit site eight times (8) at 
intervals appropriate to the stage of landscape construction to review proper construction 
methods and adherence to the design intent. (Site Meetings #7 through #16).    SMP/Civil 
Engineer will visit the site three times (3) at intervals appropriate to the stage of civil 
engineering items. 

 
2. Make written reports regarding site construction progress for landscape improvements. 
 
3. Review and respond to contractor’s requests for information and provide interpretations and 

clarifications for the Construction Documents.  
 
4. Review and approve samples of materials and shop drawings and assess change order requests. 
 
5. Review contractor’s request for payments. 



    

5 | P a g e  
 

 
6. Conduct a final on-site observation/inspection of Landscape Construction with Client and 

Contractor.  (Site Meeting #17) 
 
7. Prepare a Final Punch List prior to final acceptance of job. 

 
8. Troubleshoot for 2 months after project closeout. (8 hours) 
 

 
PROFESSIONAL FEES 

 
Fees for the project are broken down by discipline are as follows: 
 
Estimated Landscape Architecture Fees (Altamanu)     

Task 1 Schematic Design       $       3,150.00 
Task 2 Design Development & Construction Documents    $     13,050.00  

 Task 3 Permitting, Bidding and Bid Assistance    $       2,400.00 
Task 4 Construction Administration & Project Closeout   $       5,325.00 

Estimated Total Landscape Architecture Fees (Altamanu)   $     23,925.00 
 
Civil Engineering Fees (SMP)        

Task 1 Schematic Design       $        1,500.00 
Task 2 Design Development & Construction Documents &  $        3,000.00  

 Task 3 Permitting, Bidding and Bid Assistance    $           200.00 
Task 4 Construction Administration & Project Closeout   $           500.00 

Total Civil Engineering Fees (SMP)      $        5,200.00 
 
Expenses 

Estimated Expenses - Altamanu      $       1,625.00 
Estimated Expenses - SMP      $           200.00 

Total Expenses         $       1,825.00 
 

 
Estimated TOTAL PROFESSIONAL FEES  (Altamanu & SMP)      $    29,125.00     
 
Estimated TOTAL PROFESSIONAL FEES & EXPENSES (Altamanu & SMP)   $    30,950.00 

 
 
Reimbursable expenses which will be billed at direct expense.  Reimbursable expenses related to this 
project shall include, but may not be limited to the following: 

 



    

6 | P a g e  
 

 Transportation/Parking 
 Reproduction 
 Special Supplies 
 Photography 
 Copies 
 Messenger/Delivery 
  Large Scale Scans 
  Soils Analysis/Consultation 

 
Professional fees and expenses will be billed monthly for work completed and are due within 30 days. 
 
 
ASSUMPTIONS 

 All base information; site survey, site topography and site utility information, will be provided by 
the Client to Altamanu. 

 Site base information will be provided to Altamanu in a form compatible with AutoCAD 2017 
format. 

 There are no electrical engineering services included in this proposal.  
 The project team will make one (1) presentation of preferred concepts to the Board of the Park 

District only.  If further presentations are required the Client will be invoiced for this service at 
our standard hourly rates. 

 This agreement does not include: soils or environmental studies or property surveys. 
 Any services beyond what is outlined above will be considered extra services and will be billed at 

our standard hourly rates. 
 This agreement may be terminated by either party 15 days after written notice.  Altamanu shall 

be compensated for all services performed up to this date. 
 
If the aforementioned terms are acceptable to you, we would appreciate the execution of this 
document in the space provided below and the return of a copy for our files. 

 
We at Altamanu Inc. appreciate this opportunity to continue working with the Glencoe Park 
District.  
 
Very truly yours, 

 
 
Josephine Bellalta, PLA, ASLA, President Altamanu Inc. 

 
 
 
 
 



    

7 | P a g e  
 

ACCEPTED BY: 
 
 
             
Signature 
 
 
            
Printed Name 
 
 
            
Title 
 
   
            
Date 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



    

8 | P a g e  
 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

SMP GROUP DESIGN ASSOCIATES, LLC 
 

CIVIL ENGINEERING PROPOSAL 
for 

Improvements to the Playground at Lincoln and Cresent 
 
 

 
 
 
  





This fee proposal is based on your recent email request and our previous conversations. We understand 
that a survey will be completed as part of this proposal and will be made available soon.

Scope of Work

We understand that ALTAMANU will take the lead on the site planning and strategy meetings with the 
Park District and the Public. This fee does not include assistance with developing the Park’s Master Plan 
but does include a preliminary review of major proposed elements and schematic utility routing. We
understand that this projects is under MWRD jurisdiction and we will be responsible for obtaining a letter of 
determination and any required permitting. 

Schematic Design 
The SD Phase is intended to obtain and review all background information available from the Park District,
review site constraints and existing conditions in a detailed manner, and develop a concept design to 
present to the Park District. This phase will begin to identify stormwater management ideas and utility 
routings to meet the requirements of the local authorities. Tasks Include;

Site visit to evaluate existing conditions and establish project limits
Attend a project kick-off meeting with ALTAMANU and the Park District.
Survey review.
Complete a MWRD determination application.
Develop concept level grading and utility plans.

Design Development and Construction Documents
This phase of the project builds on the SD Phase and is an expected to produce a permit ready civil 
engineering drawing set. This phase will begin once schematic design has been completed and the 
Project Team is confident that no substantial revisions to the site plan will occur. This includes 
intermediate document submittals and coordination with the Park District at a 60% and 90% level to 
develop a cohesive drawing package.  Tasks include;

Coordinate with ALTAMANU and the Park District to finalize construction documents.
Finalize the utility and drainage routing/strategy.
Prepare final demolition, dimension, grading, utility, erosion & sedimentation control, civil construction 
detail plans.
Prepare technical specifications in CSI format for Civil Engineering scope items as requested.
Assistance with the review of a Cost Opinion.

Permitting, Bidding and Bid Assistance
This phase works with the documents prepared in the DD/CD Phase and works towards obtaining a 
building permit. Here, we will work with Altamanu on the preparation of a contract bid package as well as 
the selection of a contractor.  Tasks include;

Compile the necessary civil drawings to issue for Permit through the Village of Glencoe.
Assist with project bidding, contractor RFI’s and contractor selection.

Construction Administration
We propose the following limited scope to assist in technical field questions regarding civil engineering 
items. Common tasks included with construction administration generally include the following;

Attend a pre-construction meeting with the Client and Contractor to review construction schedule.
Review submittals and shop drawings applicable to engineering construction. 
Respond to RFI’s as requested.
Issue interpretations or clarifications of the documents when requested by the Owner or the 
Contractor.
When requested by ALTAMANU, attend weekly project meetings and prepare site reports during the 
construction phase as requested.  We assume a 3 site visits to review and assist with items directly 
related to civil engineering.
Conduct a punch list review of the engineering construction and prepare recommendations regarding  

P
ag

e 
2



Accepted by

Date: ____________________

Printed name: ___________________________

Signed name: ___________________________

Title: __________________________________

the Contractor’s request for acceptance of substantial completion.
Conduct a final walk-through of the project and prepare recommendations regarding the Contractor’s 
request for acceptance of final completion.

Compensation

Limits of Service
Surveying
Earthwork Calculations
Pump Design
Geotechnical/Environmental 
Engineering & Testing
Traffic Engineering/Studies 
Structural engineering (retaining walls)

Sewer televising
Site Logistics Planning
Landscape Architecture
Flood plain/floodway/wetland mitigation
or delineation or design
Review and sign-off of payment 
applications or waivers

Additional Services
Changes to completed documents due to revised input or direction, change of project limits or scope 
and preparation of additional drawings shall be invoiced as an Additional Service.  Work will not be 
performed without your expressed, written consent.  Estimates for additional services will be 
provided upon your request.

Acceptance
This proposal, with the signature of the appropriate personnel, constitutes acceptance of fee and terms as 
stated herein.  Please return one copy of the signed proposal to me as authorization to begin work.

If you have any questions or need clarification on any of the above, please do not hesitate to call. We look 
forward to working with you on this project and sharing the success.

Yours truly,

Jerry Pilipowicz, P.E.
Civil Engineer

Principal & Managing Member
SMP Group Design Associates, LLC

j.pilipowicz@smpgroupllc.com

TASK FEE
Schematic Design & Public Input
Design Development and Construction Documents
Permitting, Bidding and Bid Assistance
Construction Administration

Subtotal
Reimbursables (estimated)

$1,500.00
$3,000.00

$200.00
500.00

$5,200.00
$200.00

 

P
ag

e 
3


	Agenda
	Minutes of August 17, 2017 Regular Board Meeting
	Minutes of September 5, 2017 Special Projects & Facilities Committee Meeting
	Voucher List of Bills 7/15/17-8/16/17
	Voucher List of Bills 8/17/17-9/15/17
	Financial Report
	Youth Camps Report
	Early Childhood Report
	Business Dept Report
	Recreation/Facilities Dept Report
	Parks/Maintenance Dept Report
	Marketing/Communications Report
	Minutes of July 19, 2017 Safety Committee
	Executive Director's Report
	2017 Summer Employee Survey Results
	District FY2017/18 Goals Update
	Active Transportation Plan
	Appoint Members to Glencoe Beach and Lakefront Advisory Group
	Approval of FY2018/19 Master Plan Capital Projects
	Approval of Strategic Planning Process
	Approval to Change Time of October 17 Regular Board Meeting
	Approval of a Time Clock Management System
	Approval of Altamanu Contract for Three Playground Design Services
	Approval of Altamanu Contract for Lincoln & Crescent Playground Design Services



